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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are identified by words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “plan,” “will,” “may,” “should,” “could,” “thirik,” “estimate” and “predict,” and other
similar expressions. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections or other
characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements.

We based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about
future events. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in, or implied by, these
forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those implied by the
forward-looking statements include:

e our ability to continue to recruit and retain qualified flexible healthcare staff;

¢ our ability to enter into contracts with hospitals, other healthcare facility clients and local
governmental social service departments on terms attractive to us;

* the general level of patient occupancy at our clients’ hospitals and healthcare facilities;
* our ability to successfully implement our acquisition and integration strategies;
s our dependence on the proper functioning of our information systems;

¢ - the effect of existing or future government regulation of the healthcare industry, and our
~ ability to.comply with these regulations;,

J the impact of medical malpréctiee and other claims asserted against us;

¢ the effect of regulatory change that may apply to us and that may increase our costs and
reduce our revenue and profitability;

¢ our ability to use our net operatmg loss carryforward to offset net income;

s the effect that ﬁuctuatrons in forelgn currency exchange rates may have on our
dollar-denominated results of operations;-and ,

e the impairment of our goodwill, of which we have a substantial amount on our balance sheet,
may have the effect of decreasing our earnings or increasing our losses.

~ Other factors that could cause actual results to differ from those implied by the forward-looking
statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are more fully described elsewhere in this document,
as well as changes in any of the following: the demand for our products and services, general
economic conditions, governmental regulation, the level of competition we face, customer strategies
and pricing and reimbursement policies.




Preliminary Notes
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As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, “our company,” “we,” “us” and similar terms

mean Allied Healthcare International Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Historical financial and other data originally denominated in pounds sterling have been converted
to dollars at the then applicable exchange rate. Financial and other data (excluding historical financial
and other data) originally denominated in pounds sterling have been converted to dollars using the
exchange ratio at September 30, 2005 of £1.00 = $1. 7628

PART I.

Item 1. Business
ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.

Our Cempany

We are a leading provider of flexible, or temporary, healthcare staffing.to the U.K. healthcare
industry as measured by revenues, market share and number of staff. As of September 30, 2005, we
operated an integrated network: of approximatély 115 branches throughout most of the United
" Kingdom. Our healthcare staff consists principally of nurses, nurses aides and home health aides
(known as carers in the United ngdom) We focus on placing our staff on a per diem basis in
hospitals, nursing homes, care homes (which, unlike nursing homes, do not generally provide medical
services to their residents) and homes. We maintain a pool of over 22,000 nurses, nurses aides and
home health aides, a majority of whom we placed during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005.
Our healthcare staffing business accounted for 97.4% of our revenues during the fiscal yeat ended
September 30, 2005. We also supply medical-grade oxygen for use in respiratory therapy to the UK.
pharmacy market and Northern Ireland and oxygen concentrators to customers in Northern Ireland.
Our medical-grade oxygen business accounted for-approximately 2.6% of our revenues during the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. We disposed of the last of our active U.S. operations during
fiscal year 2003. '

We focus our operations primarily on the per diem staffing market rather than the long-term
staffing market because we believe that per diem staffing has a more favorable pricing structure. Per
diem arrangements generally command higher prices. than long-term contracts and generally have
higher margins. In the per diem market, healthcare facilities and local governmental social service
departments retain flexible staffers‘on’a job-to-job basis when needed, without any long-term
contractual commitment by the purchaser or providet. In contrast, long-term contracts are negotiated
for a-number of months or years and guarantee a supply of staff to the purchaser, but generally do
not guarantee that staffing services will be purchased.

Our principal executive offices are located at 555 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10022,
and’our telephone number at that location is (212) 750-0064.

Recent Developments

In July 2005, we reorganized our operations in response to changes in the method by which our
biggest customer, the National Health Service (the “NHS"), required staffing services be provided to
it. Instead of operating through a number of different subsidiaries (Staffing Enterprise, Medic-One
Group, Balfor Medical, Nurses Direct, Nightingale Nursing Bureau and Allied Healthcare (UK)) to
supply healthcare staff, our healthcare staffing business was reorganized into two main operations.
One part of our flexible healthcare staffing business is operated by our Allied Staffing Professionals
Limited subsidiary, which provides staff to the NHS under our NHS Framework Agreements currently
in operation in three of the eight areas into which the NHS has divided the United Kingdom
(London, Southeast England and East England) and also provides staff to our former Balfor Medical
operations in northern England. The remainder of our healthcare staffing business is operated by our
Allied Healthcare Group Limited subsidiary, and includes the rest of our NHS business and all our
homecare work.




In July 2005, we also rebranded our U.K. operations .and launched a new corporate logo.

In fiscal 2005 we implemented a new computerized accounting and payroll system and in fiscal
2006 we plan to implement further improvements. Next year’s 1mprovements will predominately target
our branch network.

The U.K. Flexible Healthcare Staffing Industry

The U.K. flexible healthcare staffing market, according to Laing & Buisson’s report, Flexible
Staffing Services in U.K. Health & Care Markets (2004), was estimated to be £4.5 billion (38.1 billion)
in 2003. The same Laing & Buisson report indicates that the U.K. healthcare staffing market is highly
fragmented with no one company possessing a dominant market share, providing opportunities for
growth and consolidation.

The major purchasers of flexible healthcare staff in the United Kingdom are:

¢ The government-funded NHS. Through its Primary Care Trusts, the NHS oversees general
practitioners, who refer patients to specialists for more complex treatment. The NHS operates
its hospitals through NHS Trusts, each of which operates one or more hospitals. (There are
approximately 275 NHS Trusts in England, 28 in Scotland and 14 in Wales.) The NHS spent
£2.1 billion ($3.7 billion) in 2003 on temporary healthcare staff, of which £1.8 billion ($3.2
billion) was spent by NHS Trusts.

¢ Local governmental social service departments; which purchased £1.3 billion ($2.3 billion) in
2003 for the provision of homecare services from the private sector.

¢ Private individuals, who spent £570 million ($1.0 billion) on homecare services in 2003. An
additional £90 million ($161 rmlhon) of homecare services was purchased from other sources,
including the NHS.

. Independent hospitals and care homes in the United Kingdom, which purchased £183 million
($328 million) in healthcare staffing.

¢ Other sources, who purchased an estimated £260 million ($466 million).

Our Business Strategy

We seek to become the provider of choice to purchasers of healthcare staffing services and the
employer of choice to flexible healthcare workers. In addition, we seek to expand our range of
healthcare staffing services over the long-term. The key elements in achieving these strategic
objectives are:

* Increase revenues on a per branch basis. We believe the increasing demand for quality
healthcare staffing with national coverage and diversity of services will support organic growth
in our branches and the development of new services. We intend to foster continued
same-store revenue growth by leveraging our nationally recognized brand names, competmve
benefits package and leadership in providing temporary healthcare staffing.

* Recruit and retain healthcare staff. We intend to continue to recruit and retain high-quality
staff to take advantage of the severe shortages of nurses and home health aides in the United
Kingdom, which we expect to continue in the foreseeable future. We intend to continue our
recruitment efforts and to encourage loyalty from our healthcare staff by matching their
flexible working preferences (both with regards to scheduling preferences and types of
assignments desired) with our customers’ needs, maintaining regular contact and promoting
opportunities for training and development, such as our CareMiles™ program, which is
discussed below.

¢ Further expand our strong presence in the U.K. healthcare staffing industry through the
strategic acquisition of other companies. We intend to grow our presence in the U.K.
healthcare staffing industry through the acquisition of other companies.
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Utilizing our 'successes in the United Kingdom, we intend to evaluate opportunities to acquire
healthcare staffing businesses in the United States. While we have not in recent years had a presence
in the U.S. flexible staffing market, we believe that our competitive strengths and the increasing
demand for temporary healthcare staff in the United States, together with the fragmented market for
flexible healthcare staffing in the United States, may provide an attractive opportunity to us.

Our Operations

~ We are a leading’ provrder of flexible, or temporary, staffing to the U.K. healthcare industry. We
provide flexible staffing, principally nurses, nursés aides and home health aides, to customers
throughout most of the United Kingdom. Our branchesare located in England, Wales and Scotland.
We do not have any branches or healthcare staffing customers in Northern Ireland. We also provide
respiratory therapy products to pharmacies in the United Kingdom and Northern Ireland and oxygen
concentrators to customers in Northern Ireland.

During fiscal 2005, our revenues were derived from the following lines of business:
* 97, 4% from flexible staffing serv1ces and
e 2 6% from respiratory therapy.

During fiscal 2003, we exited the U. S. market. Our discontinued operatlons are reﬂected
separately in our consolidated financial statements.

Flexzble Sta]fﬁng

.-We provide a diverse range of flexible staff, principally consisting of nurses, nurses aides .and
home health aides, to_ our customers. We also provide specialist nurses and specialized nurses aides,
primarily through our Allied Staffing Professionals subsidiary. Home health aides provide personal or
basic care in the home (known as social care in the United Kingdom). Nurses aides perform many of
the functions of home health aides, but'in the hospital setting. As of September 2005, our mix of
flexible staff was approximately 18% nurses, 33% nurses aides and 49% home health aides.

Since our reorganization in July 2005, most of our branches (approximately 112) are operated by
Allied Healthcare Group Limited. The remainder of our branches are operated by Allied Stafﬁng
Professionals Limited.

Our integrated branch network is spread throughout most of the United Kingdom. A typical
branch is overseen by a branch manger, who is responsible for all the activities in the branch,
including the achievement of its financial targets, developing local customer relations and recruiting
staff. Our branches serve as our direct contact with our customers and our healthcare staff.

OQur branches are organized into geographical teams of approximately 10 branches. There are five
support groups covering two teams each and these groups include a support manager, financial analyst,
sales manager, training manager and compliance manager, whose function is to support the branch
manager in ach1ev1ng the branch’s yearly financial targets.

There are monthly management meetings for each team attended by the branch managers and
related support group and representatives of senior management where the ﬁnanc1al performance of
each branch is assessed and actions for 1mprovement are agreed upon.

"We generally maintain centralized management control in the areas of payroll, accounts
receivable, contracts, prlcmg, regulatory matters, quality control and information technology.

Recruitment of Flexible Staff

Many healthcare workers are attracted to flexible staffing positions because of their desire to
tailor work schedules to personal and family needs, obtain varied and challenging work experiences
and acquire new skills. We believe that our ability to offer quality flexible staffing assignments
well-matched to individuals’ preferences assrsts in our attracting a large number of flexible healthcare
workers.




Our branch managers are primarily responsible for recruiting staff. Branch managers recruit on a
local basis, with referrals from existing staff providing an important source of new staff. From time to
time, we may run internal financial promotions to encourage referrals from our staff. We also formally
recruit through local and national print advertising and organize recruitment events, including national
recruitment days, at the branch level. Our website also advertises national branch vacancies.

We impose a. standardized recruitment process on our branches. Before they can place a nurse,
nurses aide or home health aide, our branches must obtain, among other things, two professional
references and evidence of proper immunizations, as well as a police background check. Our branches
must also confirm that each nurse has been licensed by the appropriate governmental body and that
each nurses aide and home health aide has received the training mandated by law for the1r
occupation.

Training and Retention of Flexible Staff

Our retention philosophy is based upon each branch maintaining personal contact with the
flexible staff on its register, including a structured campaign whereby current and former staff are
contacted periodically by each branch to assess their needs and to attempt to'meét their individual
working preferences. We also conduct a formal annual review of all charge and pay rates within the
business and compare them to prevailing market rates to ensure that our margins are competitive.

In April 2002, we introduced a program called “CareMiles™” that enables our flexible staff to
earn credits based on the number of hours that they work for us. Our staff can use the credits to pay
for healthcare training and personal development courses that the individual would otherwise pay for
out of his or her pocket. As a healthcare worker becomes more skilled, he or she has greater
flexibility in choosing assignments and also may earn a greater hourly wage. We believe that the
CareMiles™ program promotes staff loyalty while providing us with the opportunity to earn higher
commissions as more highly-trained staff are generally billed out at higher rates. The healthcare
training and personnel development courses offered through the CareMiles™ program are in addition
to standard training programs that we offer to our staff to ensure compliance with regulatory
requirements.

Quality Assurance

We invest heavily in quality assurance systems to ensure that our flexible healthcare staff meet
our internal quality assurance standards, as well as those mandated under the Care Standards Act
2000. '

Itis the branch manager’s responsibility to ensure that all flexible workers are compliant with our
internal quality assurance standards when they are booked on shifts. We are currently implementing a
new computerized system to record compliance status for each worker which, when implemented, will
make the worker unavailable for work if their comphance is not up -to-date.

We have a quality assurance audit team whose prlmary job responsibility is to visit each of our
branches on a periodic basis to assure that the branches adhere to the procedures and policies set by
our main office. The quality assurance audit team is 4independe'r1t of our operations management. A
member of our quality assurance audit team visits each branch at least once per year. During its visits
to our branches, the quality assurance audit team reviews employee files to confirm that staff have
proper levels of training for the jobs in which they are being'placed by the branch and that the
documents required by our standardized recruitment process are in-order. The quality assurance audit
team also confirms that nurses have been licensed with the appropriate U.K. body. In addition, to
minimize injury to our staff, the quality assurance audit team checks customer files to confirm that all
health and safety checks for customers’ facilities have been made: Reviews of staff and customer files
are done on a random sample basis.

Customers
We provide healthcare staff to four types of customers:

¢ The NHS. During our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, we provided nurses and nurses
aides to the NHS. We provided staff mainly to NHS hospitals and NHS Primary Care Trusts.
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Local governmental social service departments. Local governmental social service
departments retain us to provide healthcare staff, generally home health aides, to individuals
in their homes.

Nursing homes, care homes and independent hospitals. We provide nurses and home health
aides to nursing homes and home health aides to care homes. Care homes, like nursing
homes, generally provide shelter and food for their residents, but, unlike nursing homes,
generally do not provide medical services to their residents. We also provide nurses and
nurses aides to independent hospitals in the private sector.

Private patients. We provide both nurses and home health aides to private patient
customers, These patients may include incapacitated individuals who require daily attention or
patients with long-term illnesses living at home.

Types of Customer Contracts

We provide staff to our customers under a variety of arrangements, including the following
categories of contracts common to the healthcare staffing industry:

Per diem purchases. Business provided on a per diem basis arises when a customer requires
flexible staff, and there is no formal ongoing contractual commitment with the customer. The
services provided on a per diem basis may be limited to one shift lasting a short period of
time or may be an engagement for an indefinite period. We provide most of our nurses,
nurses aides and home health aides to customers on a per diem basis.

NHS Framework Agreements and Service Level Agreements. The NHS has divided England
into eight regions. The NHS has required any healthcare staffing company that provides
temporary staff to the NHS hospitals in a region to enter into a Framework Agreement
setting forth, among other things, applicable quality standards and maximum payment rates.
Only those staffing companies that have met the quality standards set by the NHS and
executed a Framework Agreement applicable to a particular region of the country can provide
temporary staff to NHS hospitals in that region. We have entered into one or more
Framework Agreements in each region of England. Each Framework Agreement specifies the
type of staff that the agency that is a party thereto can supply in the area covered by the
Framework Agreement. Pursuant to our various Framework Agreements, we can supply all
types of staff throughout the U.K., except in London, where our Framework Agreement
authorizes us to supply all categories of staff other than mental health staff and midwives, and
except in the South East area, where our Framework Agreement authorizes us to supply all
categories of staff other than mental health nurses.

Individual NHS hospitals in England may select from the list of staffing companies qualified
under the Framework Agreements and enter into Service Level Agreements. Although the
Framework Agreements set the maximum rates to be charged for flexible staff, NHS
hospitals may obtain lower rates in the Service Level Agreement by committing to higher
volumes of business with a staffing company.

Preferred supplier contracts. These contracts involve the designation of a flexible staffing
business by a local governmental social services department as a “preferred supplier” of staff.
A preferred supplier contract agreement specifies rates to be paid for staff but it is not an
exclusive arrangement and does not guarantee that a flexible staffing business will be used by
the local governmental social services department. A small proportion of our services are
provided under preferred supplier contracts,

“Cost-volume” contracts. A “cost-volume” contract specifies the rates for staff and commits
the customer to purchase an agreed-upon volume of staffing services over a specified period.
A “cost-volume” contract may enable customers to negotiate lower prices in return for
agreeing to minimum volumes of business. Local governmental social service departments are
the principal users of these contracts. A very small percentage of our business is conducted on
a “cost-volume” basis.




¢ Long-term contracts. Under a long-term contract a purchaser of staffing services enters into
a long-term arrangement (typically three years) -with. a supplier of staff under which rates for -
staff, usually discounted, are agreed to. Long-term contracts may be exclusive arrangements,
with penalties if the staffing business is not able to satisfy the customer’s demand for staff
during the term of the contract. Other than preferred supplier contracts and cost-volume
contracts, none of our staff are provided to customers under {ong-term contracts.

We typically provide in our written contracts that we will 1ndemn1fy our customers against 11ab111ty
that they may incur in the event that the members of our staff cause death, personal injury or
property damage in the performance of their services. We maintain liability insurance designed to
reimburse us in the event that claims of this type are made. See “Insurance” below. In addition, in
some of our written contracts, we agree to indemnify our customers for the costs they incur if we are
not able to provide them with the number of staff or man-hours required during the term of the
contract and the customer has to outsource its stafﬁng requirements to another entity.

MarketmjLActmtles

We market our flexible healthcare staffing bus1ness to key demsxon makers in the NHS, local
governmental social service departments, nursing homes, care homes and independent hospitals. These
decision makers can be procurement officers, contract officers or social workers. Fundamental to our
ability to obtain and retain staffing assignments is establishing and maintaining a reputation for quality
service and responsiveness to the needs of our customers and their patients.

Acquisition and Integration Process

Since October 1, 2001, we have acquired 67 businesses. Theiavevrage revenue of these businesses
in the year prior to their acquisition by us was £1.8 million.

We continue to identify suitable acquisition targets and typically seek to develop a pre-acquisition
relationship with the vendors and key management in order to assess business “fit.” We structure our
acquisitions so as to encourage continuity of management and seek to align our interests with the
vendors’/management’s interests through performance based earn-out provisions.

Our integration process includes the adoption of our policies and procedures and the integration’
of the acquired business into our IT system. For smaller acquisitions, the process of integrating newly
acquired businesses, including integrating them into our IT system, begins prior to the closing of the
acquisition and is usually completed within three months. In larger acquisitions, the acquired business
generally retains its own IT system, including payroll and invoicing, for a longer period of time.
However, as is the case with smaller acquisitions, commencing-shortly after their date of acquisition,
we require larger acquired businesses to adhere to weekly and monthly financial reporting
requirements. In addition, we generally maintain centralized control of contracts and pricing for all
acquisitions, commencing shortly after the date of acquisition:

Competition

The U.K. flexible healthcare staffing business is highly fragmented with over 2,100 small operators
providing staff locally. The market at the local level is characterized by relatively low barriers to entry.
The barriers to entry at a U.X.-wide level are more significant, as the establishment and growth of a
flexible healthcare staffing business is largely dependent on access to capital.

The privately-owned competitors of our flexible staffing business are mainly small, locally-based
agencies serving a limited area or group of customers. These businesses compete with our relevant
branch covering the same local area, but do not otherwise compete for U.K.-wide market share. In
addition, a limited number of larger U.K.-based companies compete with us. Such companies include
Nestor Healthcare Group plc, Match Group and Reed Health Group plc.

The nature of the UK. marketplace is such that nurses and home health aides often accept
placements with more than one flexible staffing business.

Since 2000, the NHS has had its own internal agency, called NHS Professionals, which has
attempted to provide NHS hospitals with high volume/low margin contracts for flexible healthcare
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workers and to reduce the NHS’s dependence on external agencies. We work with NHS Professionals
to fulfili the per diem demand that it is unable to cover.

Respiratory Therapy

Our respiratqry therapy business serves two segments of the’ oxygen thérapy market: (a) oxygen
cylinders and (b) oxygen concentrators.

Home oxygen therapy delivered from a cylinder via face-mask is prescribed for a wide array of
respiratory diseases ranging from asthma and emphysema to severe bronchitis. We supply filled
-oxygen cylinders and related equlpment solely to pharmacies, both ‘small mdependent stores and large
retail pharmacy chains. Our equipment is intended for patients at home who require less than eight
hours of oxygen per day or who may have temporary respiratory conditions. "We provide ’
approximately 1,400 cylinders per day to pharmacies in the Umted Kingdom. ‘

Patients that require more than eight hours of oxygen per day are generally supphed by an
on-site oxygen concentrator. We provide oxygen concentrators, which separate room air into its
constituent gases to provide 95% oxygen gas, to a total of approximately 2,000 patients at home in
Northern Ireland. We charge the NHS on a monthly basis for the period during whlch the patients
have the equipment at home.

In 2005, the U.K. Department of Health sought to unify the supply of oxygen to NHS patients in
England and Wales. The current system uses pharmacies to supply cylindered gases, while oxygen
concentrators are supplied via regional contracts with homecare providers. Under the revised system,
homecare providers will be permitted to supply cylindered gas and liquid oxygen as well as oxygen
concentrators. We submitted a re-tender offer for such businesses.. In August 2005, we received two
written contracts for Southeast England that will commence in February 2006. As the existing cylinder
business is organized on a national distribution structure, the award of the areas in Southeast England
only will require a reorganization of some of our facilities from the center of the U.K. to Southeast
England in fiscal 2006. Our supply of cylindered gases in Northern Ireland and-Scotland is unaffected,
as is our contract to supply oxygen concentrator services in Northern Ireland. These changes will
result in incurring additional charges in fiscal 2006 as we migrate from our existing contracts to the
new contracts.

Payment for Staffing Services and Respiratory Products

In most cases, we contract directly with the governmental entity or private entity or individual to
whom we provide flexible staff or respiratory therapy products. The party with whom we contract for
the supply of staff or to whom we provide respiratory therapy products is responsible for paying us
directly. In general, reimbursement is received regularly and reliably from all governmental and
private customers. We generally collect payments from our customers within two months after services
are rendered or products are supplied but we pay accounts payable and employees currently.

For the year ended September 30, 2005, our operations received approximately 65.6% of revenues
from customers that were U.K. governmental entities (primarily NHS hospitals and local
governmental social service departments) compared to approximately 64.7% for the year ended .
September 30, 2004. The remaining 34.4% and 35.3% of revenues received for 2005 and 2004, 1
respectively, were derived from services and products provided to privately-owned nursing homes,
privately-owned care homes, pharmacies, independent hospitals and private patients.

Trade Names

We operate our healthcare staffing business in the United Kingdom principally under the
following trade names:

e Allied Healthcare Group;
e Allied Staffing Professionals; and
¢ Nightingale Nursing Bureau.




We operate our resplratory therapy business in the: Unlted K1ngdom under the followrng trade
names: oo . S : L e

‘o Alli‘ele‘esp'iratlory;'and § | o
* Medigas. e A / U T S
Employees

As of November 2005, we Aemployedap’proxirnately 980 indit/iduals in our branch network, our -
UK. head office and our other ofﬁces None of our employees are represented by a labor unron
 In addltron we mamtam regrsters of over 22, 000 nurses nurses aides and home health aides
available to staff our customer base on a temporary basis. ‘We generally. place about 9,000 individuals
each week Wlth our customers We consrder our relationship with the staff to be good

T
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Govemment Regulation ' SR L

General

We are subject to regulation by the government of the United Kingdom via Acts of Parliament
related to healthcare provision and by the general health regulations of the Department of Health.

Healthcare Laws and. Regulations

Our operations are sub]ect to licensing and approval regulatrons from both governmental and

non- governmental bodies accordmg to terms of service and operatrng procedures decrded by the UK.
government

We are currently registered in England and Wales under the Care Standards:Act 2000 and the
Nurses Agencies Regulations 2002 (which came into force in April 2003) in relation to England and
the Nurses Agencies (Wales) Regulatlons 2003 (which came into force in October 2003) in relation to
Wales to carry on a business.for the supply of nurses. This legrslatron requires that a person who i
carries on a business for the supply of nurses at any location within the jurisdiction 'of the registration
authority must be the holder of a ceruﬁcate from that authority certifying that the busrness is
registered to supply to that location. We are similarly registered in Scotland under the Regulauon of
Care (Scotland) Act 2001. Any of our branches that supply home health aides working in mdrvrduals
homes are authorized under the Care Standards Act 2000 and the Domrcrlrary Care Agencies
Regulations 2002 (in England), the Dom1c1l1ary Care Agenc1es (Wales) Regulatrons 2004 and the
Regulation of Care- (Scotland) Act 2001. .

"The Care Standards Act 2000 1ntroduced among “other things, a new regrstrauon and regulatory
structure for all non-NHS healthcare services in England and Wales. The Health and Social Care
(Community Health and Standards) Act 2003 established two new independent reg1strat10n and
regulatory.bodies for independent healthcare services-and social care -in England, including suppliers
of nurses, called the .Commission for Social Care and Inspection and the Commission for Healthcare
Audit and Inspection, the former of which enforces registration of ‘care agencies and establishments.
The Care Standards Act 2000 also appointed a similar registration authority for Wales, the National
Assembly for Wales. The Care Standards Act 2000 also made provision for a new General Social Care
Council in England and a new Care Council for Wales to be established as non- departmental statutory
bodies responsible to the Department of Health and National Assembly of Wales, respectively, with
the aim of increasing the protection of service users, their home health aides and the general public.
The ‘Regulation of Care (Scotland) Act 2001 also introduced legislation relating to this area in-
Scotland and appointed the reglstratron authority for Scotland, the Scottish Comm1ssron for the
Regulation of Care

‘i

“The Care Standards Act 2000 is essentrally an enabhng act that prov1des for regulatrons to be
made by secondary legislation. Regulations relating to registration are already in force (the National -
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Care Standards Commission (Registration) Regulations 2001). The Care Standards Act 2000 also
provided that regulations can be made imposing any requirements which the appropriate Minister
thinks fit for the purposes of the Care Standards Act 2000 relating to establishments and agencies.
Specific regulations set out in the Care Standards Act 2000 that may be introduced include provisions
relating to the services to be provided by suppliers of healthcare staff, the keeping of accounts, the
keeping of records and documents and arrangements to be made for dealing with complaints made by
those seeking or receiving any of the services provided by the suppliers of healthcare staff. A number
of regulations (including the Nurses Agencies Regulations 2002 and the Domiciliary Care Agencies
Regulations 2002) include provisions in these areas.

Contracts between suppliers of healthcare staff and NHS hospitals for the provision of services, as
well as the performance by the parties of their obligations thereunder, is reviewed by the Commission
for Healthcare Audit and Inspection. We are accredited by various U.K. social services agencies for
the supply of home health aides within their jurisdiction. The U.K. Medicines and Healthcare '
Products Regulatory Agency has granted licenses to us for the production and distribution of
medical-grade oxygen to pharmacies throughout the United Kingdom.

We believe that we are in substantial compliance in all material respects with U.K. healthcare
laws and regulations applicable to our operations.

Hea.lthcare Reform

Our business is subject to extensive and complex laws and regulations in the United Kingdom.
These include, but are not limited to, laws and regulations related to licensing, conduct of operations,
payment for services and referrals, benefits payable to temporary staffers and taxation. Moreover,
many political, economic and regulatory organizations are supporting fundamental change in the U.K.
healthcare industry. A summary of the material existing and proposed regulations follows.

U.K. rules affecting temporary workers. The benefits and protections with which temporary
workers in the United Kingdom must be provided have recently increased, and new and or more
stringent laws are likely to be introduced in the future. In particular, the Conduct of Employment
Agencies and Employment Business Regulations 2003 (the “2003 Regulations”) described below and
case law impact us. For example, a ruling by the European Court of Justice stated that the provisions
of the European Working Time Directive, which entitle temporary workers to be paid annual leave
only when they have been continuously employed for 13 weeks, is unlawful. The U.K. Working Time
Regulations have therefore been amended to remove the 13-week qualify period, and workers in the
United Kingdom are now entitled to paid leave from the first day of employment.

Health and Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003. Under the Health and
Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003 and applicable regulations, providers of
flexible healthcare staff have to register with the Commission for Social Care Inspection and must
comply with the rules relating to management and staffing, fitness of premises and the conduct of
specified services.

Changes in U.K. value-added tax (“VAT”) rules. We currently act as an agent for VAT purposes
in supplying healthcare staff, which; under a concession to existing U.K. law, requires us to charge
VAT only on the amount of commission charged to the purchaser of flexible staff.

The 2003 Regulatlons, ‘msofar as they relate to VAT, came into effect in the United Kingdom on
April 6, 2004 but the changes envisaged were suspended until such time as a consultation on this
matter has been concluded This consultation is due to commence in January 2006

In the event that the proposed changes are 1mplemented the concession under which we operate
at present are likely to be withdrawn and this would place an increased VAT burden on our company.

The 2003 Regulations require employment agencies, including those supplying flexible healthcare
staff, to enter into contractual relationships with the workers that they supply. Consequently, for VAT
purposes, the tax authorities’ interpretation is that the flexible staff provider acts as principal, rather
than agent.
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For non-medical staff, VAT would be due on the total amount of the charges made by the flexible
staff provider, including salary costs, rather than merely on its commission. This change may adversely
affect our cash flow if we have to pay the increased VAT liability to the government before our
customers have paid their fees to us.

The law however states that the provision of medical staff such as nurses should be freated as
exempt from VAT. Pursuant to such exemption, we will be limited in the amount of VAT we would be
entitled to set off against the VAT we owe the government.

NHS Initiatives

Flexible staffing providers, such as our company, are subject to the risk that the NHS will seek to
regulate the price it pays for temporary staff, reduce its use of temporary staff or replace its use of
temporary staff where possible with permanent employees

In recent years, the NHS has divided England into eight reglons The NHS has requ1red any
healthcare staffing company that provides temporary staff to the NHS hospitals in a region to enter
into a Framework Agreement setting forth, among other things, types of staff to be supplied, quality
standards and maximum payment rates. Only those staffing companies that have met the quality
standards set by the NHS and executed a Framework Agreement applicable to a particular region of
the-country can provide temporary staff to NHS hospitals in that region. We have entered into one or
more Framework Agreements in each region of England. Each Framework Agreement specifies the
type of staff that the agency that is a party thereto can supply in the area covered by the Framework
Agreement. Pursuant to our various Framework Agreements, we can supply all types of staff
throughout the U.K,, except in London, where our Framework Agreement authorizes us to supply all
categories of staff other than mental health staff and midwives, and except in the South East area,
where our Framework Agreement authorizes us to supply all categories of staff other than mental
health nurses. It is likely that a long-term effect of the Framework Agreements will be to reduce the
cost of commissions paid to healthcare staffing companies and/or to reduce the number of healthcare
staffing companies supplying staff to the NHS. "

Another initiative undertaken- by the NHS is its creation of NHS Professionals. NHS
Professionals is an internal agency of the NHS that seeks to provide an efficient temporary staffing
service for NHS hospitals and to reduce the dependence of the NHS on external agencies. NHS
Professionals seeks to coordinate nurse banks operated by NHS hospitals with the intention of
maintaining quality standards and controlling cost across all NHS nurse banks.

If the NHS were to significantly reduce its use of our services (by, for example, the greater
utilization of NHS Professionals), negotiate lower prices or change its policy on private-sector
involvement, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. ‘

Insurance

- We maintain general liability insurance, professional liability insurance and excess liability
coverage that provide coverage in the event that a claim is brought against us alleging negligence,
product liability or similar legal theories. Each of these policies provides coverage on an “occurrence”
basis and has certain exclusions from coverage. Our insurance policies must be renewed annually.

Available Informatlon

We maintain a website at www.alliedhealthcare.com. The contents of our website are not part of,
nor are they incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We make available through our website our annual reports on Form 10-K and amendments
thereto, but we do not make available on or through our website our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q
or our current reports on Form 8-K, or amendments thereto, because those reports are readily
available to the public on the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website at www.sec.gov. We do
provide paper copies of our 10-Ks, 10-Qs and 8-Ks free of charge upon request.

11




RISK FACTORS

Our business is subJect to many risks that may negatively affect our busmess financial condition
and/or results of operations.

Rlsks Relatmg to. Our Business and Strategy

I o . t <
If we are unable to attract and retain healthcare staff at reasonable costs, it could increase our operating
costs and negatively impact our business.

We rely significantly on our ability to attract and retain nurses, nurses aides and home health
aides who possess the skills, experience and, if required, licenses necessary to meet the requirements
of our customers. We competé for flexible Kealthcare staffing personnel with other flexible healthcare
staffing companies and with hospitals and healthcare facilities. Staff choose to work for a temporary
healthcare staffing company based on the quantity, diversity and quality of assignments offered and on
compensation packages and other benefits. We.must continually evaluate and upgrade our. flexible
staffing network to keep pace with our custemers’ needs and to remain competitive in our business.
Currently, there is a shortage of nurses, nurses aides and home health aides in most areas of the
United Kingdom. Competition for such:personnel is increasing and salaries and benefits have risen.
We may be unable to continue to increase the number of nurses and other healthcare staff that we.
recruit, decreasing the potential for growth of .our business. Qur ability to attract and retain nurses
and other healthcare staff depends on several factors, including our,ability to provide them with
assignments that they view as attractive and to provide them with competitive benefits and wages. We
cannot assure you that we will be successful in any of these areas. The cost of attracting nurses and
other healthcare staff and providing them with attractive benefit packages may be higher than we .
anticipate and,-as a result, if we.are unable to pass these costs on to our hospital, healthcare facility .
and other customers,. our profitability could decline. Moreover, if we are unable to attract and retain
nurses and other healthcare staff, our ability to provide adequate services to our customers may
decline and, as a result, we could lose customers. :

We operate m a hzghly competmve market and our success depends on our abzlzty to obtain and retam
customers. -

The ﬂex1ble healthcare stafﬁng busmess is hlghly competmve We compete in national, reglonal
and local markets in the United Kingdom with full-service staffing companies, specialized flexible
staffing agencies, NHS Professionals, hospltals nursmg homes and other home healthcare businesses.
There are relatively few bamers to entry in the markets we serve and, historically, our industry has
been hlghly fragménted. While we expect to continue to face competition from a broad range of
companies, the recent consolidation trend in our industry is likely to result in an increase in the
number of larger companies that are able to service regional or national markets. Some of our
competitors have greater name recognition, access to capital and marketing, financial and other
resources than we do. We believe that the primary competitive factors in obtaining and retaining
customers are identifying qualified healthcare staff for specific job requirements, providing qualified
staff in'a.timely manner, pricing'services competitively and effectively monitoring job performance.
Competitioni for customers may increase in the future and, as a result we may not be able to remain
competitive. To the extent competitors seek to gain or retain market share by reducing prices or
increasing marketing expenditures, we could lose revenues or hospital, healthcare facility and other
customers and our margins could decline, which could harm our operating results. In addition, the
development of alternative recruitment channels could lead -our hospital, healthcare facility and other
customers to bypass our services, which would also cause our.revenues and margins to decline.

Our focus on the per diem market may bea competitive disadvantage.

Unlike many other healthcare‘st_afﬁng businesses in the United Kingdom, we have actively
pursued business in the per diem market rather than through long-term contracts. Although we -
believe that current and forecasted healthcare staff shertages will continue to fuel demand for staff in
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the per diem market, a change in the supply and demand dynamics for healthcare workers could
result in business derived from long-term contracts becoming more attractive. In particular, the award
of long-term contracts to our competitors (thereby granting “lead” supplier status to such competitors)
could prévent us from securing the business of potential purchasers of temporary healthcare staffing.

A change in treatment of ﬂexzble staﬁ‘ for U. K tax, employment and benefits purposes could result in
increased costs. , :

Like all E:mployment businesses, we are exposed to potential employment related claims from
independent contractors who assert that they are employees. We currently treat our nurses and nurses
aides as independent contractors, but this position could change if challenged in an employment
tribunal or court. A recent tribunal case relating to agency workers indicated that agency workers are
highly likely to be the employee of either the agency that places them or the customer at which they
are placed, depending on the circumstances. If our nurses and nurses aides are treated as employees,
they would become eligible to bring employment-related litigation, including actions for unfair
dismissal, wrongful dismissal and breach of contract and claims for severance payments. These claims
could adversely affect our business and financial condition:

Competition for acquisition opportunities may restrict our future growth by limiting our ability to make
acquisitions at reasonable valuations.

Our business strategy includes increasing our market share and presence in the flexible healthcare
staffing industry through strategic acquisitions of companies that complement or enhance our business.
We have historically faced competition for acquisitions. In the future, this competition could limit our
ability to grow by acquisitions or could raise the prices of acquisitions and make them less attractive
to us.

Restrictive covenants in our debt facilities may limit our abzlzty to make acqutsztzons

Restrictive covenants in our senior credit facility, mcludmg a requirement that we obtain bank
and lender consent for acquisitions exceeding £10 million in the aggregate in any fiscal year or any
individual acquisition exceeding £2 million in any fiscal year, may limit our ability to complete
desirable acquisitions. If we are unable to secure necessary financing under our senior credit facility
because of these restrictive covenants.or from other sources, we may be unable to complete desirable
acquisitions.

We may face difficulties integrating our acquisitions into our operations and our acquisitions may be
unsuccessful, involve significant cash expenditures, expose us to unforeseen liabilities or result in dilution
of our shareholders’ interest in our company.

We expect to continue pursuing acquisitions of flexible healthcare staffing compames that
complement or enhance our business.

These acqulsmons involve numerous risks, 1nclud1ng
o difficulties integrating acquired personnel and distinct cultures into our business;

¢ difficulties integrating acquired companies into our operating, financial planning and financial
reporting systems;
¢ potential loss of key employees or customers of acquired ¢ompanies;

* diversion of management attention from existing operations; and

¢ assumption of liabilities and exposure to unforeseen liabilities of acquired companies,
including liabilities for their failure to comply with healthcare regulations.

These acquisitions may also involve significant cash expendltures debt incurrence and integration
expenses that could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
In addition, if we issue additional securities in connection with an acquisition, the ownership interests
of our existing securityholders will be diluted. Any acquisition may uvltimately have a negative impact
.on our business and financial condition.
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Our ability to acquire businesses outside the United Kzngdom including in-the United States is ltmzted
by .our senior credit facility.

In the future, we may acquire one or more healthcare staffing businesses in the United States, if
the opportunity arises and if we believe that the terms of such acquisition would be favorable to us.
Our senior credit facility permits us, subject to compliance with the provisions thereof, to borrow
money to finance acquisitions in the United Kingdom. However, we do not have any credit
arrangements in place which permit us to finance acquisitions in the United States and there can be
no assurance that we will be able to obtain such credit on favorable terims or at all. Moreover, because
our senior credit facility does not permit our U.K. subsidiaries to pay dividends or otherwise advance
funds to us, we do not expect to have sufficient cash on hand to finance acquisitions in the United
States. In the event that we are unable to finance acquisitions in the United States with either cash or
stock, our ability to acquire businesses in the United States will be severely restricted.

Our decentralized structure could result in unforeseen costs and could adversely impact our business.

We operate with a decentralized structure under which our branches operate on a relatively.
autonomous basis in terms of the recruitment and placement of staff and the marketing of customers.
However, we generally maintain centralized management control in the areas of payroll, accounts
receivable, contracts, pricing, regulatory matters, quality control and information technology. If we fail
to exert proper centralized management control, our local branches could engage in unauthorized
activities, our management initiatives may not be successfully implemented and our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

We may fail to adequately mahage our anticipated future growth.

We have achieved growth in our flexible healthcare staffing business over the last few years
through both organic growth and strategic acquisitions of companies. We intend to continue to expand
in the future. As we grow, there will be increased demands on our management and on our -
operational and administrative systems, controls and other resources. There can be no assurance that
our existing personnel, systems, procedures or controls will be adequate to support our operations in
the future or that we will be able to successfully implement appropriate measures consistent with our
growth strategy. We also may be required to add staff and information and other systems. We cannot’
guarantee that we will be able to do so or, if we are able to do so, that we will be able to effectively
integrate them into our existing staff and systems.

The loss of key senior managément personnel could adversely affect our ability' to remain competitive.

We rely heavily on our senior management team, led by Timothy M. Aitken, our chairman of the
board and chief executive officer, and Charles F. Murphy, our chief financial officer. We have entered
into an employment agreement with Mr. Aitken that expires in September 2006, subject to automatic
renewal for successive periods of one year each unless terminated by either party on 90 days’ notice,
and an employment agreement with Mr. Murphy that is terminable by either party on six months’
notice. The loss or unavailability for an extended period of time of these officers could have a
material adverse effect on our operations and prospects. :

We are dependent on the proper functioning of our information systems.

We are dependent on the proper functioning of our information systems in operating our
business. Our operations have an IT disaster recovery plan. However, they are still vulnerable to fire,
storm, flood, power loss, telecommunications failures, physical or software break-ins and similar
events. If critical information systems fail or are otherwise unavailable, these -functions would have to
be accomplished manually, which could temporarily impact our ability to identify business
opportunities quickly, to maintain billing and clinical records reliably, to bill for services efficiently and
to maintain our accounting and financial reportmg effectively.

In fiscal 2005 we 1mplemented a new computerized accounting and.payroll system and in fiscal
2006 we plan to implement further improvements. Next year’s improvements will predominately target
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our branch network. There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfully implement our
plans or that any such improvements will deliver the expected benefits.

QOur business s subject to certain risks inherent to international operations.
We operate in the United Kingdom. As a result, we are subject to a variety of risks, including:
e fluctuations in currency exchange rates;
. yérying laws relating to, among other things, employment and employment termination;
* the impact of a recession in the United Kingdom;
. changes in regﬁlatory requirements; and
* potentially adverse tax consequences.

These risks-maiy materially and adversely affect our business results of operations or financial
condition. ‘

Risks Relating' to the Flexible Healthcare Staffing Market

Demand for flexible staffing may fail to rise, remain at current levels or may decline for a variety of
reasons, including general economic conditions.

Although we anticipate that the market for flexible staffing in the healthcare sector will continue
to expand, there can be no assurance that growth will occur at all or continue at historic rates or at
the rate currently expected. Qur growth could be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including
emphasis on permanent staff and minimization of the use of temporary staff by healthcare providers
and automation or computerization of services traditionally performed by temporary staff providers.
In the last few years, a U.K. case on agency workers indicated that agency workers are highly likely to
be considered employees of either the agency that places them or the customer end-user (and in many
cases the customer is likely to be considered the employer). Consequently, some of the advantages to
hospitals and other purchasers to using temporary workers may be lost because of the risk that they
will be deemed to be the employer of such workers, and therefore they may decide to hire permanent
staff rather than temporary staff. In addition, demand for flexible healthcare staffing services may be
significantly affected by the general level of economic activity and economic conditions in the regions
in which we operate.

If demand for temporary staffing in the healthcare sector generally declines or does not increase
at the rate we anticipate, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected.

Fluctuations in patient occupancy at the hospitals, nursing homes and care homes of our customers may
adversely affect the demand for our services and therefore our financial performance.

Demand for our flexible healthcare staff is significantly affected by the general level of patient
occupancy at the hospitals, nursing homes and care homes of our customers. When occupancy
increases, temporary employees are often added before full-time employees are hired. As occupancy
decreases, healthcare facility customers typically will reduce their use of temporary employees before
undertaking layoffs of their regular employees. In addition, we may experience more competitive
pricing pressure during periods of occupancy downturn. Occupancy at our healthcare customers’
facilities also fluctuates due to the seasonality of some elective procedures. We are unable to predict
the level of patient occupancy at any particular time and its effect on our revenues and earnings.

We operate in a regulated industry and violations of laws or regulations may result in increased costs or
sanctions that could impact our financial performance. Moreover, recent and proposed changes in UK.
regulations affecting flexible staffing companies may result in increased costs that reduce our revenue
and profitability. ’ '

Our business is subject to extensive and complex laws and regulations in the United Kingdom.
These include, but are not limited to, laws and regulations related to licensing, conduct of operations,
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payment for services and referrals; benefits payable to temporary staffers and taxation. If we fail to: .
comply with the laws and regulations that are applicable to our business, we could suffer civil and/or
criminal penalties or we could be required to stop operatmg in one or more ]ur1sd1ct10ns

Moreover, many political, economic and regulatory organizations are supporting fundamental
change in the UK. healthcare industry. The recent infroduction of new regulatory provisions in the
United Kingdom affecting flexible staffing companies could substantially raise the costs associated with
operating our business. Some proposed changes in these regulations could have a similar effect. We
may not be able to pass along to our custortiers the costs of implementing any ¢hanges-that result
from these new and changed laws and regulations. See “Item 1 — Business — Governmental
Regulation” for a summary of the material existing and proposed regulations affecting our business.

t

NHS reforms may have a substantial negative impact upon, us.

For our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, the. more than 200 NHS hospitals to which we
supplied staff accounted for 37.6% of our flexible staffing business revenue. Flexible staffing providers,
such as our company, are subject to the risk that the NHS will seek to regulate the price it pays for
temporary staff, reduce its use of temporary ‘staff-or replace its use of temporary staff where possible
with permanent employees. ; ,

One initiative undertaken by the NHS is the requirement that agencies wishing to supply it W1th
temporary staff enter into Framework Agreements. It is likely that a long-term effect of the
Framework Agreements ‘will be to reduce the cost of commissions paid to healthcare staffing
compames and/or to reduce the number of healthcare staffing companies supplymg staff to the NHS

- -Another initiative undertaken by the NHS is its creation of NHS Professionals..NHS
Professionals is an internal agency of the NHS that seeks to provide an-efficient temporary staffing
service for NHS hospitals. NHS Professionals seeks to coordinate nurse banks operated by NHS
hospitals with 'the intention of maintaining quality standards 4nd controlling cost across all NHS nurse
banks. The contmued expansron of the NHS Professronals could adversely affect our revenues in the
future, - : . . , -

If. the NHS were to 51gn1ﬁcantly reduce 1ts use of our services, negotiate lower prices or change 1ts
policy on prlvate-sector involvement, it could have a material. adverse effect on our business, ﬁnanc1al
condition and results of operations.

Our ability to compete in the homecare services market depends on our: abzlzty to'obtain asszgnments
from local governmental social service a’epartments :

The largest providers of homecare serv1ces in the United Kingdom are local governmental social
services departments-and NHS Primary Care Trusts. Outsourcing: of homecare by these bodies is the -
principal source of revenue and growth in the homecare staffing market. Though figures.vary widely .
among local governments, homecare prov1ded directly by the local governments typically is
srgnlﬁcantly more expensive per hour of care than homecare outsourced to independent homecare
providers. While we believe there is potentral for further outsourcmg of homecare by local ’
governments, this potentla] may be partially offset by tighter local governmental budgets. Moreover
there can be no assurance that we will be chosen by local governmental social service departments to
provide outsourced homecare servicés in the future or that we will be able to recruit ‘and retam
homecare staff at hourly rates that local governments are wrlhng to pay

Significant legal actions'could suibject s to substantial uninsured liizbilities

"In recent years, healthcare providers have become subject to an 1ncreasrng number of legal ~
actions alleging medical malpractice, négligent h1r1ng, product liability or‘other legal theories. Many of
these actions involve large claims and significant defense costs. In addition, we may be subject to civil
or criminal claims arising from actions taken by our employees or temporary staffing personnel, such
as misuse of proprietary information or theft of property. In some instances, we are required to
indemnify customers against some or all of these risks. A failure of any of our-employees:or personnel
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to observe our policies and guidelines intended to reduce these risks, relevant customer policies and
guidelines or applicable laws, rules and regulations could result in negative publicity, payment of fines
or other damages. In addition, breaches of the Care Standards Act 2000 and associated regulations
could result in the revocation of registration or the imposition of conditions on that reglstratlon that
could adversely effect the continuation of our business in the United Kingdom. Litigation is costly
and, even if we do prevail, the cost of such litigation could adversely affect our consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, in the course of our operations we may face possible claims by employees or
employee candidates of discrimination or harassment (including for actions our customers or their
employees may have taken), violations of health and safety regulations, workers compensation claims,
retroactive entitlement to benefits and other similar claims.

T

Our insurance may not be adequate to protect us from claims for which we may become liable.

To protect ourselves from the cost of claims alleging medical malpractice or other causes of
action, we maintain malpractice liability insurance and general liability insurance coverage in amounts
and with deductibles that we believe are appropriate for our operations. While we have been able to
obtain liability insurance in the past, this insurance varies in cost, is difficult to obtain and may not be
available in the future on terms acceptable to us, if it is available at all. The failure to maintain
insurance coverage or a successful claim not covered by or in excess of our insurance coverage could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, cash flows or results of operations.
In addition, claims, regardless of their merit or eventual outcome, may have a material adverse effect
on.our reputation.

Risks ‘I\{élat‘ing to Our Financial Condition

We havé generated Substantial amounts of goodwill from our acquisitions, some or all of which we may
be required to write off, which could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.

Goodwill represents the purchase price of an acquisition less the fair value of the net tangible and
intangible assets acquired. We have generated substantial amounts of goodwill from our acquisitions.
Part, of our strategy involves making additional acquisitions. Because businesses of the type we target
often do not have substantial tangible assets, we expect that our acquisition of these businesses will
continue to generate significant amounts of goodwill.

At September 30, 2005 we had goodwill of approx1mately $217. 0 mllhon which equa]ed
approximately 71. 5% of our total assets at that date.

In accordance w1th Statement of Financial Accountmg Standards No 142 “Goodwill and OIher
Intangible Assets,” (“FAS No. 142”) issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, all goodwill
and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer subject to amortization, but will be
subject to an annual impairment test. We evaluate, on a regular basis, whether events or circumstances
have occurred that indicate all, or a portion, of the carrying amount of goodwill may no longer be
recoverable, in which case an impairment charge to our earnings would become necessary. As of
September 30, 2005, the carrying value of our goodwill was not impaired, based on an assessment
performed iri accordance with FAS No. 142. However, any future determination requiring the write-off
of a significant portion of the carrying value of our goodwill could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition or results of operations. It could also cause us to fail to comply with the
financial covenants in our senior credit facility, resulting in an event of default thereunder.

We have incurred significant debt, which could impact our financial condition and results of operations.
In the event of a payment default under our senior credit facility, our lenders have the right, among
others, to seize our assets.

At September 30, 2005, we had approximately $64.3 million of debt under our senior credit
facility. The level of our indebtedness will have several important effects on our future operations,
including, without limitation:
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e we will use a portion of cash flow from operations for the payment of principal or interest due
on outstanding indebtedness;

* outstanding indebtedness and leverage will increase the imnact of negative changes in general
economic and industry conditions, as well as competitive pressures; and

* the level of outstanding debt may affect our ability to obtain additional financing for working*
capital, capital expenditures, additional acquisitions or general corporate purposes.

General economic conditions, industry cycle and financial, business and other factors affecting
operations, many of which are beyond our control, may affect future performance. As a result, these -
and other factors may affect our ability to make principal and interest payments on indebtedness.' Our
business might not continue to generate cash flow at or above current levels. If we cannot generate
sufficient cash flow from operations in the future to service our debt, we may, among other thlngs

» seek additional financing in the debt or equity markets;

. reﬁnance or restructure all or a portion of our indebtednes§;
* sell selected assets; or

. reduce or delay planned capital expenditures or acqulsmons

These measures might not be sufficient to enable us to service our debt. In addmon any o
financing, refinancing or sale of assets might not be available on economically favorable terms or at
all. ‘ : .

If we are unable to repay our indebtedness when it becomes due, our lenders will have a number
of remedies. Our senior credit facility is secured by substantially all of the assets of, and the shares in,
our UK. subsidiaries. If we fail to pay our debt under our senior credit facility, which amounted to
$64.3 million at September 30, 2005, the lenders thereunder could become the owner of, or force the
sale of, our businesses or subsidiaries. - '

Our compliance with restrictions and covenants in our senior credit facility may limit our ability to take
corporate actions and harm our busmess '

Our senior credit facility contains a number of covenants that significantly restrict our operations,
our ability to issue additional debt and our ability to pay dividends. Under these agreements we are
also required to comply with specific financial ratios and tests, including a fixed charge coverage ratio,
a test regarding debtor days (i.e., the number of days sales are.outstanding) and an interest coverage
ratio. We may not be able to comply in the future with these covenants or restrictions as a result of
events beyond our control, such as prevailing economic, financial and industry conditions. If we
default in the performance of the covenants in our senior credit facility, our lendeis could, in addition
to seizing the collateral securing our obligations, declare all of the principal and interest outstanding
due and payable and terminate their commitments to extend credit to us in the future. We may '
refinance these agreements or seek alternative credit agreements. We cannot guarantee that we will be
able to secure new credit agreements on favorable terms or at all. If we are unable to secure credit on
commercially reasonable terms in the future, our business could be harmed. ’

Our lenders have limited the right'of our U.K. subsidiaries to pay dividends to our company.

At September 30, 2005, we had approximately $64.3 million of debt under our senior credit
facility. Our subsidiaries pay us a management fee, with which we pay the expenses of our corporate
headquarters and our-executive officers. However, under the terms of our senior credit facility, our
U.K. subsidiaries generally may not pay dividends. Therefore, we will not be able to use the cash flow
or profits, if any, of our UK. subsidiaries to finance acquisitions, capital expenditures or other
initiatives.

Our ability to use our net operating loss carryforward in the future is limited.

As of September 30, 2005, we had a U.S. federal net operating loss carryforward of
approximately $76.6 million, expiring between 2019 and 2023. Our current operations are in the
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United Kingdom. Under U.S. federal tax law, we can only offset our federal net operating loss
carryforward against U.S. taxable income, including income earned from operations in the United
States and certain other income, including dividends from our U.K. subsidiaries. As of September 30,
2005, we had recorded a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset created by the U.S.
federal net operating loss carryforward as we did not believe it was more likely than not that such
losses would be utilized prior to their éxpiration. Our public offering in July 2004 of shares of our
common stock caused an ownership change under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended. Accordingly, Section 382 limits our ability to use our net operating loss carryforward in
the future. An inability to use a significant portion of our federal net operating loss carryforward
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

We have significant contingent earn-out liabilities that may adversely affect our financial condition and
results of operations. '

Many of our acquisitions contain contingent earn-out provisions that may require us to make
additional payments in the future. Under our existing earn-out arrangements, our maximum aggregate
potential contingent obligation at September 30, 2005 was approximately $12.5 million. Our existing
earn-out obligations expire in fiscal 2007. We may enter into acquisition agreements in the future, the
terms of which may include earn-out provisions.

These contingent obligations could adversely affect our results of operations and liquidity.

We face greater costs in complying with the increasing regulation of corporate governance and
disclosure standards.

We are spending an increased amount of management time and external resources to comply with
changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure,
‘including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations and Nasdaq Stock Market rules. In
particular, Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires management’s annual review and
evaluation of our internal control systems, and attestations of the effectiveness of these systems by
both management and our independent auditors. This process for fiscal 2005 resulted in additional
accounting and legal expenses. There can be no assurance that these additional expenses will not
continue to impact our results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

Future sales of our common stock by existing shareholders may lower the price of our common stock.
As of November 22, 2005, we had 44,855,772 shares of common stock outstanding.

In addition, as of November 22, 2005, our officers, directors, employees and consultants own
options to acquire an aggregate of 2,610,334 shares of common stock under our 1992 Stock Option
Plan and our 2002 Stock Option Plan. Although we will not issue any more options under our 1992
Stock Option Plan, we may issue additional options under our 2002 Stock Option Plan. The shares of
common stock to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under our 1992 Stock Option Plan
and our 2002 Stock Option Plan have been registered and may be freely sold when issued. We have
also issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 350,000 shares of our common stock to a third party.
We have granted the holder of these warrants certain “piggyback™ registration rights with respect to
the shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants.

Pursuant to a registration statement that was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange
Commission in August 2002, we have registered the resale of an aggregate of 23,479,157 shares of our
common stock. '

Sales of substantial amounts of common stock into the public market could lower the market
price of our common stock.

Because a small group of shareholders may control our common stock, other investors may have little
or no control over our company or our management. '

As of November 22, 2005, the four Hyperion funds that are shareholders in our company
collectively own approximately 26.7% of our outstanding shares of common stock and Washington &
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Congress Capital Partners, L.P..owns approximately 17.2% of our outstanding shares of common stock.
As a result, these shareholders acting together may be able to exercise control over all matters
requiring shareholder approval, including the election of directors and .approval of significant -
corporate transactions. :

If provisions in our cprporate documents and New York law delay or prevent a change in control of our
company, we may be unable to consummate a transaction that our shareholders consider favorable..

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws.may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or
acquisition’ involving 'us that our shareholders may consider favorable. For example, our certificate of
incorporation authorizes our boaid of directors to issue up to ten million shares of “blank check”
preferred stock. Without shareholder approyal, the board of directors has the authority to attach
special rights, including voting and dividend rights, to these shares of preferred stock. With these -
rights, preferred shareholders could make it more difficuit for a third party to acquire us. New York
law may also’ d1scourage delay or prevent someone from acquiring or merging with us.

Under‘the employment agreements we have entered into.with Timothy M. Aitken, our chief
executive officer, we are required to pay Mr. -Aitken an amount equal to 2.9 times his salary if his
employment with us is terminated for any reason within six months of a change in control of our
company. Such change of control payment may have the effect of preventing or delaying a change of
control of our company, even if the change of control was favorecl by our shareholders.

s,

Our stock price may be volattle

In recent years, the stock market has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that
are often unrelated-to the operating performance of specific companies. Qur market price may -
ﬂuctuate based orl a number- of factors, 1nclud1ng :

e our operatmg performance and the performance of other similar companles
* news announcements relatmg to us, our.industry'or our competitors; ..

e changes in ea'rlfings‘esti‘mates‘ or recommendations by fesearch 'ana]ysts;

» changes in general economic conditions;

* the number of shares that are publicly traded;

e actions of our current shareholders}; and '

* other developments affecting us, our industry or, our competitors.

Ttem 2. Propertles

We lease 118 facﬂmes in the Umted ngdom of which 35 are f.or aperiod of three- months or
less. We lease our corporate headquarters in the United States. We believe that our existing leases will
be renegotiated as they expire or that alternative properties can be leased on acceptable terms. We
also believe that our present facilities are well maintained and are suitable for continuing our existing
operations. (See “Operating Leases” in Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for our
fiscal year ended September 30,'2005.) .

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various other legal proceedings and claims incidental to our normal business .
activities. We are vigorously defending our position in all such proceedings. We believe that these
matters should not have ‘a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial posmon cash ﬁows
or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securify, Holders.

No matters were submitted to a.vote of our security holders during the fourth-quarter of our
fiscal year-ended September 30, 2005. : ‘ :
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities.

Since February 23, 2004 our common stock has traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the
symbol “AHCIL.” From April 30, 1999 until February 20, 2004, our common stock traded on the
American Stock Exchange. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low
sales price of our common stock, as reported by the Nasdaq National Market or the American Stock
Exchange, as appropriate: i

PERIOD ' HIGH LOW
Year Ended September 30, 2004: R
First Quarter ..o .. P $ 6.46 $3.88
Second Quarter................ .. oo, 1070 , 615
Third Quarter .................. F 988 . 441
Fourth Quarter ......... ... ... ... ... .... e 5.90 4.19 .

" Year Ended September 30, 2005: S

CFIrst QUATtEr « oo oot $ 597 $4.85
Second Quarter............ ... .. i, . 687 517 v
Third Quarter ................ P s 7.27 5.64
Fourth QUATEer .. .......oveniiieieeeaeeennn. L7500 490
Year Ended September 30, 2006:
First Quarter (through November 22, 2005). .. ... P $ 6.60 $s. 60

We have neither declared nor paid any dividends on our common stock and do not ant1c1pate
paying dividends on our'common stock in the foreseeable future. Any future payment of dividends
will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend upon, among other things, our
earnings, financial position, cash flows, capital requirements and other relevant considerations,’
including the extent of our indebtedness and any contractual restrictions with respect to the payment
of dividends. '

Under the terms of our senior credit facility, our U K. subsidiaries generally are prohibited from
paying dividends or making other cash distributions to us. See “Item 7—Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital
Resources—Borrowings—General.”

As of November 22, 2005, there were approximately 180 shareholders of record of our’common
stock. This number does not include shareholders who hold their shares through one or more
intermediaries, such as banks, brokers or depositaries.

Equity Compensation Plan Informatlon

For certain information concerning securities authorized for issuance under our equity
compensation plans, see “Item 12—Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters—Equity Compensation Plan Information.”

Recent Repurchases of Equify Securities
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we did not repurchase any of our equity securities.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth our.selected consolidated financial information. The financial
information for the years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and as of September 30, 2005 and
2004 is derived from audited financial statements that appear elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The

-financial information for the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001 and as of September 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001 is derived from audited financial statements that do not appear in this Form 10-K.
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~ You should read the following information in conjunction with our financial statements and notes
thereto and the information set forth under “Item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” ' '

All data in the following table is in thousands, except for per share data.

Financial Data:

Total revenues. . ............ e
Grossprofit.......... ... ...,
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . .

General and administrative expense related
to mail-order operations .. ...............

Losses due to sale of subsidiary . ............

Operating income (1oss) ...................
Interest and other expense, net. . ............
Gain on settlement of PIK interest...........
Foreign exchangeloss.....................
Provision for income taxes™™ ...............

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . ...
Income from discontinued operations. . ..... ..

Net income (loss) . ..........cvvveenen..n.

Redeemable preferred dividend, conversion
fees and accretion®

Net income (loss) available to common
. stockholders.......... PN

Basic income (loss) per share of common stock
from: .
Continuing operations . . . ................
Discontinued operations .................

- Diluted income (loss) per share of common
stock from: ' '
Continuing operations . . . ................
Discontinued operations . ................

Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding:

Basic ... .

Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital
Accounts receivable,net............. .. ...,
Goodwill ......... ... .. i

Year Ended September 30,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
$351,180  $325,298  $294379  $242828  $138,041
103,671 93,171 81,323 66,079 42,491
73,9483 63,544 53,648 48,847 32514
_ _ —_— — 3,883

— — — — 354
29,723 29,627 27,675 17232 5,740
4,164 13,727® 11,279 13,4726 8,433
— — — (5,143%" —

98 184 18 19 400
6,725 5,847 4,910 4971 24,117
— — — 120 22
18,736 9,869 11,468 3,793 (27.232)
— — 503 1,001 620
18,736 9,869 11,971 4,794 (26,612)
— 7,020 4,005 1,016 —
$18736 $ 2849 $ 796 $ 3,778 $(26,612)
$ 042 $ 010 $ 034 § 015 -$ (1.5
— — 0.02 0.05 0.04
$ 04 $§ 010 $ 03 $§ 020 § (153)
$ 041 $ 010 $ 034 $§ 015 $ (157)
— — 0.02 005 004
$ 041 $ 010 $ 036 $ 020 $ (153)
44,684 27,419 21,962 18,565 17,408
45,169 28,104 22,304 18,932 17,408

September 30,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
$ 11,369  § 13468  $ 24,781 $ 25918  § 25178
33,443 31,263 35,745 32,113 27,888
216,984 206,110 183,703 123,514 105,542
303,439 282,394 311,668 268,113 248,073
64,342 64,778 165,378 148,530 180,781
201,859 186,977 75,163 53,943 36,354
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(1) Prior-to 2001, we had been committed to implementing tax strategies that provided for the
sale of appreciated assets, including a portion of our ownership interest in our U.K.
subsidiaries, to generate sufficient taxable income to realize our U.S tax net operating losses
prior to their expiration. While we believed that we would realize the value of our tax losses,
developments in 2001, including the continued expansion of our U.K. operations, had '
increased the uncertainty as.to both the execution of the original strategy and the
appropriateness of a tax strategy that may not align with our current business strategy. These
uncertainties impaired our ability to determine whether it was more likely than not that our
deferred tax assets would be realized. Accordingly, in fiscal 2001, a full valuation allowance
for all remaining U.S. deferred tax assets was provided.

) Reflects the accrual of dividends on our Series A preferred stock and accretion costs related
to the issuance of our Series A preferred stock in our fiscal 2002 corporate reorganization. In
addition, fiscal 2004 includes conversion fees of $2.0 million paid to the holders of our Series
A preferred stock in connection with the firm commitment follow-on public offering of
14,500,000 shares of our common stock and write-off of $1.7 million of the remaining
issuance costs.

3) Includes a $1.1 million charge related to the reorganization of our U.K. subsidiaries, as well
as $1.0 million of costs associated with the launch of our new corporate logo.

(4) - For the year ended September 30, 2004, we recorded a charge of $4.2 milkion related to the
: write-off of deferred financing fees and unamortized debt discount associated with a

recapitalization plan, undertaken in connection with fiscal 2004 public offering of 14,500,000
shares of our common stock, pursuant to which we (i) refinanced our senior collateralized
term and revolving credit facility (the “Former Senior Credit Facility”’) and mezzanine
indebtedness (the ‘““Mezzanine Loan”), both of which had been entered into in December
1999, and (ii) converted all of our then outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock into
shares of our common stock. »

5) For the year ended September 30, 2002, we recorded a non-cash charge of $4.2 million for
the issuance of shares of common stock to senior management and $1.6 million related to the
exchange of employees’ redeemable shares in our U.K subsidiary for shares of our common
stock, using the net exercise method, in our fiscal 2002 corporate reorganization. We also

. recorded a net charge of $0.7 million for the year ended September 30, 2002, which mainly
related to the write-off of non-capitalized costs incurred in connection with evaluating
options to maximize the value of our ownership interest in our UK. operatlons

(6) Effective October 1, 2001, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145,
which addressed gain or loss on the extinguishment of debt and sale-leaseback accounting for
certain lease modifications and accordingly recorded a charge of $O 9 million in 1nterest
expense for the year ended September 30, 2002.

@) ' In the fiscal 2002 corporate reorgamzatlon accrued and unpaid interest owed to the holders
of notes issued by one of our U.K. subsidiaries was satisfied by the issuance of shares of our
common stock. We recorded a gain of $5.1 million for. the year ended September 30, 2002 in
connection with this transaction.

Item 7. Managemeht’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

General

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in conjunction with the
description of our business included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. It is intended to assist the
reader in understanding and evaluating our financial position. This discussion contains, in addition to
historical information, forward-looking statements that involve.risks and uncertainty. Our actual
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results could differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors
that could cause or contribute to such differences include those discussed in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K under “Forward-Looking Statements.” . :

"Weare a leading provider of flexible, or temporary, healthcare staffing to the U.K. healthcare
industry as measured by revenues, market share and number of staff. As of September 30, 2005 we
operated an integrated network 'of approximately 115 branches throughout most of the United
Kingdom. Our healthcare staff consists principally of nurses, nurses aides and home health aides. We
focus on placing our staff on a per diem basis in hospitals, nursrng homes, care homes and private
homes. We maintain a pool of over 22,000 nurses, nurses aides and home health aides. We also supply
medical-grade oxygen for use in respiratory therapy to the U.K. pharmacy market and Northern
Ireland and oxygen concentrators to customers in Northern Ireland.

‘We have engaged in an ongoing series of activities to strengthen our organizational structure and
reposition us for future growth. These actions have included a reorganization in branch structure,
adopting and implementing a new corporate 1dent1ty and investing in a new IT system. We continually
review our operations in order to improve operatmg efficiencies and to be responsive to changing
market conditions.

The introduction and further extension of the NHS Framework Agreements has continued to
impact our financial results by reducing our margins from that source of business. In addition, we have
experienced reduced revenues from the NHS as a result of the NHS Framework Agreements as well
as the efforts of the NHS to source more of its work from its own employee base and its-in-house
agency (NHS Professionals). :

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the Unites States of America requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosures in a given reporting
period. We believe the following accounting policies are critical areas affecting our financial condition
and results of operations where estimates are requxred

Accozmts Receivable . : ‘ o

We are required to estimate the collectibility of our accounts recéivables, which requires a
considerable amount of judgment in assessing the ultimate realization of these receivables, including
the ‘current credit-worthiness of each customer. Significant changes in required reserves may occur in
the future as’ we contmue to expand our busrness and as conditions in the marketplace change

Intangzble Assets

‘We have srgmﬁcant amounts of goodwill and other 1ntang1ble assets. The determination of
whether or not goodwill has become impaired involves a significant amount of judgment. Changes in
strategy and/or market conditions could significantly impact these judgments and require adjustments
to recorded amounts of goodwill. We have recorded goodwill and separately identifiable intangible
assets resultlng from our acquisitions through September 30, 2005. Goodwill'is tested for impairmeni
annually in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. A 'more frequent evaluation will be performed if
indicators of 1mpa1rment are present. We completed the annual 1mpa1rment test of goodwill during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 and determined that there was no impairment to our goodwill balance.
The calculation of fair value used for an impairment test includes a number of estimates and
assumptions, including future income and cash flow projections, the identification of appropriate
market multiples and the choice of an appropriate discount rate. If we are required to record.an
impairment charge in the future, it could have an adverse 1rnpact on our consolidated ﬁnancral
posrtlon or results of operations. ' : ‘

Deferred Income .Taxes

We account for deferred income taxes based upon differences between the financial reporting and
income tax bases of our assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to
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reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to-be realized. The-determination of whether or.
not valuation allowances are required to be recorded involves significant estimates regarding the .
future profitability of our company, as well as potentlal tax strategres for the utlhzatron of net loss and
operatmg loss carryforwards e . Co : JENEIR :

Contzngenczes O . T LRI 5

Related to our acqu1s1t10ns of certarn flexible stafﬁng agencres ‘we have entered mto agreements
to pay additional amounts, in cash in the. form of contingent consrderatlon dependent, upon future
earnings of such acqurred entities. : :

Also, we are involved in various legal proceedings and claims incidental to our normal business
activities. We are required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgnients or outcomes to these
matters as well as potential ranges of probable losses.-A determination. of the.amount of .reserves
required, if any, for these contingencies are made after careful analysis of each:individual issue. The .
required reserves - may change 1in the future due to new developments:in each matter or changes in
approach such as a change in settlement strategy in deahng with these matters. - . - . .

Revenue Recognition

Patrent setvices and resprratory therapy revenues are recognrzed ‘when servrces are performed and
substantiated by proper documentation. For patlent servrces whrch are billed.at fixed rates and |
account for approxrmately 97% of our company’s business, Tevenue is recogmzed upon completron of
timesheets that also require the signature of the recipient of services. Revenues from the-rental -of,
home medical equipment are recognized over the rental period (typlcally on a month- to-month basis).
Revenues from the sale of oxygen and supphes for use in respiratory therapy are recognlzed ‘when
products are shipped, a contractual arrangement exrsts the sales prrce is’ erther ﬁxed or determmable
and collection is reasonably assured. e -

We receive a majority of our revenue from the NHS and other U.K. governmental payors.”.

Certain revenues are sub]ect to review: by third-party payors and adjustments if any, are recorded
when determrned

Purchase ACCounting

We account for our acquisitions as purchase business combrnatrons At acquisition, preliminary
values and useful lives are allocated based upon fair values that hiave been determined for assets
acquired and liabilities assumed and management’s best estimateés for values that have not-yet been
finalized. We obtain a third-party valuation in order to complete our purchase price allocations.
Accordingly, final asset and liability fair values as well as useful lives may differ from management’s
original estimates'and could have an adverse' 1mpact on our consohdated ﬁnanaal posmon or results
of operations. ' . : SR T e . .

Results of Operations
Year Ended September 30, 2005 vs. Year Ended September 30, 2004
Revenues

Total revenues for the year ended September 30, 2005 were $351.2 million compared to $325.3
million for the year eéndéd September 30, 2004, an increase of $25.9 million or 8.0%. This increase was
mainly due to acquisitions’in the social services sector (§22.7 mrlhon) and the favorable effects of
changes in forergn exchange ($10.9) million. This increase was offset by less demand and price
pressures arising from the extension of the NHS Framework Agreements. '

Gross Profit

Total gross profit increased by $10.5 million to $103.7 million for -the year ended September 30,
2005 from $93.2 million for the year ended September-30, 2004, an increase of 11.3%. The favorable
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effects.of changes in foreign exchange accounted for $3.2 million of the increase. As a percentage of
total revenue, gross: profit for the year ended September 30, 2005 increased to 29.5% from 28.6% for .
the comparable prior period. Gross margins for patient services increased (28.9% for the year ended
September 30, 2005 versus 28.2% for the comparable prior period), mainly due to management’s focus
on supplying healthcare staff to our higher margin customers and acquisitions being focused on higher
margin businesses, which offset the impact of lower margins of our NHS business. Gross margins in
respiratory, medical equipment and supplies sales increased (54.0% for the year ended September 30,
2005 versus 45.5% for the comparable prior period), mamly due to an increased focus on sales of
portable oxygen therapy equipment and a steady increase in the number of patients in Northern
Ireland, while keeping costs static.

Selhng General and Admrmstratlve Expenses b

Total selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $10.4 million to $73.9 million for
the ‘year ended September 30, 2005 from $63.5 million for the year ended September 30, 2004, an
increase of 16.4%. Changes in foreign exchange accounted for $2.2 million of this increase and
acquisitions a further $2.9 million. The remaining increase was mainly a result of exceptional
reorganization costs, including the launch of our new corporate logo ($2.1 million), increased
Sarbanes-Oxley expenses of $1.6 million (a signiﬁcant proportion of which are first-year set-up costs),
increased IT depreciation and maintenance costs arising from the implementation of new systems
($1.2 million) and $0.4 million of costs relating to closure of branches during the year. During fiscal
2004 we had exceptlonal compensatron charges of $1 9 million.

Interest Income

Total 1nterest income for the year ended September 30, 2005 was $0.2 million compared to $0. 9
million for the year ended ‘September 30, 2004, which represents a decrease of $0.7 million. The
decrease was attributable to a lower level of funds invested.

Interest Expense .

Total interest expense for the year ended September 30, 2005 was $4.2 million compared to $14.6
million for the year ended September 30, 2004, which represents a decrease of $10.4 million. This
decrease was principally attributable to reduced bank debt in fiscal 2005 and to the write-off of $4.2
million of deferred financing fees and unamortized debt discount associated with the refinancing of the
Former Senior Credit Facility in fiscal 2004. This decrease was partially offset by the recording of a
$0.5 million benefit related to the change in the fair value of our company’s interest rate cap and floor
collar agreement in fiscal 2004 and changes in foreign exchange of $0.2.

Other Exgense

Total other expense for the year ended September 30, 2005 was $0.2 million, which represents the
expense related to the change in the fair value of our interest swap agreements and related ineffective
portion of the interest swap cash flow hedges.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded a provision for income taxes amounting to $6.7 million or 26.4% of income before
income taxes for the year ended September 30, 2005, compared to a provision of $5.8 million or 37.2%
of income before income taxes for the year ended September 30, 2004. The difference in the effective
tax rate between the year ended September 30, 2005 and the year ended September 30, 2004 is mainly
due to the U.S. pre-tax losses recorded in fiscal 2004 for which no benefit was provided and ‘
permanent differences in the U.K. Our company does not provide a tax benefit for U.S. pre-tax losses
as it is more likely than not that we will not utilize our net operating losses in the U.S.

Net Income

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded net income of $18.7 million for the year ended
September 30, 2005 compared to net income of $9.9 million for the year ended September 30, 2004.
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Series A Preferred Stock

For the year ended September 30, 2004, we accrued $2.9 million of dividends for the Series A
preferred stock-issued in connection with our fiscal 2002 corporate reorganization and accreted $ 0.4
million of costs related to the issuance of our Series A preferred stock. In July 2004, all of the Series
A preferred stock was converted into a like number of shares of common stock. In connection with
the conversion, we paid conversion fees of $2.0 million to the holders of the Series A preferred stock
and wrote off $1.7 million of the remaining issuance costs.

Year Enéed Sébtember 30, 2004 vs. Year Ended September 30, 2003

Revenues

Total revenues for the year ended September 30, 2004 were $325.3 million compared to $294.4
million for the year ended September 30, 2003, an increase of $30.9 million or 10.5%. This increase
was mainly due to the favorable effects of changes in foreign exchange ($34.7 million), acquisitions in
the social services sector ($6.3 million) and internal growth in the social service sector and in our
respiratory, medical equipment and supplies operations. This increase was offset by a decrease in
revenues-due to changes to NHS quality standards, causing fewer of our workers to be available for
placement with the NHS while the necessary training certificates, immunizations and criminal record
checks required by these standards were obtained, and the expansion of the NHS Professionals to
encompass more healthcare workers. There can be no assurance that the continued expansion of the
NHS Professionals may not adversely affect our revenues in future periods.

Gross Profit

Total gross profit increased by $11.9 million to $93.2 million for the year ended September 30,
2004 from $81.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2003, an increase of 14.6%. The favorable
effects of changes in foreign exchange accounted for $9.9 million of the increase. As a percentage of
total revenue, gross profit for the year ended September 30, 2004 increased to 28.6% from 27.6% for
the comparable prior period. Gross margins for patient services increased (28.2% for the year ended
September 30, 2004 versus 27.3% for the comparable prior period) mainly due to management’s focus
on supplying healthcare staff to our higher margin customers. Gross margins in respiratory, medical
equipment and supphes sales increased (45.5% for the year ended September 30, 2004 versus 43.4%
for the comparable prior period) malnly due to an increased focus on sales of portable oxygen therapy
equipment and a steady increase in the number of patients in Northern Ireland while keeping costs
static.

Selling, General and Administrativé' Expenses

Total selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $9.9 million to $63.5 million for
the year ended September 30, 2004 from $53.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2003, an
increase of 18.4%. Changes in foreign exchange accounted for $6.2 million of this increase. The
remaining increase was mainly a result of higher levels of overhead costs due principally to increased
expenditures on quality assurance audit programs to ensure compliance with changes to legislation
($1.1 million), acquisitions ($0.6 million), compensation charges for key executives to complete the
reimbursement of tax liabilities and to resolve other consequences incurred by them in connection
with our fiscal 2002 corporate reorganization as well as a special compensation charge ($1.9 million)
and fees associated with migrating the trading of our shares of common stock from the American
Stock Exchange to the Nasdaq National Market (80.1 million). We do not anticipate incurring further
compensation expense related to-our fiscal 2002 corporate reorganization.

Interest Income

Total interest income for the year ended September 30, 2004 was $0.9 million compared to $2.0
million for the year ended September 30, 2003, which represents a decrease of $1.1 million. The
decrease was attributable to a lower level of funds invested and was partially offset by favorable
effects of changes in foreign exchange ($0.1 million).
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Interest Expense

Total interest expense for the year ended September 30, 2004 was $14.6 million compared to
$13.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2003, which represents an increase. of $1.3 million. This
increase was principally attributable to the write-off of $4.2 million of deferred financing fees and
unamortized debt discount associated with the refinancing of the Former Senior Credit Eacility and
$1.6 million related to changes in foreign .exchange. This increase was partially offset by reduced bank
debt in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, the recording of a $0.5 million benefit related to the
change in the fair value of our company’s interest rate cap and floor collar agreement in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2004 as compared to a $0.2 million benefit recorded in the fiscal year ended
wSeptember 30, 2003, and the write-off of debt discount of $0.6 mllhon associated with the repayment
of loan notes in the year ended September 30 2003

Provision for Income Taxes

We -recorded a provision for income taxes amounting to $5.8 million or 37.2% of income before.
income taxes for the year ended September 30, 2004, compared to a provision of $4.9 million or 30.0%
of income before income taxes and discontinued operations for the year. ended. September 30, 2003.
Included in the tax provision for the year ended September 30, 2003 is a benefit related to the reversal
of an estimated income tax liability ($1.9 million) for a business that was previously discontinued and
no longer has any tax liabilities. Excluding this benefit, the provision for income taxes would have
been $6.8 million or 41.4% of income before income taxes and discontinued operations for the year
ended September 30, 2003. The difference in the effective tax rate from the year ended September 30,
2003 to the year ended September 30, 2004 is mainly due to the ratio of U.S. pre-tax losses to
consolidated pre-tax income as our company does not provide a tax benefit for U.S. pre-tax losses as
it is more likely than not that we will not utilize our net operating losses in the U.S. and permanent
differences in the UK. ' o '

Discontinued Operations and Gaifi on-Sale of Subsidiaries

Discontinued operations resulted in income of $0. 5 million for the year ended September 30,
2003. In April 2003, we sold all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of two of our subsidiaries
for approx1mately $8.5 million in cash. Home Healthcare, which comprised our U.S. operations, was
concentrated in New York and New Jersey, and supphed infusion therapy, respiratory therapy and
home medical equipment. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” our company
has accounted for Home Healthcare as a discontinued operation. '

The following table presents the financial results of the discontinued operations during our fiscal
year ended September 30, 2003 (dollars in thousands, other than per share data):

Revenues: . R ‘ . - .. .
Net infusion services ......... R P F P '$ 6,685
Net respiratory, medical equipment and supplies ............... e 2,479
Total TEVENUES . ...\ o vttt et iiie e o B e 9,164
Cost of revenues: '
Infusion services .......... e e e e e 5,159
Resplratory, medical eqmpment and supphes e e 1,438
Total cost Of revenues ..................... P e AR 6,597
Selling, general and admmistrative expenses D TR e e 2,583
Gain on sale of subsidiaries. . ... e (1,294)
Tax on gain on sale of subsidiaries ........... e e 775
Income from discontinued Operations. . ..........iuieenur i eenneenannn. $ 503
Diluted income per share from discontinued operations....................... $ 0.02
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Net Income ‘ : o

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded net income of ‘$9 9 million for the year ended
September 30, 2004 compared to net 1ncome of $12.0 m11110n for the year ended September 30, 2003.

Series A Preferred Stock

For the vear ended September 30, 2004, we accrued $2.9 m11110n of dividends for the Series A
preferred stock issued in connection with our fiscal 2002 corporate reorganization and accreted $0.4
million of costs related to the issuance of our Series A preferred stock. As further discussed below
“Liquidity and Capital Resources—Borrowings—Series A Preferred Stock” below, in July 2004, all of
the Series A preferred stock was converted into a like number of shares. of common stock. In
connection with the conversion, we paid conversion fees of $2.0 million to the holders of the Series A
preferred stock and wrote off $1.7 million of the remaining issuance costs: For the year ended
September 30, 2003, we accrued $3.5 million of dividends-for the Series A preferred stock issued in
connection with our fiscal 2002 corporate reorgamzatlon and accreted $0.5 million of costs related to
the issuance of our Series A preferred stock.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

For our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, we generated $21.5 million from operating
activities. Cash requirements for our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 for capital expenditures
($9.7 million), payments for acquisitions and acquisitions payable ($19.3 million), principal payments
on the long-term debt portion of our Senior Credit Facility ($11.1million) and payments on notes
payable ($1.9 million) were met through operating cash flows, restricted cash, net borrowings under
the revolving loan portion of the Senior Credit Facility ($13.9 million) and cash on hand.

We believe our existing capital resources and those generated from operating activities and
available under existing borrowing arrangements w1ll be adequate to conduct our operations for the
next twelve months. :

Accounts Receivable

We maintain a cash management program that focuses on the reimbursement function, as growth
in accounts receivable has been the main operating use of cash historically.' At September 30, 2005 and
September 30, 2004, $33.4 million (11.0%) and $31.3 million (11.1%), respectively, of our total assets
consisted of accounts receivable. The increase in accounts receivable from 2004 to 2005 is mainly due
to the timing of cash collections.

Our goal is to maintain accounts receivable levels equal to or less than industry average, which
would tend to mitigate the risk of negative cash flows from operations by reducing the required
investment in accounts receivable and thereby increasing cash flows from operations. We maintain
credit controls to ensure cash collection on a timely basis. Days sales outstanding (“DSOs”) is a
measure of the average number of days we take to collect our accounts receivable, calculated from the
date services are rendered. At September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004, our average DSOs were
36 and 33, respectively. . :

Borrowings
General

In July 2004, our U.K. subsidiary, Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Allied Holdings”),
obtained financing denominated in pounds sterling consisting of a £50 million multicurrency senior
credit facility (the “Senior Credit Facility”). Addifionally, subject to the terms of the Senior Credit
Facility, ancillary facilities, in the form of an additional facility or financial accommodation (including
interest rate swap, cap, or other arrangement for the hedgmg or fixing of interest) are available up to
a maximum of £15 million.
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The Senior Credit Facility (together with approximately $65.7 million of the net proceeds of the
firm commitment follow-on public offering of 14,500,000 shares of our common stock that was
consummated in July 2004) refinanced our Formér Senior Credit Facility and the Mezzanine Loan,
both of which had been entered into in December 1999. The Senior Credit Facility is secured by a
first priority lien on the assets of another of our subsidiaries, Allied Healthcare Group Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Allied Healthcare Group Limited), and certain of its subsidiaries, as well
as our guarantee of the debt and other 0b11gat10ns of certain wholly-owned U.K. subsidiaries under
the Senior Credit Facility.

The Senior Credit Facility con51sts of the following:
* a £30 ($52.9) million term loan A that matures in July 2009; and
* a £20 ($35.2) million revolving loan B that matures in July 2009.

Repayment of the term loan A commenced in January 2005 and continues semi-annually until
final maturity. Repayment of revolving loan B shall be on the last day of its interest period. Both the
A and B loans bear interest at rates equal to LIBOR (if steriing) or EURIBOR (if euros) pius any -
bank mandatory costs (if applicable) plus 0.70% to 0.90% per annum (depending on consolidated debt
to consolidated profit ratios). As of September 30, 2005, we have outstanding borrowings of $42.3
million and $22.0 million relating to term loan A and revolving loan B, respectively, under the Senior
Credit Facility, that bore interest at rates ranging from 5.37% to 5.36% per annum.

The Senior Credit Facility agreement is based on the U.K.s Loan Markets Association
Multicurrency Term and Revolving Facilities agreement, which-is a standard form designed to be
commercially acceptable to the corporate lending market. ,

Subject to certain exceptions, the Senior Credit Facility prohibits or restricts the following, among
other things: ' '

* incurring liens and granting security interests in the assets of certain of our U.K subsidiaries;
* incurring additional indebtedness; o '

¢ making certain fundamental corporate changes;

. .Apaying dividends (including the payment of dividends to our company by our subsidiaries);

* making specified investments, acquisitions or disposals; and

» entering into certain transactions with affiliates. '

The Senior Credit Facility contains affirmative and negative financial covenants customarily found
in agreements of this kind, including the maintenance of certain financial ratios, such as debt to
earnings {including amounts provided for depreciation and amortization), earnings (before interest
and taxes) to interest expense, minimum net worth, maximum ancillary facilities indebtedness and the
prohibition of off balance sheet funding. We are also obligated to ensure that the guarantors of the
Senior Credit Facility must not at any time represent less than 90% of the consolidated gross assets,
turnover or earnings before interest and taxes of the U.K. subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2005, we
were 1n compliance with such covenants

Notes Due in Connection with ‘Acquisitions

We repaid, through’ Allied Holdings, notes payable of $1.9 million, $38.7 million and $19.4 million
issued in connection with the acquisition of certain U.K. flexible staffing agencies in our 2005, 2004
and 2003 fiscal years, respectively. The notes payable were secured by the lender under our Former
Senior Credit Facility, who required us to keep an amount on deposit for the sole purpose of repaying
the notes payable. As such, the cash related to the payment of the remaining notes payable of $1.8
million at September 30, 2004, which bore interest at a rate of 5 25%, was cla551ﬁed as current in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. :

Guarantees

The Senior Credit Facility is secured by a first priority lien on the assets of Allied-Healthcare .
Group Holdings Limited and certain of its subsidiaries. Together with Allied Healthcare Group
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Holdings Limited and certain. of its subsidiaries, our company is guaranteeing the debt and other
obligations of certain wholly-owned U K. subsidiaries under the Senior Credit Facility. At September
30, 2005 and September 30 2004, the amounts guaranteed, which approximate the amounts
outstanding, totaled $64.3 million and $63.0 million, respectively.

Financial Instrument

See “Item 7A—Quantitative and Quahtatwe Disclosures About Market Risk—Interest Rate .
Risk.”

Commitments

Acquisition Agreements

Related to our acquisitions of certain flexible staffing agencies, we have entered into agreements
to pay additional amounts, payable in cash, of up to $12.5 million as of September 30, 2005, in
contingent consideration dependent upon future earnings of such acquired entities.

Employment Agreements -

See “Item 11—Executive Compensanon—Employment Agreements; Termmatlon of Employment
and Change in-Control Arrangements.”

Operatmg Leases

We have entered into various operating lease agreements for office space and equipment. Certaln
of these leases provide for renewal optlons

Contractual Cash Obligations

As described under “Borrowings,” “Commitments—Acquisition Agreements,” and
“Commitments—Operating Leases” above, the following table summarizes our contractual cash
obligations as of September 30, 2005 (dollars in thousands): :

Total Debt Total Lease . Total Other . Total

Fiscal Obligations™ Obligations Obligations Obligations
2006 ...... EU $10,577 $2,326 $13,812 $26,715
2007 oo 10,577 1,755 2451 14783
2008 ...t 10,577 - - 1,244 I — 11,821
2009 ... 32,611 1,047 — 133,658
2J0) ( I ~ 823 — 823
Thereafter.......... — 1340 — 1,340

' $64,342 $8,535 - $16,263 $89,140

(1) These amounts do not include interest payments. Based on current levels of debt, we expect to
incur annual interest payments of approximately $3.7 million.

Lease obligations reflect future minimum rental commitments required under operating leases
that have non-cancelable lease terms as of September 30, 2005. Other obligations reflect contingent
consideration related to our acquisitions of certain flexible staffing agencies and third-party fees for
the implementation of financial software.

Miscellaneous

Treasury Shares

“+In January 2001, we initiated a stock repurchase program, whereby we may purchase up to
approximately $1.0 million of our outstanding shares of common stock in open-market transactions or
in privately-negotiated transactions. In May 2003, we initiated a second stock repurchase program,
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pursuant to which we.may, purchase. up to an additional $3.0 million of out outstanding shares of* .':
common stock. in open-market transactions or in privately-negotiated transactions.:As of September
30, 2005, we had acquired 407,700.shares of our.common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $1.3
million pursuant to our stock repurchase programs, which are- reﬂected asstreasury. stock in our
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2005.

On December 2003, two of our executive officers repaid in full the pr1nc1pa1 and accrued 1nterest
on the promissory notes issued by them to ur company in connection with our corporate
reorganization fiscal 2002. The loans were repaid by delivery to our company of an aggregate of
177,055 shares of our company’s common stock. The shares delivered by Mr. Aitken and Ms. Eames
are held by our company and are reflected as treasury stock in our consolidated balance sheet at
September 30, 2005. :

Acgq ulsltron

In fiscal 2005, we acqurred ‘a total of 9 flexible stafﬁng agencies for approximately $17.1 million in
cash and $0.1 million-in‘an ac¢qtiisition -payable. As of September 30; 2005, these' transactions included
provisions to pay additional amounts, payable in cash, of up to $9.7 million in contmgent
consrderatron dependent upon future earnings of the acquired entrtles

' In fiscal 2004 we acqurred a total of 8 flexible stafﬁng agencres for approxrmately $8. 6 mrlhon in
cash. At September 30, 2004, these transactions included provisions to pay additional amounts,
payable in cash, of up to $10.5 million in contingent consideration dependent upon future earnings.of
the. acquired entities. In fiscal 2005 a total of $6.1 million was earned, of which $1.6 million remains
payable as of September 30 200S. In addltron as of September 30, 2005 these transactions contmued
to include provisions to pay additional amounts, payable in cash, of up to $2.8 million in contingent
consideration dependent upon future earnings of the acquired entities. The remaining balance of
contingent consideration was unearned and will not be requrred to be pald ‘

In fiscal 2003, We acqurred a total’ of 7 ﬂexrble stafﬁng agencres for approxrmately $8.8' million in
cash and the issuaficé of 670,000 shares of our common’ stock. The transactlons included prowsrons o
pay additional amounts, payable by combination’ of cash and shares of our common stock, of up to
$21.0 million in contmgent consrderatlon dependent upon future earnings of the acquired entities. Of
the $21 O-million in contingent consideration, $6.1 million was unearned and will not be requrred and
$1.3 million was earned andpaid in fiscal 2003. As such, at September 30, 2003, an aggregate of $13.6
million ‘was payable dependent upon further earnings of the acquired entities. Of the $13.6 million in
contingent consideration, $12.0 million Was unearned and will'not be required and the remarmng
balanéé was earned and paid in fiscal 2004 :

\

In ﬁscal 2005, we completed the purchase price allocation for our fiscal 2004 acquxsrtlons _
Accordrngly, tangible assets, separately identifiable intangible assets and liabilities were assrgned
values:of approximately $1 3 'million, $3.5 million and $0.7 million, respectively, with the remaining
portion of $4.9 million attributable to goodwill.

In fiscal 2004,.we completed the purchase price allocation for our remaining fiscal 2003
acquisitions. Accordingly, tangible assets; separately. 1dent1ﬁable intangible assets and liabilities were
assigned values of approximately $0.4 million, $1:2 million and $0.4 mrlhon respectlvely, w1th the
remammg portlen of $5.1 million-attributable to goodwill. " .

In fiscal 2003, we completed the purchase price. allocatlon for. one of our ﬁscal 2003 acqulsltlons
Accordmgly, tangxble assets, separately identifiable 1ntang1ble assets and hab1ht1es were assigned
values of approximately $2.9 million, $1.4 million and $2.2 million, respectively, with the remaining
portion of $6.6 million attributable to goodwill.

The preliminary purchase price allocations for the fiscal 2005 acqu1smons are sub;ect to
adjustments and will be finalized once additional information concerning asset and liability valuations
are obtained: Accordingly, final asset and liability fair values may differ from those set forth on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2005; however, the changes are not expected to have a-
material effect on our.Consolidated Financial Statements. - S »
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The pro forma results of operations and related per share information for these acquisitions have
not been presented as the amounts are considered immaterial. ‘

D1sgosmon

In April 2003 we disposed of. the last of our U. S operations when we sold all of the issued and
outstanding capital stock of The PromptCare Companies, Inc. and Steri-Pharm, Inc., for
approximately $8.5 million in cash. These two subsidiaries constituted our U.S. home healthcare
operations segment. Our home healthcare operations were concentrated in New York and New Jersey
and supplied infusion therapy, respiratory therapy and home medical equipment. In accordance with
the provisions of Statement. of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we have accounted for our home healthcare
operations as a discontinued operation. Our consolidated financial statements reflect the assets and
liabilities of the discontinued operatlons as separate line items and the operations of our home
healthcare operations for the current and prior periods are reported in discontiriued operations on our
income statement. For a discussion of the revenues and costs of operations of our discontinued
operations, see Note 3 of Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements for our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005

Litigation ‘
“ See “Item 3—Legal Proceedmgs

Contmgenc1es

Some of our sub51d1ar1es were Medicare Part B suppliers who submitted claims to the de51gnated
carrier. who is the government’s claims processing administrator. From time to time, the carrier may
have requested an audit of Medicare Part B claims on a prepayment or postpayment basis. If the .
outcome of any audit results in a denial or a finding of an overpayment, then the affected subsidiary
has appeal rights. Under postpayment audit procedures, the supplier generally pays the alleged
overpayment and can pursue appeal rights for a refund of any paid overpayment mcorrectly assessed
against the suppher

We believe that we are in compliance, in all materlal respects, with the applicable provisions of
federal laws and regulations and applicable state laws, together with all applicable laws and
regulations of other countries in which we operate. Due to.the broad and sometimes vague nature of
these laws and regulations, there can be no assurance that an enforcement action will not be brought
agamst us, or that we will not be found to be in v1olat10n of one or more of these laws or regulations.
At present, we cannot anticipate what impact, if any, subsequent administrative or judicial
interpretations of applicable federal and state laws and the laws of other countries in which we
operate may have on our financial position, cash flows and results of operations.

We are involved in various legal proceedings and claims incidental to our normal business
activities. We are vigorously defending our position in all such proceedings. We. believe that these
matters should not have a material adverse impact on our financial position, cash flows or results of
operations.

Impact of Recent Accounting Standards

See “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005.

Item 7A. Quantltatlve and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Foreign Currency Exchange

We face exposure.to adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. These exposures
may change over time-as business practices evolve and could have a material adverse impact on our
consolidated financial results. Currently, we do not hedge foreign currency exchange rate exposures.

Interest Rate Risk
Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relate primarily to our cash equivalents
and the Senior Credit Facility. Our cash equivalents include highly liquid short-term investments
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purchased with initial maturities of 90 days or less. To manage our ‘exposure to interest rate changes
related to our Senior Credit Facility, we use interest rate swap agreements.

In March 2003, upon the expiration of our prior Rate Cap and Floor Collar Agreement, we
entered into a Rate Cap and Floor Collar Agreement that capped our interest rate and.our interest
floor, subject to special provisions, on approximately $88.1 million of our floating rate debt under a
contract that would have expired in March 2008. In accordance with Statement of Financial -
Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging
Activities,” as amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138 and related
implementation guidance, we calculated the fair value of the interest cap and floor derivative to be an
asset of $0.3 million at September 30, 2004. In February 2005, we sold this derivative instrument for
approximately $0.1 million. »

In February 2005, we entered into two interest rate swap agreements, which expire in July 2009,
the objective of which is to protect us against the potential increase in interest rates on our floating
rate debt. The two interest rate swap agreements cover approx1mately $52.9 million of the our floating
rate debt until January 2008 and then decrease by $5.3 million each six-month period, in order to
reflect the amortizing effect of our floating rate debt, until the end of the interest rate swap
agreements. The interest rate under the swap agreements is fixed at 4.935% and is payable
semi-annually. In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, we designated the two interest rate swap agreements
as cash flow hedges. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, we
calculated the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements to be a liability of $0.8 million at
September 30, 2005. Prior to the cash flow hedge designation, changes in the value from period to
period of the interest rate swap agreements was recorded as other expense or income, as appropriate.
At September 30, 2005, the effective portion of the loss on the interest rate swap agreements
designated as cash flow hedges was $0.4 million, net of tax, and is included in other-comprehensive
income. We will continue to assess the effectiveness of these cash flow hedges on a quarterly basxs

. The interest rate on our remaining bank debt of $11.4 million is reset at least every month to
reflect current market rates. Consequently, the carrying value of our variable rate bank debt
approximates its fair value at September 30, 2005.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The consolidated financial s'tatemeﬁts and'lreqUirr:ed-ﬁnancial statement schedules of our company
begin on page F-i of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None. |
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our company’s management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and our chief
financial officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of
September 30, 2005.

Under the rules of the Securities'and Exchange Commission, “disclosure controls and
procedures” are defined as controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, such as this Annual Report on Form 10-K, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in our reports that we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief
executive officer and chlef ﬁnanCIal ofﬁcer as approprlate to allow timely decisions regarding required

-disclosure.
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Based on such evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded
that, as of September 30, 2003, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that
the information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit to the Securities and
Exchange Commission is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified under the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting for the company. Under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
“internal control over financial reporting procedures” is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Internal control over financial reporting includes maintaining records
that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and our dispositions of assets;
providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; providing reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures’ of company assets are
made only in accordance with management authorization; and providing reasonable assurance
regarding the prevention or the timely detection of the unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
company assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements. Because of its inherent
limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that
a misstatement of our financial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on this evaluation, management
concluded that the company’s internal control ever financial reporting was effective as of September
30, 2005.

Our auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have issued a report on this assessment of our internal
control over financial reporting. Their report is included in this Item 9A.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Allied Healthcare International Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report of Management
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting that Allied Healthcare International Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
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performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles..A company’s-internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance-of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that.receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements ot T :

Because of the mherent llmltatlons of mternal control over financial reporting, mcludmg the
possibility of collusion or 1mproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the effectiveness of the internal control over ﬁnanmal reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the controls.may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of .the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion,-the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2005, based on
the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedules as of and for the year ended September 30, 2005 of the Company and our report dated
November 28, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedules. '

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

New York, N,e;zv York ..
November 28, 2005-
Changes in Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the
quarter ended September 30, 2005 that have materially affected, or are reasonably 11kely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting..-

Item 9B. Othei’ Informa;tion.

There was no information that we were requlred to disclose in a Current Report on Form 8-K
during the fourth quarter of ﬁscal 2005 that was not so disclosed.
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PART 111
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

Our Directors and Officers

The following table sets forth certain information concermng the directors and officers of our
company

Name } Age - Positions with our Company
Timothy M. Aitken - 61 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Sarah L. Eames 47 Executive Vice President and Director
Charles F. Murphy 52 Chief Financial Officer

Leslie J. Levinson S0 Secretary

G. Richard Green 66 Director

Mark Hanley 44 Director

Wayne Palladino ‘ 47 Director

Jeffrey S. Peris ‘ 59 ‘Director

Scott A. Shay 48 Director |

Mark Tompkins 65 Director

Certain biographical information regarding each director and officer is set forth below:

Timothy M. Aitken has served as chairman of the board of our company since January 1997 and
as chief executive officer of our company since November 2004. He aiso served as chief executive
officer of our company from January 1997 to January 2004. Prior to joining our company, Mr. Aitken
served as an ‘independent consultant to the healthcare industry from 1995 to 1997. From June 1995 to
November 1995, Mr. Aitken served as the vice chairman and president of Apria Healthcare Group,
Inc., a California-based home healthcare company. He also served as chairman of the board of
Omnicare plc from September 1993 until its acquisition by our company. From 1990 to 1995, Mr.
Aitken served as chairman of the board, president and chief executive officer of Abbey Healthcare
Group Inc., a predecessor of Apria Hea]thcare Group, Inc.

Sarah L. Eames has served as a director of our company since June 2002 and as executive vice
president of our company since November 2004. She setved as chief executive officer of our company
from January 2004 to November 2004, as chief operating officer of our company from’ June 2001 to -
November 2004, and as president of our company from May 1998 to November 2004. She was:
executive vice president of business development and marketing of our company from June 1997 to
May 1998. Prior to joining our company, Ms. Eames was employed by Johnson & Johnson
Professional, Inc. as a business development consultant from 1996 to 1997. From June 1995 to
November 1995, Ms. Eames served as vice presidént of marketing for Apria Healthcare Group, Inc., a
California-based home healthcare company. From 1980 to 1995, Ms. Eames held various marketing
and business development positions at Abbey Healthcare Group Inc., a predecessor of Apria
Healthcare Group, Inc.

Charles E Murphy served as acting chief ﬁnanc1al ofﬁcer of our company from May 2003 to
March 2004, at which time he assumed the title of chief financial officer. From October 1999 to May
2003, Mr. Murphy served as chief financial officer of our company’s U.K. operations. From 1997 to
1999, Mr. Murphy was a principal of Visual Networks Limited, a technology company. From 1994 to
1997, he was finance director of Exceler Healthcare Group, a nursing home company. From 1987 to
1994, Mr. Murphy was a -partner at Pricewaterhouse LLP, an accountmg firm.

Leslie J. Levinson has served as secretary of our company since Septernber 1999 and had
previously served in such capacity from October 1990 to July 1997. Since January 2002, he has been a
partner in the law firm of Brown Raysman Millstein Felder & Steiner LLP, which firm serves as -
counsel to our company. From 1991 to 2002, he was a partner in the law firm of Baer Marks & -
Upham LLP, which firm served as counsel to our company. .

37




G. Richard Green has been a director of our company since August 1998. Mr. Green has been the
chairman since 1987 and a director since 1964 of J.H. & EW. Green Ltd., a conglomerate based in the
United Kingdom. Since 1964, Mr. Green has held various positions at J.H. & EW. Green Ltd. and
several of its subsidiaries.

Mark Hanley has been a director of our company since November 2005. From 2000 to August
2005, Mr. Hanley was president and chief executive of New Valley Health Group Inc., now O, Science
Acquisition Corporation, a provider of respiratory services. From 1998 to 1999, he was a senior vice
president, sales and marketing, of Coram Healthcare Corporation, which provides specialized home
infusion therapies and services in the United States and Canada. From 1995 to 1997, Mr. Hanley was
an executive director/director of business development of Transworld Healthcare (UK) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company now known as Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited. From 1987 to 1995, he
held various positions with Apria Healthcare Group, Inc., a California-based home healthcare
company. '

Wayne Palladino has been a director of our company since September 2003. Mr. Palladino has
worked at Pzena Investment Management LLC, an asset management firm, since June 2002, where he
currently serves as principal and a director of client and portfolio services. From August 2000 to June
2002, he was a senior vice president and chief financial officer of Lillian Vernon Corporation, a catalog
retailer. Mr. Palladino was a vice president of our company from February 1991 to September 1996,
senior vice president of our company from September 1996 to August 2000 and chief financial officer
of our company from February 1991 to August 2000.

Jeffrey S. Peris has been a director of our company since May 1998. Presently, Dr. Peris serves as
an executive/organization advisor to leading established global and new business entities. Dr. Peris
served as the vice president of human resources and chief learning officer of Wyeth (formerly
American Home Products Corporation), a pharmaceutical company, from 2001 to 2005. Dr. Peris was
the vice president of business operations of Knoll Pharmaceutical (Abbott Laboratories), where he
was responsible for human resources and corporate communications, from 1998 to 2001. Dr. Peris was
a management consultant to various Fortune 100 companies from 1997 to 1998. From 1972 to 1997,
Dr. Peris was employed by Merck Co., Inc., a pharmaceutical company, where he served as the
executive director of human resources from 1985 to 1997, the executive director of marketing from
1976 to 1985, and the director of clinical biostatistics and research data systems from 1972 to 1976.

Scott A. Shay has been a director of our company since January 1996 and served as acting
chairman of the board of our company from September 1996 to January 1997: Mr. Shay has been a
managing director of Ranieri & Co., Inc., a private investment advisor and management company,
since its formation in 1988. Mr. Shay currently serves as the chairman of the board of Signature Bank,
a subsidiary of Bank Hapoalim, and is currently a director of Signature Securities Group Inc., as well
as an officer or director of other direct and indirect subsidiaries of Hyperion Partners II L.P. Prior to
joining Ranieri & Co., Inc., Mr. Shay was a director of Salomon Brothers Inc., where he was
employed from 1980 to 1988.

Mark Tompkins has been a director of our company since September 2005. From 1987 to the
present, Mr. Tompkins has been a self-employed investor, with a focus on private equity and capital
development in publicly traded entities, notably in the healthcare, biopharmaceutical, wholesale and
distribution, tourism and leisure, and manufacturing industries. From 1975 to 1987 he was active in
residential and commercial property investment in the Middle East, Germany, Spain, France and the
United States. From 1972 to 1975, Mr. Tompkins worked for the Slater Walker Securities group and
from 1965 to 1971 he was a management consultant with Booz Allen & Hamilton. Mr. Tompkins is a
director of Sodexho Alliance S.A., a company engaged in the provision of food and management
services that is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

All directors of our company are elected by the shareholders for a one-year term and hold office
until their successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier death, resignation or removal.
Officers are chosen by and setve at the discretion of the board of directors, subject to any applicable
employment contracts. There are no family relationships among our directors and officers.
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All directors who are not employees of our company are entitled to receive a fee of $10,000 per
annum, plus reimbursement of expenses incurred as a result of acting as a director or as a member of
any committee of our board of directors. In addition, Mr. Palladino is entitled to receive, for serving
as chairman of the Audit Committee, an additional $15,000 per annum; Mr. Peris is entitled to receive
an additional $10,000 per annum for serving as chairman of our Compensation Committee and on the
Audit Committees; and Mr. Tompkins is entitled to receive an additional $5,000 per annum for serving
on out Audit Committee. In March 2005 and September 2005, we granted options to purchase shares
of our common stock to certain of our directors and executive officers. See “Item 13—Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Our board of directors has determined that G. Richard Green, Mark Hanley, Wayne Palladino,
Jeffrey A. Peris and Mark Tompkins are “independent dlrectors as such term is defined in the rules
of the Nasdaq Stock Market.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The business of our company is managed under the direction of our board of directors. Members
of the board of directors are informed about our company’s affairs through various reports and
documents distributed to them, through operating and financial reports routinely presented at
meetings of the board of directors and committee meetings by the chairman .and other officers, and
through other means. In addition, directors of our company discharge their duties throughout the year
not only by attending board of directors’ meetings, but also through personal meetings and other
communications, including telephone contact with the chairman of the board and others regarding
matters of interest and concern to our company.

During our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, our company’s board of directors held seven
formal meetings and acted by unanimous written consent in lieu of a meeting on three separate
occasions. Other than Mr. Palladino, who attended four of the seven board meetings and all four of
the Audit Committee meetings during our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, during such fiscal
year no director attended fewer than 75% of the aggregate of the total number of meetings of the
board of directors and any committees on which he or she served.

Board Committees

The board of directors has an Audit Committee and a Compensation Committee but it does not
have a nommatmg committee. The members of each commlttee are appomted by the board of
directors.

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists our board of directors in monitoring (1) the
integrity of our financial statements, (2) the independence and qualifications of our independent
auditors, and (3) the performance of our independent auditors and our internal audit functions. The
current written charter for the Audit Committee was adopted by our board of directors on February
12, 2004 and is attached as an exhibit to the proxy statement relating to our 2004 annual meeting of
shareholders.

The Audit Committee consists of Messrs. Palladino, Peris and Tompkins. Mr. Palladino serves as
chairman of the Audit Committee. All of the members of the Audit Committee are “independent
directors,” as such term is defined in the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market. The board of directors
has determined that Wayne Palladino is an “audit committee financial expert,” as such term is defined
in Item 401(h) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee was in session during each of the seven formal meetings of our company’s
board of directors during our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. The Audit Committee also held
four formal meetings and acted by unanimous written consent on one occasion during that period.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee reviews and approves overall policy
with respect to compensation matters, including such matters as compensation plans for employees
and employment agreements and compensation for executive officers.
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- The Compensation Committee consists of Messrs. Green and Peris. Dr. Peris serves as chairman
of the Compensation Committee. All of the members of the Compensation-Committee are
“independent directors,” as such term is defined in the-rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market.

The Compensation Committee was in session during each of the seven formal meetings of our
_company’s board of directors during our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. The Compensation
Committee :acted by unanimous written consent on two occasions during that period; but did not hold
any formal meetings during that period.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

* Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules thereunder promulgated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission require the reporting of transactions in our equity securities
by our directors and certain of our officers and by shareholders who beneficially own more than 10%
of our common stock (collectively, the “Reporting Persons”). Section 16(a) and the rules thereunder
require the Reporting Persons to report initial statements of ownership of our equity securities on
Form 3 and changes in ownership of our equity securities on Form 4 or Form 5. Based on a review of
these reports filed by the Reporting Persons and written representanons from our directors and
officers that no Forms 5 were required to be filed by them in respect of our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2005, we believe that no Reporting Person failed to file a Section 16 report,on a trmely
basis during our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. Timothy M. Aitken inadvertently did not file a
Form 4 in a timely manner with respect to a sale of our common stock in December 2003. The Form
4 was, however, subsequently filed.

Code of Conduct

In September 2003, our board of directots adopted a Code of Conduct that applies to all of our
directors, officers and employees, including our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer.
As required by the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Code of Conduct is
designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote:

(1) honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of
interest between personal and professional relationships;

(2) full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that we.
file with, or submit to, the Securities and Exchange Commission and in other public communications
made by us;

(3) compltance with appl1cable governmental laws rules and regulauons

(4) the prompt internal reporting of violations of the Code of Conduct to the Audit-Committee;
and : o , A
(5) accountab1hty for adherence to the Code of Conduct

A copy of our Code of Conduct is filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10 K

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The following table summarizes all compensation earned by or paid to our chief executive officer
and each of the other most highly compensated executive officers of our company whose total annual
salary and bonus compensation exceeded $100,000 in fiscal 2005 (the “Named Executive Officers”) for
services rendered in all capacities to our company in respect of our fiscal years ended September 30, -
2005, 2004 and 2003. The titles given below the individuals’ names.in the chart below were the titles
held by such individuals at the end of our 2005 fiscal year.
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Summary Compensatlon Table:

Long .Term Compensatlon Awards

" Annual

. , Resmcted ’ Secuntles '
Name and - - - Fiscal Compensation . Stock - °  Underlying All Other -

- Principal Position . .. Year Salary Bonus - Awards(§) .  Options (#) - Compensation
Timothy M. Aitken™. ... ... ... 2005-$446,618 $450,0007 .+ ..— " . .0 90,000 -$ ° 9,000
Chairman of the 2004 253369 ‘450,000 - —:- . . 350,000 - 91,645(0

Board and Chief 2003 420,000 230,000 — 384,000 170,063
Executive Officer » A
-Sarah L:Eames@............. 2005 $234391° ¢ — . — — $ 7800®

Executive. Vice 2004 445,189.3300,000° - . — 300000  1,058,570%%

President ' T 12003 405,000, 270, 000 o 334,000, 101 431<13>

Charles F. Murphy(3) .......... 2005 $326,098 $138, 7650 — 57000 § 18872

Chief Financial 2004 289,073 - 53,781® ' S f— = 18286 @)

Officer 2003 90,09 80,085 - — : 99,000 ' 6,'127 ©

(1) Mr. Artken has served as chairman of the board of our company since January 1997 and as chief

- executive officer of our company since November 2004. He also served as chief executive officer
- of our company from January 1997 until January 2004. - -
(2) Ms. Eames became chief executive officer of ouir company in January 2004, chief operating - -
officer of our company in June 2001 and president of our company-in- May 1998. She stepped
, - down from all such positions, and assumed the office of executive vice president-of our company,
in November 2004 ‘ o . : .
(3) Mr. Murphy became acting chlef financial ofﬁccr of our company in May 2003 and, in March
- 2004, assumed the title of chief financial officer of our company. T

4) Consists of (a) $400,000 cash paid-in fiscal 2004 as a bonus for ﬁscal 2004 and (b) $50 OOO cash

~ ' - paid in fiscal 2005 as a bonus for fiscal 2004.

(5) Paid in fiscal 2004 as a bonus for fiscal 2003,

(6) Paid in fiscal 2004 as a bonus for fiscal 2004. ’

(7) Paid in fiscal 2006 as a bonus for fiscal 2005, ‘

(8)':'. Paid in fiscal 2005 as a bonus for fiscal 2004.

(9) . Reﬂects payment for a- car allowance o B S

(10) Reﬂects (a) payment of a car allowance of $8 250 and (b) the reimbursement of $83 395 in taxes

.. incurred by Mr. Aitken in fiscal 2004 in connection with his repayment of a the pr1nc1pal amount
' "of a company loan and accrued interest thereon by the delivery of shares of our commion stock
owned by him to us.

(11) ‘Reflects payment of a car allowance of $9,750 and the‘reimbnrscn{ént by our company in fiscal -
2004 of taxes of $160,313 incurred by Mr. Aitken in connection with ‘his exercise 6f 150,000
options in fiscal 2003. : »

(12) Of such amount, (a) $1,000,000 consists of special compensation paid to Ms Eames for past
" services, (b) payment of a car allowance of $7,149 and (c) the rellmbursement of $51,421 in ‘taxes
incurred by Ms. Eames in fiscal 2004 in connection-with her repaymient of thé principal amount
of a company loan and accrued mterest thereon by the dehvery of shares of our common stock
owned by her to us. g SE e R

(13) 'Reflects payment for a car allowance of $8,450 and-the reimbursement by ‘'our company in fiscal

2004 of taxes of $92,981 incurred by Ms. Eames in connect1on w1th her cxerc1se of 100 000

options in fiscal 2003.
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding options granted during fiscal 2005 to
our Named Executive Officers pursuant to our 2002 Stock Option Plan. During fiscal 2005 we did not
grant stock appreciation rights to any of our Named Executive Officers or any other employee. In
accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the table sets forth the
hypothetical gains or “option spreads” that would exist for the options at the end of their respective
terms. These gains are based on assumed rates of annual compound stock price appreciation of 5%
and 10% from the date the option was granted to the end of the optlons term.

Option Grants in Fiscal 2005

Percentage of Potential Realizable Value

Number of Securities Total Options at Assumed Annual Rates

Underlying Granted to - of Stock Price
Options Employees in . Exercise Price Expiration Appreciation for Option
Name Granted Fiscal Year  Per Share™ Date Term*®
. ‘ 5% 10%-

Timothy M. Aitken....... 90,000 .- 13.8% $5.65 9/30/15 $319,793 $810,418
Sarah L. Eames.......... — — — —_ — —
Charles F. Murphy. ....... 27,000 4.1% $6.20 3/23/15  $105,277  $266,792
: 30,000 . 4.6% $5.65 9/30/15 $106,598 $270,139

57,000 . 87% © $211,875  $536,931

(1) Options were granted at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of a share of our
common stock on the date -of grant.

(2) The 5% and 10% assumed annual compound rates of stock price appreciation are mandated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission and do not represent our company’s estimate or
projection of future common stock prices.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our Named Executive Officers
concerning the exercise of options by them during our fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 and
unexercised options held by them as of September 30, 2005. We have never granted stock appreciation
rights to any of our Named Executive Officers or any other employee.

Aggregate Option Exercises in Fiscal 2005
and 2005 Fiscal Year-End Option Values

Number of Shares Value of Unexercised
Shares Underlying Unexercised In-the-Money Optnons
Acquired Value Options at Fiscal Year End at Fiscal Year End®
Name on Exercise Realized Exercisable/Unexercisable  Exercisable/Unexercisable
Timothy M. Aitken............ 195,000 $907,378 1,296,000/28,000 $559,400/$32,200
Sarah L. Eames............ ... 150,000 $701,955 606,000/28,000 $476,900/$32,200
Charles F. Murphy ............ — — 96,000/60,000 $73,900/$36,950

(1) Calculated on the basis of $5.65 per share, the closing sale price of our common stock, as reported
on the Nasdaq Stock Market on September 30, 2005, minus the exercise price.
Compensation of Directors
See “Item 10—Directors and Executive Ofﬁcérs of the Registrant—QOur Directors and Officers”
with respect to compensation of non-employee directors.
Employment Agreements; Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

In September 2001, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Aitken. The employment
agreement has a three-year term (subject to automatic renewal for successive additional one-year
periods unless either party provides the other with notice of intent to terminate the agreement at least
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90 days before the then applicable termination date). The employment agreement provides that our
company will negotiate in good faith, commencing not less than 90 days prior to each anniversary date
of the employment agreement, the amount, if any, of future salary increases. Mr. Alitken’s salary is
currently $0.5 million. Mr. Aitken’s employment agreement provides that if his employment is
terminated during the term of the agreement other than for cause, death or disability, or if, within six
months of a “change in control” (as defined in the agreement) of our company, Mr. Aitken or our
company terminates his employment, then (1) all stock options in our company held by Mr. Aitken
shall immediately vest and (2) Mr. Aitken will be entitled to receive a cash payment of 2.9 times his
average annual base salary during the twelve months preceding the change of control or the
termination of employment. ;

In September 2001 we entered into an employment agreement with Ms. Eames, which was
modlﬁed in November 2004 and September 2005. Pursuant to her employment agreement, as
modified, Ms. Eames has agreed to serve as executive vice president of our company until December
31, 2006 at an annual salary of $0.1 million. Ms. Eames’ employment agreement, as modified, provides
that if her employment is terminated during the term of the agreement other than for cause, death or
disability, then all stock options in our.company held by Ms. Eames shall immediately vest and Ms.
Eames shall be entitled to receive her salary through December 31, 2006.

In Deeds of Restrictive Covenants entered into in 1999 w1th one of our U.K. subsidiaries, Mr.
Aitken and Ms. Eames have each agreed not to compete with us or our subsidiaries for twelve months
following term1nat1on of employment without our prior ertten consent.

We have also entered into an employment agreemeit with Mr. Murphy Our employment
agreement with Mr. Murphy is terminable by either party on six month’s notice and provides that Mr.
Murphy will not compete against us for a period of twelve months following his termination of
employment. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Murphy’s salary is carrently $0.3 million.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

- The Compensation Committee consists of Messrs. Green and Peris. Dr. Peris serves as chairman
of the Compensation Commiittee. During the first part of fiscal 2005, our Compensation Committee
consisted of G. Richard Green, David Macfarlane and Jeffrey S. Peris. In May 2005, Mr. Macfarlane
resigned from our board of directors. None of Messrs. Green, Peris or Macfarlane has ever served as
an officer or employee of our company or any of our subsidiaries, nor has any such individual had a
business relationship with our company or any of our subsidiaries during fiscal 2005 that requires
disclosure under the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Stoek Option Plans

1992 and 2002 Stock Option Plans

In July 1992, our board of directors and shareholders approved our 1992 Stock Option Plan. The
1992 Stock Option Plan, which is substantially similar to our 2002 Stock Option Plan discussed below,
provided for the grant of options to key employees, officers, directors. and non-employee.independent
contractors of our company. Effective with the adoption by our shareholders of our 2002 Stock Option
Plan in June 2002, no further options may be granted under the 1992 Stock Option Plan. Outstanding
options granted under the 1992 Stock Option Plan may be exercised in accordance with the terms of:
the 1992 Stock Option Plan.

] In March 2002, our board of directors adopted, and in June 2002 our shareholders approved, our
2002 Stock Option Plan. Options granted under the 2002 Stock Option Plan may be either incentive
stock options {“Incentive Options”), which are intended to meet the requirements of section 422 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or options that do not qualify as Incentive Options
(which we refer to as “Non-Qualified Options”). Under the 2002 Stock Option Plan, the
Compensation Committee may grant (1) Incentive Options at an exercise price per share which is not
less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date on which such Incentive
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Options are granted (and not less than 110% of the fair market value in the case of any optionee who
beneficially owns more than 10% of the total combined voting-power of our company) and (2)
Non-Qualified Options at an exercise price per share which is determined by the Compensation
Committee (and which may be less than the fair market valué of a share of our common stock on the
date on which such Non-Qualified Options are granted). The 2002 Stock Option Plan further provides
that the maximum period in which options may be exercised will be determined by the Compensation
Committee, except that Incentive Options may not be exercised after the expiration of ten years from
the date the Incentive Option was initially granted (and five years in the case of any optionee who
beneficially owns more than 10% of the. total combined voting power of our company). Under the
2002 Stock Option Plan, if an optionee’s employment is terminated, the unexercised Incentive Options
generally must be exercised within three months after termination. However, if the termination is due
to the optionee’s death or permanent disability, the option must be exercised within one year of the
termination of employment. If we terminate the optlonee s employment for cause, or if the optionee -
voluntarily terminates his employment, his options generally will expire as of the termination date.
Any option granted under the 2002 Option Stock Plan will be nontransferable, except by will or by
the laws of descent and distribution, and generally may be exercised upon payment of the option price
in cash or by delivery of shares of our common stock with a fair market value equal to the option
price.

Shares delivered under the 2002 Stock Optlon Plan will be available froni authorized but unissued
shares of common stock or from shares of common stock reacqulred by our company. Shares of
common stock that are subject to options under the 2002 Stock Option Plan which have terminated or
expired unexercised will return to the pool of shares avaxlable for issuance under the 2002 Stock
Option Plan. : : : :

As of September 30, 2005,, an aggregate of 2,100,334 shares of our common stock were issuable
upon the exercise of outstanding options that had been granted under our 2002 Stock Option Plan
and options to purchase an aggregate of 1,626,487 shares of our common stock were available for
grant under such Plan. As of September 30, 2005, an aggregate of 510,000 shares of our common stock
were issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options that had been granted under our 1992 Stock
Option Plan. No further options may be granted under our 1992 Stock Option Plan.

1997 Non- -Employee Dzrector Plan

In May 1997, our board of directors adopted the 1997 Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors
(the “Director Plan”), pursuant to which 100,000 shares. of our common stock were reserved for
issuance upon the exercise of options granted to non-employee directors. The purpose-of the Director
Plan is to encourage ownership of common stock by non-employee directors of our company whose
continued services are considered essential to our company’s future progress and to provide them with
a further incentive to remain as directors of our company. The Director Plan is administered by the
board of directors. Directors of our company who are not employees.of our company or any
subsidiary or affiliate of our company are eligible to participate in the Director Plan. The Director
Plan will terminate in May 2007; however, options outstanding on the expiration of the term shall
continue to have full force and effect in accordance with the provisions of the instruments evidencing
such options. The board of dlrectors may suspend, termmate rev1se or amend the Dlrector Plan,
subject to certain limitations.

Under the Director Plan, the board of directors may from time. to time at its discretion determine
which of the eligible directors should receive options, the number of shares subject to such options
and the dates on which such options are to be granted. Each such option is immediately exercisable
for a penod of ten years from the date of grant generally, but may not be exercised more than 90 days
after the date an optionee ceases to serve as a director of our company. Options granted under the '
Director Plan are not transferable by the optionee other than by will, laws of descent and distribution,
or as required by law.

Shares of common stock may be purchased from our company upon the exercise of an option by
payment in cash or cash equivalent, through the delivery of shares of common stock having a fair
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market value equal to the cash exercise price of the option or any combination of the above, subject
to the discretion of the board of directors. :

“As of September 30, 2005, no options were outstanding under the Director Plan.

Recent Developments

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”) became law in October 2004 and added
Section 409A to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Section 409A relates to
nonqualified deferred compensation plans. The definition of a “nonqualified deferred compensation
plan” is broad enough to include stock options, including stock options granted under our stock
option plans. Section 409A gives the Treasury Department the authority to issue regulations to define
terms, provide exceptions, and create a window of time.during which existing plans may be altered or
amended in order to.comply with the Act. The Act provides that all.compensation deferred after
December 31, 2004 under a “non-qualified deferred compensation plan” will, under certain-
circumstances, be includible in gross income for the tax year. Section 409A is not intended to change
the tax treatment of incentive stock options or options granted under employee stock purchase plans.
Furthermore, Section 409A is not intended to apply to non-qualified stock options under certain
circumstances.

In December 2004, the Internal Revenue Service issued Notice 2005-1, in which it provides the
first part of a series of guidelines with respect to the application of Section 409A. Notice 2005-1 states
that the grant of an incentive stock option does not constitute a deferral of compensation.
Additionally, Notice 2005-1 provides that a nonqualified stock option will not provide for a deferral of
compensation if: (1) the amount required to purchase stock under the option (the exercise price) may
never be less than the fair market value of the underlying stock on the date the option is granted, (2)
the receipt, transfer or exercise of the option is subject to taxation under Section 83 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and (3) the option does not include any feature for the deferral
of recognition of income until the later of exercise or disposition of the option. We believe that any
non-qualified options that we have previously issued would satisfy the above requirements.

The Treasury Department has recently issued proposed regulations regarding the application of
Section 409A to nonqualified deferred compensation plans. These proposed regulations incorporate
the guidance provided in Notice 2005-1 and provide substantial additional guidance. As in Notice
2005-1, the proposed regulations provide that a stock option will not provide for deferral of
compensation if the same criteria set forth in Notice 2005-1 which -are discussed above are satisfied.
Until the proposed regulations become effective, Notice 2005-1 generally remains in effect. The
proposed regulations are proposed to be generally applicable for taxable years beginning on or after
January 1, 2007. However, taxpayers may generally rely on the proposed regulations until the effective
date of the final regulations.

Except for matters requiring stockholder approval under applicable law or Nasdaq rules, our
board of directors will have the right, without further shareholder approval, to amend our stock
option plans, if necessary, so that they comply with Section 409A Act, including the guidance issued
pursuant thereto :

Indemnification

As permitted under the Business Corporation Law of the State of New York, our certificate of -
incorporation provides that a director of our company will not be personally liable to our company or
our shareholders for monetary damages for breach of a fiduciary duty owed to our company or our
shareholders. By its terms and in accordance with the law of the State of New York, however, this
provision does not eliminate or otherwise limit the liability of a director of our company for any
breach of duty based upon (1)-an act or omission (a) resulting from acts.committed in bad faith or
involving intentional misconduct or involving a knowing violation of law or (b) from which the-
director personally derived a financial benefit to which -he was not legally entitled, or (2) an improper
declaration of dividends, purchase of our securities or other violation of section 719 of the Business
Corporation Law of the State of New York.
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Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that our company shall indemnify our
directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by New York law. In addition, we have entered
into indemnification agreements with each of our dlrectors and executive. ofﬁcers and we maintain
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance. :

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters. :

The following table sets forth the number of shares of common stock, and the percentage of
shares of common stock, beneficially owned as of November 22, 2005 by (1) each director of our
company, (2) each Named Executive: Officer, (3) all persons known by us to be the beneficial owner of
more than 5% of our outstanding shares of common stock, and (4) all current directors and named -
exécutive officers of our company as a group (8 persons). The information as to the number of shares
of our common stock beneficially owned by the individuals and entities listed below was derived from
reports ﬁled with the Secuntles and Exchange Commission by such persons and company records.

Number of -
. Shares of “ Percentage of
Common Stock ,  Common Stock
’ Beneficially Beneﬁcnally
Name Owned Owned™
Timothy M. Aitken ............. e 2,086,573 4.5%
~ Sarah L. Eames.......... PO 1,103,218® . 2.4%
Charles FE Murphy . ......ooivnnnnn 206,539 L
G. Richard Green. ... .. e O 87,854 Coe K
Mark Hanley. .. .. e ‘ S C—
Wayne Palladino............ e - 12,164 oo
Jeffrey S. Peris ............. .0 L. 14,0008 . *
" Lewis S. Ranieri................... 12,020,810¢ 26.8%
Scott A. Shay ...... e - 11,960,610 26.7%
- Mark Tompkins. .. .v....oevennnnn. —® —
. - . Hyperion Partners IIL.P........... 11,960,6100D 26.7%
Hyperion TW Fund LP............. - 11,960,61042) 26.7% -
 Hyperion TWH Fund LLC ........ : 11,960,6100% 26.7%
Hyperion TWH Fund' I LLC ...... . 11,960,61049 26.7%
Washington & Congress Cap1ta1 ' "
Partners, LP............0.... ..., 7,697,578 17.2%
All current executive officers and ‘
“directors as a group (8 persons)... .. 15,470,9581%) -33.0%

* Less than 1%.

(1) As of November 22, 2005, there were 44,855,772 shares of our common stock outstanding. The
percentage given for each shareholder assumes that such’shareholder has exercised the options
held by such shareholder that are exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005, but that no
other shareholders have exercised the options held by them. ‘ :

(2) Consists of 672,007 shares of common stock held by Mr. Aitken, 98,566 shares of common stock
' held by Aitken (English) Company Limited, an affiliate of Mr. Aitken, and 1,316,000 shares
_ subject to options held by Mr. Aitken that are exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005.
Does not include an additional 8,000 shares subject to options held by Mr. Altken that are not
exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005. '

(3) Consists of 473,218 shares of .common stock held by Ms. Eames, 4 000 shares of common stock
held jointly by Ms. Eames and her husband and 626,000 shares subject to -options held by Ms.
Eames that are exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005: Does not include an additional
8,000 shares subject to options held by Ms: Eames that are not exercisable within 60 days of
November 22, 2005.
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(4)

Consists of 85,539 shares of common stock held by Mr. Murphy and 121,000 shares subject to
options held by Mr. Murphy that are exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005. Does not

 include an additional 35,000 shares subject to options held by Mr. Murphy that are not

©)

(6)

0]

(8)

&)

exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005.

Consists of 3,000 shares of common stock held by Mr. Green, 57,995 shares of common stock .
held jointly by Mr. Green and his wife, 19,259 shares of common stock held by Orion Nominees
Limited, an affiliate of Mr. Green, 5,000 shares subject to options held by Mr. Green that are

“exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005 and 2,600 shares owned of record by Mr.
- Green’s wife, as to which Mr. Green disclaims beneficial ownership. Mr. Green shares voting and

dispositive power over the shares of our common stock held by Orion Nominees Limited with
his wife. Does not include an additional 12,000 shares subject to options held by Mr. Green that
are not exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005.

Does not include 15,000 shares subject to options held by such individual that are not exercisable
within 60 days of November 22, 2005.

Consists of 6,164 shares of common stock held by Mr. Palladino and 6,000 shares subject to
options that are exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005. Does not include an additional

15,000 shares subject to options held by Mr. Palladino that are not exercisable within 60 days of

November 22, 2005.

Consists of 2,000 shares of common stock held by Mr. Peris and 12,000 shares subject to options
held by Mr. Peris that are exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005. Does not include an
additional 12,000 sharessubject to options held by Mr. Peris that are not exercisable within 60
days of November 22, 2005.. .

Consists of 60,200 shares of common stock owned by Mr. Ranieri, 6,854,454 sharés of common
stock owned by Hyperion Partners II L.P, 4,148,456 shares of common stock owned by Hyperion

“ TW Fund L.P, 482,700 shares of common stock owned by Hyperion TWH Fund LLC and

(10)

(11)

(12)

475,000 shares of common stock owned by Hyperion TWH Fund II LLC. Each of such entities is
an affiliate of Mr. Ranieri. Mr. Ranieri disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares of common
stock owned by such entities except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. Mr. Ranieri
shares voting and dispositive power over the shares of common stock held by such entities with
Mr. Shay.

Consists of 6,854,454 shares of common stock owned by Hyperlon Partners II L.P, 4,148,456
shares of common stock owned by Hyperion TW Fund L.P, 482,700 shares of common stock

-owned by Hyperion TWH Fund LLC and 475,000 shares of common stock owned by Hyperion

TWH Fund II LLC. Each of such entities is an affiliate of Mr. Shay. Mr. Shay disclaims beneficial
ownership of the shares of common stock owned by such entities except to the extent of his
pecuniary interest therein. Mr. Shay shares voting and dispositive power over the shares of
common stock held by such entities with Mr. Ranieri.

Consists of (a) 6,854,454 shares of common stock held by Hyperion Partners II L.P. and (b)
4,148,456 shares of common stock owned by Hyperion TW Fund L.P, 482,700 shares of common
stock owned by Hyperion TWH Fund LLC and 475,000 shares of common stock owned by
Hyperion TWH Fund 11 LLC, each of which are affiliates of Hyperion Partners II L.P. and as to
which Hyperion Partners II L.P. disclaims beneficial ownership except to the extent of its
pecuniary interest therein. Scott A. Shay, a director of our company, may be deemed to be the
beneficial owner of all of such shares of common stock. Mr. Shay disclaims beneficial ownership
in such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.

Consists of (a) 4,148,456 shares of common stock held.by Hyperion TW Fund L.P. and (b)
6,854,454 shares of common stock owned by Hyperion Partners II L.P.,, 482,700 shares of _
common stock owned by Hyperion TWH Fund LLC-and 475,000 shares of common stock owned
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by Hyperion TWH Fund IT LLC, each -of which are ‘affiliates of Hyperion TW Fund L.P. and as

" to which Hyperion TW Fund L.P. disclaims beneficial ownership. Scott A. Shay, a director of our
company, may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of all of such shares of common stock. Mr.
Shay disclaims beneficial ownership in such shares except to' the extent of his pecuniary interest
therem

(13) Con51sts of (a) 482 700 shares of common stock held by Hyperlon TWH Fund «LLC and (b)
6,854,454 shares of common stock owned:by Hyperion Partners II L.P, 4,148,456 shares of
common stock owned by Hyperion TW Fund L.P. and 475,000 shares of common-stock owned by

;- Hyperion TWH Fund 11 LLC, each of which are. affiliates of Hyperion. TWH Fund LLC and as
-to which Hyperion TWH Fund LLC disclaims beneficial ownership. Scott A. Shay, a director of
" our company, may be deemed to be the beneficial owner-of all of such shares of common stock.
Mr. Shay disclaims beneficial ownership ini such shares :except to the extent of his pecuniary
mterest therein.

(14) Consrsts of (a) 475,000 shares of common stock held by. Hyperron TWH. Fund I LLC and (b)
6,854,454 shares of common stock owned by Hyperion Partners II L.P., 4,148,456 shares of
common stock owned by Hyperion TW Fund L.P..and 482,700 shares of common stock owned by
Hyperion TWH Fund LLC, each of which are affiliates of Hyperion TWH Fund II LLC and as
to which Hyperion TWH Fund II LLC disclaims beneficial ownership. Scott-A. Shay, a director
of our company, may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of all of such shares of common
stock. Mr. Shay disclaims beneficial ownership in such shares except to the extent of his
pecunlary interest therein.

(15) Excludes 93,492 shares of common stock held by Trlumph III Investors L. P Washlngton &
Congress Capital Partners, L.P. may be deemed to be a member of a group that.includes,
Trrumph III Investors, L.P.

_(16) Includes an aggregate of 2, 086, 000. shares subject to optlons held by our executive officets and
directors that are exercisable within 60 days of November 22, 2005 and 2,600 shares owned of
record by Mr. Green’s wife, as to which Mr. Green disclaims beneficial ownership.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain information as of September 30, 2005 regarding
compensation plans under which equity securities of our company are authorized for issuance:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under

Number of Securities to . °~ Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
_ be Issued Upon Exercise .. . Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
of Outstanding Options,  Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved ' ' -
by shareholders.................. - 2,610,334 $5.49 1,626,487
Equity compensation plans not ‘ '
approved by shareholders ........ 350,000 5.39 —
$5.48 1,626,487

Total ..... .0 2,960,334

|

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

In November 2004, Ms. Eames stepped down as chief executive officer, president and chief
operating officer of our company and assumed the office of executive vice president. In connection
therewith, Ms. Eames and our company. modified her employment agreement, to provide for an
annual salary of $200,000 through May 2006. In September 2005, Ms. Eames’ employment agreement
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was further modified to provide that she shall serve a$ executive vice president of our company until
December 31, 2006 at an annual salary of $120,000. Seé “Item 11—Executive Compensation— -
Employment Agreements; Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements.” In
connection with the November 2004 modification of her employment agreement, our board of
directors, upon the recommendation of the compensation committee, granted Ms. Eames special
compensation of $1 million for past services rendered to our company. =

In November 2004, Mr. Aitken, assumed the office of chief executive officer of our company. At
such time, our board of directors, upon the recommendation of the compensation committee, awarded
Mr. Altken a bonus of $50,000 for past services. to our company.

" In March 2005 we granted to each of G. Richard Green, David Macfarlane, Wayne Palladino and
Jeffrey S. Peris, who at that time constituted all of the independent directors on our board of .
directors, options to purchase 12,000 shares of our common stock at a-price of $6.20 per share. The
options vest in three equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant
and have a ten-year life. Mr. Macfarlane remgned from the board of d1rectors in May 2005 without
such options having vested. ‘ : . ‘ :

- In March 2005, we granted.Charles Murphy, our chief financial officer, options to purchase 27,000
shares of our common stock at a price of $6.20 per share. The options vest in three equal annual
installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant and have,a ten-year life.

In September 2005, we granted Mr. Aitken and Mr. Murphy options to purchase 90,000 and
30,000 shares, respectively, of our common stock at a price of $5.65 per share. The options vested in
full on the date of grant and have a ten-year life. In November 2005, our board of directors, upon the
recommendation of our compensation committee, awarded Mr. Aitken and Mr. Murphy a bonus of
$450,000 and $138,765, respectively, for services rendered to our company in fiscal 2005.

In September 2005, upon his joining the board, we granted Mark Tompkins options to purchase
15,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $5.65 per share. The options vest in three equal
annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant and have a ten-year life.

In November 2005, upon his joining the board, we granted Mark Hanley options to purchase
15,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $6.00 per share. The options vest in three equal
annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant and have a ten-year life.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
Audit and Other Fees During Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal 2005

The following table sets forth the fees we were billed in respect of our fiscal years ended
September 30, 2004 and September 30, 2005 for various audit and other services provided to us by our
auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP.

_ Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2005
Auditfees .................. $1,170,519 $2,018,155
Audit-related fees............ 111,137 97,683
Tax fees ......oovvivnn.. 442 966 342,472

All otherfees ............... — —

"Audit services included the audit of our annual financial statements and the review of financial
statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, as well as the audit of internal controls
over financial reporting required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Audit services
also included services that were provided in connection with regulatory filings, including the issuance
of comfort letters and consents related to SEC filings and securities offerings.

Audit-related services are assurance and related services that are related to the performance of
the audit or review of our financial statements. These services principally consisted of work performed
in connection with audits of our 401(k) plan and fees associated with compliance matters related to
acquisitions. :
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Tax services consisted of the preparation and/or review of, and consultations with respect to,
federal, state, local and international tax returns.

Pre-Approval Policy

The charter of the Audit Committee was revised and restated by the board of directors on
February 12, 2004. At such time, the charter of the Audit Committee was revised to implement a
pre-approval policy for the provision of audit and non-audit services. Pursuant to the provisions of its
charter, the Audit Committee pre-approves all auditing services and permitted audit-related services
(including the fees and terms thereof) to be performed for us by our independent auditor, subject to
the de minimus exception (the “de minimus exception”) for non-audit services that are permitted by
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the
completion of the audit. The Audit Committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees
consisting of one or more members when appropriate, including the authority to grant pre-approvals
of audit and permitted non-audit services, provided that a decision of such a subcommittee to grant
pre-approvals shall be presented to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

None of the audit-related services, tax services or other services described above under “Audit
and Other Fees During Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal 2005” were approved by the Audit Committee-after the
fact in reliance upon the de minimus exception.
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PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1)

@)

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Repbrt of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets — September 30, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Operations - For the Years Ended
September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity -
For the Years Ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Conéolidated Statements of Cash Flows — For the Years Ended
September 20, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule 1 — Condensed Financial Information
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules other than those listed above are omitted because
they are not required or are not applicable or the information is
shown in the audited consolidated financial statements or related
notes.
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(3) Exhibits:

Exhibit

Number

31

32

33

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

39

Title .

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of United States Home Health Care Corp. (now
known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the Department of State of the

-State of New York on December 12, 1990, as amended on August 7, 1992 (incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended April 30, 1997).

Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of incorporatioh of Transworld
Home Healthcare, Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the
Department of State of the State of New York on June 28, 1995 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended
April 30, 1997).

Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld
Home Healthcare, Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the
Department of State of the State of New York on October 9, 1996 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 30, 1997).

Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld
Home Healthcare, Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the
Department of State of the State of New York on May 6, 1997 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 30, 1997). : . .

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld HealthCare,
Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the Department of
State of the State of New York on April 16, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.5 of our Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. St. No. 333-87304) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2002).

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of Transworld Healthcare,
Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) filed with the Department of
State of the State of New York on June 7, 2002 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 10, 2002).

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of Allied Healthcare
International Inc. which defines the rights of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, filed
with the Department of State of the State of New York on June 26, 2002 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 9, 2002).

Certificate of Amendment to the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation of Allied
Healthcare International Inc. that defines the rights of the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock, filed with the Department of State of the State of New York on February 12, 2003
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.8 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2003).

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Allied Healthcare
International, Inc. that eliminates all references to the Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock, filed with the New York Secretary of State on July 20, 2004 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 9 of our Form 8-A/A filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 21, 2004).
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Exhibit
Number

3.10

311

312

4.1‘
10._1
10.2
103

10.4A

10.4B

10.4C

Title

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of Allied Healthcare

- International, Inc. filed with the Department of State of the State of New York on

September 10, 2004 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our Current Report
on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 15, 2004).

~ Restated Bylaws of Transworld Home Healthcare, Inc. (now known as Allied Healthcare

International Inc.) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of our Annual Report
on Form 10-X for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1996).

Amendment to the Bylaws of Allied Healthcare International Inc. effective June 7, 2002

" (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 10 2002).

Specimen Certificate of Common Stock (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of
our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
June 10, 2002).

‘Transworld Home HealthCare, Inc. 1992 Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated
‘herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter

ended June 30, 1998).

Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers and directors (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.31 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
October 31, 1994). . .

" Transworld Home HealthCare, Inc. 1997 Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors

(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A of our Proxy Statement for our annual
meeting of shareholders held on May 28, 1997). ..

Voting. Trust Agreement dated December 17, 1999 by and among Transworld Holdings
(UK) Limited (whose name was subsequently changed to Allied Healthcare Group Limited

. and then Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Transworld Healthcare (UK)

Limited (now known as Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited), Transworld Healthcare, Inc.
(now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.), Triumph Partners I1I, L.P. and
Richard Green, as trustee (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.65 of our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 25, 2002, among Allied Healthcare Group Limited
(now know as- Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Transworld Healthcare (UK)
Limited (now known as Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited), Transworld Healthcare, Inc.
(now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.), Triumph Partners III, L.P. and
Richard Green to the Voting Trust Agreement dated December 17, 1999 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 9, 2002).

Deed of ‘Termination, dated June 30, 2004, among Allied Healthcare Group Limited (now

known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Allied Healthcare Holdings
Limited, Allied Healthcare International Inc., Washington & Congress Capital Partners,
L.P. and Richard Green (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).
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Exhibit
Number

10.5A

10.5B

10.5C

10.5D

10.5E

10.6A

10.6B

Title

Senior Credit Agreement, dated as of December 17, 1999, among Transworld Holdings
(UK) Limited (whose name was subsequently changed to Allied Healthcare Group Limited
and then Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Transworld Healthcare (UK)
Limited (now known as Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited), Paribas as Arranger, Paribas
and Barclays Bank plc as Underwriters, Barclays Bank plc as Agent and Security Agent
and others (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.67 of our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Septeniber 30, 1999).

Second Amendment Agreement, dated September 27, 2001, relating to the Senior Credit
Agreement dated December 17, 1999 among Allied Healthcare Group Limited (now
known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Transworld Healthcare (UK)
Limited (now known as Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited), BNP Paribas as Arranger,
Underwriter and Agent, Barclays Bank plc as Agent and Security Agent and others
(incorporated. herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Current Report on Form 8-X filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 12, 2001).

Letter, dated October 1, 2003, from Barclays Bank plc to Allied Healthcare Group Limited
(now known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited) amending the Senior Credit
Agreement dated December 17, 1999 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-115559) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 17, 2004).

Letter, dated February 4, 2004, from Barclays Bank plc to Allied Healthcare Group
Limited (now known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited) amending the Senior
Credit Agreement dated December 17, 1999 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

"10.32 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-115559) filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on May 17, 2004).

Letter, dated Match 8, 2004, from Barclays Bank plc to Allied Healthcare Group Limited
(now known as Alliéd Healthcare Group Holdings Limited) amending the Senior Credit
Agreement dated December 17, 1999 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-115559) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 17, 2004). _

Mezzanine Credit Agreement, dated as of December 17, 1999, among Transworld Holdings

(UK) Limited (whose name was subsequently changed to Allied Healthcare Group Limited
and then Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Transworld Healthcare (UK)
Limited (now known as Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited), Paribas as Arranger,
Underwriter and Agent, Barclays Bank plc as Security Agent and others (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.68 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 1999).

Second Amendment Agreement, dated September 27, 2001, relating to the Mezzanine
Credit Agreement dated December 17, 1999 among Allied Healthcare Group Limited (now
known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Transworld Healthcare (UK)
Limited (now known as Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited), BNP Paribas as Arranger,
Underwriter and Agent, Barclays Bank plc as Agent and Security Agent and others
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 12, 2001).




Exhibit
Number

10.6C

10.6D

10.6E

10.7A

10.7B

10.7C

10.7D*

10.8A

10.8B

10.9

Title

Letter, dated October 1, 2003, from BNP Paribas to Allied Healthcare Group Limited (now
known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited) amending the Mezzanine Credit
Agreement dated December 17, 1999 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to
our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-115559) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 17, 2004).

Letter, dated February 4, 2004, from BNP Paribas to Allied Healthcare Group Limited
{now known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited) amending the Mezzanine
Credit Agreement dated December 17, 1999 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.33 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-115559) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 17, 2004).

Letter, dated March §, 2004, from BNP Paribas to Allied Healthcare Group Limited (now
known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited) amending the Mezzanine Credit

. Agreement dated December 17, 1999 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to

our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-115559) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 17, 2004).

Employment Agreement, dated September 24, 2001, between Transworld Healthcare, Inc.
(now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) and Timothy M. Aitken (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2001).

Employment Agreement, dated September 24, 2001, between Transworld Healthcare, Inc.
(now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.) and Sarah Eames (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2001).

Amendment No. 1, dated November 17, 2004, to the Employment Agreement , dated
September 24, 2001, between Allied Healthcare International Inc. and Sarah L, Eames
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 17, 2004).

Amendment No. 2, dated Septémber 28, 2005, to the Employment Agreement, dated
September 24, 2001, as amended by Amendment No. 1, dated November 17, 2004, between
Allied Healthcare International Inc. and Sarah L. Eames.

Irrevocable Undertaking, dated April 22, 2002, of Timothy M. Aitken relating to the
redeemable shares of Transworld Healthcare (UK) Limited (now known as Allied
Healthcare Holdings Limited) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 of our
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. St. No. 333-87304) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2002).

Irrevocable Undertaking, dated April 22, 2002, of Sarah L. Eames relating to the
redeemable shares of Transworld Healthcare (UK) Limited (now known as Allied
Healthcare Holdings Limited) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of our
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. St. No. 333-87304) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2002). '

Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 30, 2002, among Transworld Healthcare, Inc.
(now known as Allied Healthcare International Inc.), Triumph Partners III, L.P. and
Triumph III Investors, L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.29 of our
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. St. No. 333-87304) filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2002).
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Exhibit
Number

10.10

10.11A

10.11B

10.12

1013

10.14

10.15

10.16

1017

10.18

11

14

Title

- 2002 Stock Option, Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Annex D to the proxy .

statement/prospectus forming a part of Amendment No. 1 to our Registration-Statement on
Form S-4 (Reg. St. No. 333- 87304) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commlssmn on

. May 21, 2002).

Letter agreement, dated December 2, 2003, ‘between Timothy M. ‘Aitken and Allied

~ Healthcare International Inc. relating to loan repayment (incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.36A to our Registration -Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333- 115559) filed .

- with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May-17, 2004)...

Letter agreement dated December 2, 2003, between Sarah L. Eames and Allied Healthcare
International Inc. relating to loan repayment (mcorporated herein by’ reference to Exhibit
10.36B to our Registration Statement on Form-S-1 (Reg. No. 333-115559) filed with the -
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 17, 2004).

Employment Agreement, dated March 29, 2000, between Allied Medicare Limited and
Charles Murphy (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to our Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-115559) filed with the Securities and Exchange

.Commission on May 17,.2004).

Form of Conversion Agreement between Allied Healthcare International Inc. and the

holders of the shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.38 to our Registration Statement on Form' S-1 (Reg. No.

333-115559) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 17, 2004).

Agreement dated February 17, 2004 among Allied Healthcare (UK) Limited and Atos
KPMG Consulting Limited (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004).

Underwriting Agreement dated July 1; 2004, between Allied Healthcare Internatronal Inc.
and the underwriters named therein (1ncorporated herein by referenced to Exhlbrt 10.1 of
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

Facility Agreement, dated July 19 2004, among Allied Healthcare Group Limited (now
* known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdlngs Limited), Allied Healthcare’ International, ’

Inc., Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited, the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare’
International Inc. named therein as guarantors, Barclays Capital and Lloyds TSB Bank pl,
as arrangers, and the other banks named therein (incorporated herein by referenced to
Exhibit 10.4 of our Quarterly:-Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended .June. 30, 2004).

'Floating Security Document, dated Jul‘y 19, 2004, among Allied Healthcare Group Limited

(now known as Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited), Allied Healthcare Holdings
Limited, the subsidiaries of Allied Healthcare International Inc. named therein, and
Barclays Bank plc, as security agent (incorporated herein by referenced to Exhibit 10.5 of

. our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004). |

Subordination Deed, dated July 19, 2004, among Allied Healthcare International Inc.,

‘Barclays Bank plc and Allied Healthcare Group Limited (now known as Allied Healthcare

Group Holdings Limited) (incorporated herein by referenced to Exhibit 10.6 of our
Quarterly-Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004).

Statement re! computation of earnings per share (computation can be determined clearly
from the material contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K).

Allied Healthcare International Inc. Code of Conduct (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 14 to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003).
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Exhibit
Number

21*

23%

31.1%*

312%

32.1%
32.2%

' Title

. Subsndlarxes of Alhed Healthcare Internatlonal Inc

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, 1ndependent reglstered publlc accounting firm of* Alhed

"Healthcare International Inc.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d 14(a) Certxﬁcatxon of Chief Executive Officer.
Rule 13a- 14(a)/15d 14(a) Cert1ﬁcat10n of Chief Financial Officer.
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
Section 1350 Certlﬁcauon of Chief Financial Officer.

*  Filed herewith.

.....
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Exhibit
Number

21*
23*

31.1%

31.2%

32.1%
32.2%

Subsidiaries of Allied Heal_thcare Inperﬁational Inc.

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public accounting firm of Allied

'Healthcare International Inc.

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a5 Certiﬁcation of Chief Financial Officer.
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
Section 1356 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

*  Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. o : ,

ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL
INC.

By: /s/ Timothy M. Aitken

Name: "Timothy M. Aitken
Title: Chairman of the Board and Chief
‘Executive Officer

Dated: November 28, 2005
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Timothy M. Aitken, Charles
F. Murphy and Marvet Abbassi, and each of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and
agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place
and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form
10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith,
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and
each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and
necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person,
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or their or
his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

fs/ Timothy M. Aitken Chairman of the Board and November 28, 2005
Timothy M. Aitken Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)
/s/ Sarah L. Eames Executive Vice President November 28, 2005
Sarah L. Eames and Director
/s/ Charles F. Murphy Chief Financial Officer November 28, 2005
Charles F. Murphy (principal financial and
accounting officer)
/s/ G. Richard Green Director November 22, 2005
G. Richard Green
/s/ Mark Hanley Director November 28, 2005
Mark Hanley
/s/ Wayne Palladino Director November 28, 2005
Wayne Palladino
/s/ Jeffrey S. Peris Director , November 28, 2005
Jeffrey S. Peris
/s/ Scott A. Shay Director November 28, 2005
Scott A. Shay
/s/ Mark Tompkins Director November 28, 2005

Mark Tompkins
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Alhed Healthcare International Inc.
New York, NY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Allied Healthcare International Inc.
and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of September 30, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated
statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2005. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item
15. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial
statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Allied Healthcare International Inc. and subsidiaries as of Séptember 30, 2005 and 2004, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein. ‘

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
November 28, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectlveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York
November 28, 2005
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share data)

September 30, ~  September 30, .
ASSETS 2005 2004
Current assets: - . ‘
Cash and cash equivalents ............. ... ... ... . $ 5,873 $ 9,299
Restrictedcash ......... .. o i i i ‘ — 1,799
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of ) -
$1,734 and $1,269, respectively. ... ... P 33,443 31,263
Unbilled accounts receivable ..., 11,197 - - 9,325
Inventories. ... ... .o _ 359 . 403
Prepaid expenses and other assets .................... ... .. 3,028 2,080
" Total current assets ................. e S 53,900 54,169
Property and equipment, net ............... e ' 22,538 016,584
Goodwill ........ ..o e 216,984 206,110
Other intangible assets, Nt .........ovvivireireennnnnn.. 9,290 S 4306
Derivative asset ................ P . —_ ) 312
Deferred financing costs and other assets ................... 727. 913

TOTAl ASSELS -+ vt et eee ettt et o $303,439 $282,394
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY o

Current liabilities:

Notes payable 1. ........ ... ..o e $ — $ 1,799
Current portion of long-term debt ......................... 10,577 * 10,796
- Liabilities of discontinued operations.................. AR 690 690
Accounts payable..................... R 2,649 : 1,700
Accrued expenses, inclusive of payroll and related expenses. . . 26,463 24,950
Taxes payable .......... e 2,152 766
- Total current liabilities. .. ............ S SR 42,531 40,701
Long-term debt .......... . . 53765 Y 52,183
Derivative liability . .................... o 750 R
Deferred income taxes and other long-term liabilities. ........ . 4,534 . 2533
Total liabilities. .. ... 101,580 95,417
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 10,000 shares,
issued and outstanding —none............ ...l — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 80,000 shares,
issued 45,441 and 45,050 shares, respectively ............. p 454 450
Additional paid-incapital ........... ... .. o 237,796 236,988
Accumulated other comprehensive income.................. 6,112 10,778
Accumulated deficit. ... ... ... o (40,209) (58,945)
204,153 189,271
Less cost of treasury stock (585 shares).................. ... : (2,294) (2,294)
Total shareholders’ equity. ...t 201,859 186,977
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .................. $303,439 $282,394

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Septezl&l))er 30, September 30, September 30,
5

2004 2003

Revenues: :

Net patient SErViCes ... vuverr ettt $342,031 $317,393 $287,964
Net respiratory, medical equipment and supplies ....... 9,158 7,905 6,415
Total revenues................. e 351,189 325,298 294,379

Cost of revenues:

Patient SeIVICES ...\t v it e 243304 227816 209,422
Respiratory, medical equipment and supplies .......... \ 4214 4,311 3,634
 Total COSt OF TEVEMUES « v v vveeese e e eeeenen . 247,518 232,127 213,056
Gross profit . ....vvvui e 103,671 93,171 81,323
Selling, general and administrative expenses.............. 73,948 63,544 53,648
Operating InComMe . . ... ..vtiiiie i, 29,723 29,627 27,675
“Interest iNCOME . . .ottt i e 212 852 2,032

Interest eXPense .. ......oueiuiini it ©(4,201) (14,579) (13,311)

Foreign exchange 10ss ... i i (98) (184) (18)

Other eXPENSE . .o v\ttt (17s) — —
Income before income taxes and discontinued .

OPETALIONS. . ..\ h it 25,461 15,716 16,378

Provision for income taxes . .....c.oovvriineirinerinn... 6,725 5,847 4,910

Income from continuing operations. ................. 18,736 9,869 11,468

Discontinued operations:

Loss from discontinued operations ...................... — — (16)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of taxes of $775...... — — 519

‘ — — 503

Nel ICOME Lottt ee e e e iee e iieaes 18,736 9,869 11,971
Redeemable preferred dividends, conversion fees and

CoacCretion. . ... — 7,020 4,005

Net income available to common shareholders. . .......... $ 18,736 $ 2,849 $ 7966

Basic income per share of common stock from:

_ Income from continuing operations. . .................. $ 042 $ 010 § 034
Income from discontinued operations.................. = ‘ — 0.02
Net income available to common shareholders.......... $ 042 $ 010 $§ 036

Diluted income per share of common stock from:

Income from continuing operations. ................... $ 041 $ 010 § 034
Income from discontinued operations.................. — — 0.02
Net income available to common shareholders.......... $ 041 $ 010 0.36

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:

Basic ... e 44,684 27,419 21,962

Diluted ....... ... i 45,169 28,104 22,304

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands) -

" Accumulated
- _Common Stock A dditional Other Retained
Paid-in Comprehensive  (Deficit)  Officers’ Treasury
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income  Earnings Loans Shares ' - Total
Balance, October 1,2002 . .. ... .. L...20945  $209  $139,309 $(3,112) . $(80,785) ‘$ (958) $ (720) $ 53,943
Gomprehensive income: - L S
Net income . ... .. FEPA 11,971 11 971
Foreign currency translatnon .
~adjustment . . ... e - - : ' 6,252 o 6,252
Comprehensive income .. .......... 18,223
Issuance of common stock for: )
Reorganization. . .. ............. - 890 9 3,471 . 3,480
, ‘Acquisition of Medic-One Group | - Lo ‘ » .
Limited .. ................. 670 7 2,373 2,880
Exercise of stock optlons. Ceee i, o 184 2 666 ‘ 668
Common stock issuance costs . . ... ... (20) (20)
Accretion of Series A preferred stock . . ’
issuance costs. . . ... ... ... (482) (482)
Dividends on Series A preferred stock. . . (3.523) ' Lo (3523)
Issuance of warrants for professwnal
SEIVICES . .. ... A 603 . 603
Cost of treasury shares. ... ......... " (565) (565)
Interest on notes to-officers . .. ... . - . (4) - (44)
.Balance, September 30,2003. . . ... .. . 22,689 227 142,897 3,140 (68,814) (1,002) (1,285) 75,163
Comprehensive income: . .
Netincome . ... ............ o : © 9,869 : T 9,869
Foreign currency translation ' : : s
adjustment . ... ........... ... . 7,638 7,638
Comprehensive income ... ......... o : s e o © 17,507
Issuance of common stock for: a . . ) .
L Offering .. ... 14,500 145 70,905 . 71,050
- Conversion of Series A preferred - ‘ )

Ustock L.l L. 7774 77 35,136 . : . ., 35213
Exercise of stock optlons .......... 87 1 400 , o . . 401
Common stock issuance costs . . ... ... (5,335) . » L . o (5 333)

Conversion fees paid to Series A o - " :

preferred shareholders, net of

conversion agreements claw back

feature . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... (2,029) (2,029)
Write-off of remaining Series A :

preferred stock issuance costs . ... .. ‘ (1,696) ' : (1,696)
Accretion of Series A preferred stock : 5 ' o ' o
 ISSUANCE COSIS. . [, v v vt e (366) , 4 L (366)
Dividends on Series 'A preferred stock.. . . (2,924) . . L2, 924)
Interest on notes to officers . ... ... e c T 1G] :
Repayment of notes issued to officers . . - 1,009 (1,009) (—)
Balance, September 30, 2004. . .. ... .. 45,050 450 236,988 10,778 . - (58,945) - — - (2,294) 186,977
Comprehensive income: : ) . L .

- Net income . . . .. [P 18,736 T 18736

Forexgn currency translation - ‘ '

adjustment . .. . . [ B _ 4258y . . . (4,258)
Unrealized losses from cash flow .
hedging activities. .. ... ........ . (408) o _ T (408)

Comprehensive income .. .......... . 14,070
Issuance of common stock for: o ' :

- Exercise of stock options. . ... . .... 391 _ 4 808 C - 812
Balance, September 30, 2005. . . .. . . .. 45441 $454. . $237,796. $ 6112 . $(40209) $ — $(2,294) '$201,859

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS ‘'OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

September 30,  September 30,  September 30,
2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities: : ‘
Net income +............. [ L oo 818736 - $ 9,869 $11,971
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash ‘ ' C P

provided by operating activities:

Income from discontinued operations.............. — R (503)
Depreciation and amortization.................... 3,293 2,419 . . 1,778
Amortization of intangible assets.................. 1574 - 644 ‘ 207
Amortization of debt issuance costs and warrants . . . . 446 4 1,645 1,858
© Provision.for (reversal of) allowance for doubtful s : o
ACCOUNES « vttt vt tvitan i iinanennnanans ‘. - . 758 (1,653) 1,205
Loss (gain) on sale of fixed assets .............. e 7 3 . (48)
Interestinkind ............ ... il — 540 . 645
Stock based compensation — employees............ 21 T 587
. Interest accrued on loans to officers.......... e ~ (7 (44)
~ Write-off of deferred ﬁnancmg fees and debt o :
; discount ........ ..l . 4,152 613
Deferred income taxes. ................ AR e 152 1,030 (906)
" Changes in operating assets and liabilitiés, excluding the ‘ ' :
effect of businesses acquired and sold:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable. . .. ... ... (2,201) 9,479 -(30)
Decrease (increase) in inventories................. 37 , 61 (45)
(Increase) decrease in prepald expenses and other
ASSEIS . L e (2,545) 2861 - 7 (3.313)
" Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and other _
liabilities . .......ooiie i e 1,213 (7489) . 674
Net cash provided by continuing operations ... ...... - 21491 23,554 14,649
. Net cash provided by discontinued operations .. .... — — 461
Net cash provided by operating activities. ........ 21,491 23,554 15,110
Cash flows from investing activities: SRR S :
" Capital expenditures. . ........c.coviririeininaanaa.n. - (9,709) (7,829) (4,026)
" Proceeds from sale of property and equipment ......... 8 - 29 - - 175
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations.......... . — — 8,195
.Payments for acquisitions — net of cash acquired........ (14,504) (8,976) (9,531)
Proceeds limited to future acquisitions................. 1,850 41,974 T 26,053
Payments on acquisitions payable .............. ... ... (4,793) (1,681) . (7,031)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities. (27,148) 23,517 13,835
(Continued)

-See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(In thousands) ‘
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

September 30,  September 30, September 30,
2005 2004 . 2003

Cash flows from financing activities:

Payments for financing fees and stock issuance costs. . ... (8) (6,223) (20)
Payments on preferred dividends and conversion fees . .. —_ (9,422) —
Proceeds from issuance of stock ...................... ‘ .= 71,050 —
Payments on notes payable................. ... ... (1,850) - (38,740) (19,363)
Proceeds from long-termdebt ................. ... ..., — 53,781 —
Borrowings under revolving loan, net.................. 13,876 8,964 —
Payments on long-term debt........... ... il i — (129,305) —
Principal payments on long-term debt ................. (11,101) (10,039) (6,727)
Proceeds from sale of interest rate cap and floor
2Yea gl oa 131 | SN 98 — —
Payments for treasury shares acquired ................. — — (565)
Stock options exercised ............... e 791 401 80
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .. .. 1,806 (59,533) (26,595)
Effect of exchange rate oncash................. P 425 70 1,063
(Decrease) increase incash. .............. oo, (3,426) (12,392) 3,413
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year............. 9,299 21,691 18,278
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ............... . $ 5,873 $ 9299 $ 21,691
Supplemental cash flow information: ‘
~ Cash paid for inferest. . .........ovevuinveiiinaae... $ 7589 $ 10,444 $ 10,679
Cash paid for income taxes, net...................... . $ 5,398 $ 8528 $ 6,691
Supplemental disclosure of investing and financing '
activities: v
Details of business acquired in purchase transactions: " :
Fair value of assets acquired................ SERPR . $19,959 $ 9,975 $ 12,254
Liabilities assumed or incurred .............. e . 2,316 628 . 2,408
Cash paid for acquisitions (including related
EXPEOSES) « o vt vttt et R 17,643 9,347 9,846
Cash acquired ......... e _ 3,139 371 315
Net cash paid for acquisitions. . ..................... $ 14,504 $ 8976 $. 9,531
Issuance of notes payable ................coviuenn.... A " ‘ $ 36,026
Issuance of COMMON SLOCK « .+ v vverrsrrsrereeenns, ' , o . $ 6,360

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands, except per share data)

1. Business and Operations:

Allied Healthcare International Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a leading provider of
flexible, or temporary, healthcare staffing to the United Kingdom (“U.K.”) healthcare industry as
measured by revenues, market share and number of staff. At September 30, 2005, the Company
operated an integrated network of approximately 115 branches throughout most of the U.K. The
Company’s healthcare staff consists principally of nurses, nurses aides and home health aides (known
as carers in the U.K.). The Company focuses on placing its staff on a per diem basis in hospitals,
nursing homes, care homes (which provide assisted living without medical services) and homes. The
Company maintains a pool of over 22,000 nurses, nurses aides and home health aides. The Company
also supplies medicai-grade oxygen for use in respiratory therapy to the U.K. pharmacy market and
Northern Ireland and oxygen concentrators to customers in Northern Ireland.

In July 2005, the Company reorganized its operations in response to changes in the method by
which its biggest customer, the National Health Services (the “NHS”), required staffing services to be
provided to it. See Note 4.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Consolidation:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“U.S.”). All intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid short-term investments purchased with initial
maturities of 90 days or less.

Stock-Based Compensation:

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation”, the Company continues to apply APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations, in accounting for its stock-based
compensation plans. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its stock option plans.
The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes
option-pricing model.

Had compensation costs for the Company’s stock options been determined consistent with the fair
value method prescribed by FAS No. 123, the Company’s net income and related per share amounts
would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts indicated below for the three years ended
September 30:

2005 2004 2003

Net income available to common shareholders, as reported. .. $18,736 $ 2,849 $7.,966
Add: Stock-based compensation included in reported net

income, net of related tax effect.......... ... ... ... .. .... 21 — 587
Less: Total stock-based compensation expense determined ’

under fair value based method for all awards, net of related

tax effects . ... .. e (2,143) (3,876) (736)
Pro forma net income (loss) attributable to common :

shareholders . ... . i e $16,614 $(1,027) $7,817
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic —asteported . ... i $ 042 - $ 0.10 $ 0.36

Basic—proforma .......... ..ot $ 037 $ (0.04) $ 0.36
Net income (loss) per share:

Diluted —asreported .. ... $ 041 $ 0.10 $ 0.36

Diluted —proforma ...........ccoiiiinniniiiaann... $ 0.37 $ (0.04) $ 0.35




ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

2005 004 2003

Expected life (years)........... SR 9 9 9

Risk-free interestrate........................ e 4.1% 26% 4.1%
Volatility ... .. D e e . 63.9% 66.0% 66.1%
Expected dividend yield................... ... .. : 0% 0% 0%

The ‘,com’pen‘sation cost vas generated by the Black-Scholes option-pricing inode'l may not be ‘
indicative of the future benefit, if any, that may be received by the option holder.

Restricted Cash: -

At September 30, 2004, restricted cash represented proceeds limited to future acquisitions. The
proceeds referred to amounts advanced to the Company under its previous senior collateralized term
and revolving credit facility (the “Former Senior Credit Facility”) that could have only been used by
the Company to fund acquisitions permitted thereunder, including paying additional contingent
consideration. '

On July 19, 2004, the Company’s U K. subsidiary, Allied Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Allied
Holdings”), obtained financing denominated in pounds sterling consisting of a £50,000 multicurrency
new senior credit facility (the “Senior Credit Facility”). Under the Senior Credit Facility, there are no
loan proceeds limited to future acquisitions. The proceeds from the Senior Credit Facility were used,
in part, to repay the Former Senior Credit Facility. See Note 7.

Inventories:

Inventories, which consist primarily of finished goods, include oxygen for use in respiratory
therapy, ancillary medical supplies and certain medical equipment, are valued at the lower of cost
(determined using a first-in, first-out method) or market. :

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment, including revenue-producing equipment, is carried at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Revenue-producing equipment consists of oxygen
cylinders, oxygen concentrators and oxygen valves, Depreciation for revenue-producing equipment is
provided on the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives ranging from seven to twenty .
years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the related lease terms or estimated useful lives,
whichever is shorter.

Purchase Accounting:

For completed acquisitions, preliminary values and useful lives are allocated based upon fair
values that have been determined for assets acquired and liabilities assumed and management’s best
estimates for values that have not yet been finalized. The Company obtains a third-party valuation in
order to complete its purchase price allocations. Accordingly, final asset and liability fair values as well
as useful lives may differ from management’s original estimates and could have an adverse impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Goodwill and other intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortization.
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In accordance with FAS No. 142,“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, all goodwill and
intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer subject to amortization but are subject
to annual impairment tests. The Company completed its annual impairment test required under FAS
No. 142 during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 and determined there was no impairment to its
recorded goodwill balance.

The following table presents the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended
September 30, 2005:

Balance at October 1, 2003 . ..o vtt it e e e e s $183,703
Goodwill acquired during the period............ ... ... .o oL 8,073
Foreign exchange effect ........ ... ... . . . i i 14,334
Balance at September 30,2004 .................. e 206,110
Goodwill acquired during the period......... P 15,623
Foreign exchange effect . ... , (4,749)
Balance at September 30,2005. ... S $216,984

- The goodwill associated with the acquisitions during the prior twelve months is subject to revision
based on the finalization of the determination of the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. Included in the goodwill acquired during the years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 are
the re-allocations of net excess purchase price to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection
with prior year acquisitions of $753 and $215, respectively.

Intangible assets subject to amortization are being amortized on the straight-line method and
consist of the following:

September 30, 2005

Range Gross ’ Net
Of Carrying - Accumulated Carrying
) . Lives ~ Amount ~ Amortization Amount
Customer relationships ............. 5-12 - - $11,355 . $2,087 $9,268
Tradenames ...................... 3 181 171 10
Non-compete agreements .. ......... 2-3 94 88 6
Favorable leasehold interests........ 2-5 21 15 , 6
Total ... $11,651 $2,361 $9,290

September 30, 2004

Range Gross Net
Of Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Lives Amount Amortization Amount
Customer relationships ............. 5-12 $4,844 $689 $4,155
Tradenames ...................... 3 185 113 72
Non-compete agreements . .......... 2-5 135 65 70
Favorable leasehold interests........ 2-5 21 12 9
Total .o o $5,185 $879 $4,306

Amortization expense for other intangible assets still subject to amortization was $1,574, $644 and
$207 for the years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. At September 30, 2005,
estimated future amortization expense of other intangible assets still subject to amortization is as
follows: approximately $1,773, $1,757, $1,680, $1,642 and $1.461 for the fiscal years ending September
30, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and:2010, respectively.
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Deferred Financing Costs:

Costs incurred in obtaining long-term financing are amortized over the terms of the long-term
financing agreements using the straight-line method. At September 30, 2005 and 2004, other assets
included $660 and $846 of deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $220 and $45,
respectively. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company wrote-off $2,937 of deferred
refinancing costs related to the refinancing of its Former Senior Credit Facility. Amortization of
deferred financing costs is included in interest expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statements

of Operations.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method in accordance with FAS No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities
reflect tax carryforwards and the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
asséts and liabilities for financial reporting and income tax purposes, as determined under currently
enacted tax rates. Deferred tax assets are recorded if future realization is more likely than not.

Deferred taxes are recorded primarily for bad debts, federal and state net operating loss
carryforwards, depreciation and amortization of intangibles, which are reported in different periods for
federal income tax purposes than for financial reporting purposes. Valuation allowances are
established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to be realized.

Revenue Recognition:

Patient services and respiratory therapy revenues are recognized when services are performed and
substantiated by proper documentation. For patient services, which account for over 95% of the
Company’s business, revenue is recognized upon completion of timesheets that also require the
signature of the recipient of services. Unbilled accounts receivable represents amounts due for services
performed, but not billed as of the balance sheet date. Revenues from the rental of home medical
equipment are recognized over the rental period (typically on a month-to-month basis) and
approximated $524, $482 and $457 in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Revenues from the sale
of oxygen and supplies for use in respiratory therapy are recognized when products are shipped, a-
contractual arrangement exists, the sales price is either fixed or determinable and collection is
reasonably assured. ‘

The Company receives a majority of its revenue from the NHS and other U.K. governmental
payors. Certain fevenues are subject to review by third-party payors, and adjustments, if any, are
recorded when determined. For the years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, 66.2%, 65.0% and
64.8%, respectively, of the Company’s net revenues were attributable to the NHS and other UK.
governmental payor programs.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed using the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding. Diluted EPS adjusts basic EPS for the effects of stock options and warrants only
when such effect is dilutive. At September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company had outstanding
stock options and warrants to purchase 677, 1,493 and 2,244 shares, respectively, of common stock
ranging in price from $6.20 to $7.25, $5.41 to $7.25 and $4.00 to $7.25 per share, respectively, that were
not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the exercise price was greater than the
average market price of the common shares.

The weighted average number of shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations for the years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:
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2005 2004 2003
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding as
used in computation of basic EPS of common stock ....... 44,684 27,419 21,962
Effect of dilutive securities — stock options and warrants . .... ' 485 685 342

Shares used in computation of dituted EPS of common stock . 45,169 28,104 22,304

Comprehensive Income:

Components of comprehensive income include net income and all other non-owner changes in
equity, such as the change in the cumulative translation adjustment and unrealized losses from cash
flow hedging activities, which are the only items of other comprehensive income impacting the
Company.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted future cash
flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference between the
fair value (discounted future cash flows) and carrying value of the asset. Impairment loss on assets to
be sold, if any, is based on the estimated proceeds to be received, less estimated costs to sell. There
were no impairment losses incurred during the year.

Foreign Currency Translation:

Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is other than the U.S.
dollar are translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date.
Results of operations are translated using weighted average exchange rates during the period.
Adjustments resulting from the translation process are included as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity.

Segment Information:

FAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” establishes
annual and interim reporting standards for an enterprise’s operating segments and related disclosures
about its products, services, geographic areas and major customers. An operating segment is defined
as a component of an enterprise that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company’s U.K. operations derive its revenues from flexible healthcare services, consisting
principally of nurses, nurses aides and home health aides, and supply of medical-grade oxygen for use
in respiratory therapy products to the U.K. pharmacy market and in Northern Ireland as well as
provide oxygen concentrators to customers in Northern Ireland. ‘

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

Cash, accounts receivable, unbilled accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
taxes payable approximate fair value due to the short-term maturity of those instruments. The
derivative asset (liability) is recorded at its estimated fair value. The estimated fair value of the
Company’s outstanding borrowings approximates its carrying value at September 30, 2005 and 2004.

Concentrations of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk are
cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash equivalents with high credit

F-11




ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

quality financial institutions. The Company believes no significant concentration of credit risk exists
with respect to these cash equ1valents C T

The Company grants credit without collateral to its patrents who are pr1mar1ly 1nsured under
third-party agreements. The Company maintains an allowancé for doubtful accounts based on the
expected collectibility of accounts receivable. At Septernber’30, 2005:and 2004, 66.2% and 65.0% of
accounts receivable was due from the NHS and other U.K. governmental payors, respectively, with the
balance due from various other third-party payors and self-pay patients (none of which comprise .
greater than 10% of the balance).

i3

Use of Management’s Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting’
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial .
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used for, but not lrmrted to, the accounting for
allowarice for doubtful accounts, contractual allowances valuatron of 1nvent0r1es accrued expenses,
deprecratwn and amortrzatron

Reclassifications: - o

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In December 2004, the Frnancral Accountmg Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FAS No. 123R
Share-Based Payment (“FAS No. 123R”), which requires companies to measure and recognize ‘
compensation expense for all stock-based payments at fair value. FAS No 123R i is effective for the
Company beginning October 1,2005. The Company anticipates that the adoptlon of FAS No. 123R
will have an effect on its consolidated financial statements. For options vesting in fiscal 2006, the
Company has estimated that it will incur additional compensation costs of approximately $1,100.
Currently, the actual effect of adoption on the Companys financial results cannot be estrmated as it is
dependent on the level of future share-based awards." -

In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets an .
amendment of APB Opinion No. 29 (“FAS No. 153"). FAS No. 153 replaces the exception from farr
value measurement in APB Opinion No. 29 for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productwe assets,
with a general exception from fair value measurement for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do
not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash
flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. FAS No. 153 is to
be applied prospectively, and is effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods
beginning after the date of issuance of FAS No. 153. The Company does not expect the adoption of
FAS No. 153 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) issued Staff Accounting :
Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB No. 107”) regarding the staff’s interpretation of FAS No. 123R. This
interpretation expresses the views of the staff regardrng the interaction between FAS No. 123R and
certain SEC rules and regulations and provides the staff’s views regarding the valuation of share-based
payment arrangements for public companies. In connection with the Company’s adoptron of FAS No.
123R, it will adopt SAB No. 107 and is currently evaluating the impact of SAB No. 107 on its
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In May 2005, the FASB issued FAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections (“FAS
No. 154”). FAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle and requires
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retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes-in accounting principle,
unless it is'impracticable to determine the, effect of a change. FAS No. 154 also makes a distinction
between “retrospective application” of an accounting principle and the “restatement” of financial
statements to reflect the correction of an error. FAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and
corrections of erfors made in fiscal years begmmng after December 15, 2005. The Company does not
believe the adoption of FAS No. 154 will have a material impact on its consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

3. Business Combinations and Disposals:

Combina_tions:

In fiscal 2005, the Company acquired a'total of 9 Social Service agencies for approximately
$17,059 in cash and $69 in acquisition-payable. As of September 30, 2005, these transactions included
provisions to pay additional amounts; payable in cash, of i up to $9, 735 n conflngent con51deratlon ‘
dependent upon future” earmngs of the acqulred entities. :

In ﬁscal 2004, the Company acqulred a total of 8 ﬂex1ble stafﬁng agen01es for approx1mately
$8,610 in cash. At September 30, 2004, these transactions included provisions to pay additional
amounts, payable in cash, of up to $10,501 in contingent consideration dependent upon future
earnings of the acquired entities. In fiscal 2005 a total of $6 120 was earned, of which $1,563 remains
payable as of September 30, 2005. In addition, as of September 30, 2005, these transactions continued.
to include provisions to pay additional amounts, payable in cash, of up to $2,743 in contingent
consideration dependent upon future earnings of the acquired entities. The remaining balance of
contingent consideration was unearned and will not be required.

In fiscal 2003, the Company acquired a total of 7 flexible staffing agencies for approxnnately
$8,837 in cash and the issuance of 670 shares of the Companys common stock. These transactions
included provisions to pay additional amounts, payable by combination of cash and shares of the
Company’s stock, of up to $20,952 in contingent consideration dependent upon future earnings of the
acquired entities. Of the $20,952 in contingent consideration, $6,101 was unearned and will not be
required and- $1,272 was earned and paid in fiscal 2003. As such, at September 30, 2003, an aggregate
of $13,579 was payable dependent upon further earnings of the acquired entities. Of the $13,579 in
contingent consideration, $12,015 was unearned and will not be required and the remaining balance
was earned and paid in fiscal 2004.

In fiscal 2005, the Company completed its purchase price allocation for its fiscal 2004 ‘acquisitions.
Accordingly, tangible assets, separately identifiable intangible assets and liabilities were assigned
values of approximately $1,311, $3,493 and $709 respectively, with the remaining portion of $4,913
attributable to goodwill.

In fiscal 2004, the Company completed its purchase price allocation for its remaining fiscal 2003
acquisitions. Accordingly, tangible assets, separately identifiable intangible assets and liabilities were

assigned values of approximately $377, $1,209 and $368, respectively, with the remaining portlon of
$5,109 attributable to goodwill.

In fiscal 2003, the Company completed its purchase price allocation for one of its fiscal 2003 ..
acquisitions. Accordingly, tangible assets, separately identifiable intangible assets and liabilities were
assigned values of approximately $2, 861 $1,410 and $2, 157 respect1vely, W1th the remalnxng portlon of
$6,576 attributable to goodwill.

The preliminary purchase price allocatlons for the ﬁscal 2005 acqulsmons are subject to
adjustments and will be finalized once additional information concerning asset and liability valuations
are obtained. Accordingly, final asset and liability fair values may. differ from those set forth on the
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accompanying consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2005; however, the changes are not
expected to have a material effect on the consohdated financial posmon results of operations or cash
flows of the Company.

The pro forma results of operatlons and related per, share information for these acquisitions have
not been presented as the amounts are considered 1mmater1al

Dispositions:

U.S. Home Healthcare

In the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company sold all of the issued and outstanding capital
stock of two of its subsidiaries, The PromptCare Companies, Inc. and Steri-Pharm, Inc., collectively
referred to as “Home. Healthcare,” for approximately $8,500 in cash. Home Healthcare, which
comprised the Company’s U.S. operations, was concentrated in New York and New Jersey, and
supplied infusion therapy, respiratory therapy and home medical equipment. In accordance with the .
provisions of FAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“FAS
No. 144”), the Company has accounted for Home Healthcare as a discontinued operation. The
consolidated financial statements reflect the liabilities of the discontinued operations, and the
operations for the prior periods are reported in discontinued operations. :

The following table presents the financial resultsldf the discontinued operati_bris for the year l
ended September 30:

2003
Revenues: B
“Net infusion SEIVICES . v v vt ettt it iiae e A - $ 6,685
Net respiratory, medical equipment and supplies............... ‘ ‘ 2479
Total revenues. ........... . 9164
Cost of revenues:

Infusion services ............... ... i P - 5,159
Respiratory, medical equ1pment and supphes ................. : 1,438 -
Total cost of revenues ... ... ... ..o . © 6,597

Selling, general and administrative expenses. .................. ‘ 2,583
Gain on sale of subsidiaries ................ ... . oo L (1,294)
Tax on gain on sale of subsidiaries .................... L 775
Income from discontinued operations ........................ $ 503
Diluted income per share from discontinued operations ... .. . $ 0.02

At September 30, 2005, liabilities of discontinued operations of $69O relate to certain tax
contingencies.

4. Reorganization:

In July 2005, in response to the changing structure of the method of supply to the NHS, the
Company reorganized its operations. The NHS has divided England into eight regions and requires
any healthcare staffing company that provides temporary staff to the NHS hospitals in a region to
enter into a Framework Agreement setting forth, among other things, applicable quality standards and
maximum payment rates. Thus, instead of operating through a number of different subsidiaries
(Staffing Enterprise, Medic-One Group, Balfor Medical, Nurses Direct, Nightingale Nursing Bureau
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and Allied Healthcare (UK)) to supply healthcare staff, the Company’s healthcare staffing business
was reorganized into two main operations. One part of the Company’s flexible healthcare staffing
business is operated by its Allied Staffing Professionals Limited subsidiary, which provides staff to the
NHS under the NHS Framework Agreements currently in operation in three (London, South East
and East England) of the eight areas into which the NHS has divided the U.K. and also provides staff
to its former Balfor Medical operations in the northern England. The remainder of the Company’s
healthcare staffing business is operated by its Allied Healthcare Group Limited subsidiary, and
includes the rest of its NHS business and all its homecare work. As a result of this reorganization, and
in accordance with FAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,”
the Company recognized pre-tax charges of $631 to satisfy existing lease obligations on the closure of
several of its U.K. offices and $442 for severance and employee related costs in its fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005. At September 30, 2005, $601 to satisfy existing lease obligations on the closure of several
of its U.K. offices and $50 for severance and employee related costs have not been paid.

In Juty 2005, the Company also rebranded the U.K. gr’oup operations and launched a new
corporate logo. The Company recognized a charge of $1,017 in its fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 related
to the new corporate logo.

Revenue related to the Company supplying medical-grade cylindered oxygen for use in
respiratory therapy. to the U.K. pharmacy market is derived wholly for contracts with pharmaceutical
suppliers who hold relevant government service agency contracts, and comprised less than 3% of the
Company’s revenues. In 2005, the U.K. Department of Health sought to unify the supply of oxygen to
NHS patients in England and Wales. The current system uses pharmacies to supply cylindered gases,
while oxygen concentrators are supplied via regional contracts with homecare providers. Under the
revised system homecare providers will be permitted to supply cylindered gas and liquid oxygen as
well as oxygen concentrators. The Company submitted a re-tender offer for such businesses. In
August 2005, the Company received two written contracts for the Southeast of England which will
commence in February 2006. As the existing cylinder business is organized on a National distribution
structure, the award of the areas in the Southeast of England only will require a reorganization of
some of the Company’s facilities from the center of the U.K. to the southeast of England in fiscal
2006. The Company’s supply of cylindered gases in Northern Ireland and Scotland is unaffected, as is
its contract to supply oxygen concentrator services in Northern Ireland. These changes will result in
the Company incurring additional charges in fiscal 2006 as it migrates from the existing contracts to
the new contracts awarded.

5. Property and Equipment:

Major classes of property and equipment, net, consist of the following at September 30:

2005 - 2004
Revenueproducingequipment............_....................:.. $15,401 $14,108
Furniture, fixtures and equipmeqt ................................. 24,393 16,971
Land, buildings and leasehold improvements....................... ‘ 895 879

40,689 31,958
Less, accumulated depreciation and amortization ................... 18,151 15,374
| | $22,538 $16,584

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment for the years ended September 30,
2005, 2004 and 2003 were $3,293, $2,419 and $1,778, respectively. The net book value of revenue
producing equipment was $8,417 and $7,690 at September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004,
respectively.
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6. . Accrued Expenses:

~ Accrued expenses consist of the following at September 30:

, o _ . | , ‘ _2005 2004
Payroll and related expenses . .............. [T ceeeee $18,015 4$20,50'O
Acquisitions payable ................. Cee e - 1,632 —
Professional feeS. . .o vt e e 1,586 - 628
O e ottt e e e e 5,230 _ 3,822

$26,463 $24,950

7. Debt:

On July 19, 2004, the Company’s U.K. subsidiary obtained a Senior Credit Facility. Additionally,
subject to the terms of the Senior Credit Facility, ancillary facilities, in the form of an additional
facility or financial accommodation (including an interest rate swap, cap, or other arrangement for the
hedging or fixing of interest) are available up to a maximum of £15 million.

The Senior Credit Facility (together with approximately $65,715 of the net proceeds of the
Companys fiscal 2004 completed public offermg) refinanced the Companys Former Senior Credit
Facility and mezzanine indebtedness (the “Mezzanine Loan”), both of which had been entered into on
December 17, 1999. The Senior Credit Facility is secured by a first priority lien on the assets of Allied
Healthcare Group Holdings Limited, formerly know as Allied Healthcare Group Limited, and certain
of its subsidiaries. Together with Allied Healthcare Group Holdmgs Limited and certain of its
subsidiaries, the Company is guaranteeing the debt and other obligations of certain wholly- owned
UK. subsidiaries under the New Senior Credit Facility.

The New Senior Credit Facility consists of the following:
*  £30,000 ($52,884) term loan, A, maturing July 19, 2009; and

s £20,000 ($35,256) revolving loan B maturmg July 19, 2009 Wthh may be drawn upon until
June 19, 2009.

Repayment of the term loan A commenced on January 19, 2005 and continues semi-annually
until final maturity. Repayment of revolving loan B shall be on the last day of its interest period. Both
the A and B loans bear interest at rates equal to LIBOR (if sterling) or EURIBOR (if euros) plus
any bank mandatory costs (if applicable) plus 0.70% to 0.90% per annum (depending on consolidated
debt to consolidated profit ratios). As of September 30, 2005, the Company had outstanding
borrowings of $42,307 and $22,035 relating to term loan A and revolving loan B, respectively, under
the Senior Credit Facility, that bore interest at a rates ranging from 5.37% to 5.36%. As of September
30, 2004, the Company had outstanding borrowings of $53,982 and $8,997 relating to term loan A and
revolving loan B, respectively, under the Senior Credit Facility, that boré interest at a rate of 5.66%.

The Senior Credit Facility agreement is based on the U.K.’s Loan Markets Association
Multicurrency Term and Revolving Facilities agreement which is a standard form de51gned to be
commercially acceptable to the corporate lending market.
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Sub]ect to certain exceptlons the Senior Credit Facility prohibits or restricts the following, among
_ other things: :

. 1ncurrmg liens and granting’security interests in the assets of certain of the Companys UK.
’ ‘sub51d1ar1es

¢ incurring addmonal indebtedness;

¢ making certain fundamental corporate changes;

* paying dividends (including the payment of dividends to the Companyb by its subsidiaries);
* making specified investments, acquisitions or disposals; and

. eﬁte,ri.rlg into certain transactions with affiliates.

The Senior Credit Facility contains affirmative and negative financial covenants customarily found
in agreements of this kind, including the maintenance of certain financial ratios, such as debt to
earnings (including amounts provided for depreciation and amortization), earnings (before interest
and taxes) to interest expense, minimum net worth, maximum ancillary facilities indebtedness and the
prohibition of off balance sheet funding. The Company is also obligated to ensure that the guarantors
of the Senior Credit Facility must not at any time represent less than 90% of the consolidated gross
assets, turnover or earnings before interest and taxes of the U.K. subsidiaries. As of September 30,
2005 and 2004, the Company was in compliance with such covenants.

Notes Due in Connection with Acquisitions. "The Company repaid, through Allied Holdings,
notes payable of $1,850, $38,740 and $19,363 issued in connection with the acquisition of certain U.K.
flexible staffing agencies, in fiscals 2005, 2004 and 2003 respectively. In addition, in fiscal 2003, the
Company wrote-off $613 of debt discount related to the note payment. The né)tes payable were
secured by the Company’s former senior credit lender which required the Company to keep an
amount on deposit for the sole purpose of repaying the notes payable.

Guarantees. The Senior Credit Facility is secured by a first priority lien on the assets of the
Allied Healthcare Group Holdings Limited and certain of its subsidiaries. Together with Allied
Healthcare Group Holdings Limited and certain of its subsidiaries, the Company is guaranteeing the
debt and other obligations of certain wholly-owned U.K. subsidiaries under the Senior Credit Facility.
At September 30, 2005 and 2004, the amounts guaranteed, Wthh approximate the amounts
outstanding, totalled $64,342 and $62,979, respectively.

Financial Instruments. On March 20, 2003, upon the explratlon of the Companys prior Rate Cap
and Floor Agreement, the Company entered into a Rate Cap and Floor Collar Agreement that
capped its interest rate at LIBOR of 5.50% and its interest floor at LIBOR of 4.47%, subject to special
provisions, on approximately $88,140 of the Company’s floating rate debt under a contract which
would have expired on March 20, 2008. In accordance with FAS No. 133, "Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,” as amended by FAS No. 138 and related
implementation guidance, the Company calculated the fair value of the interest cap and floor
derivative to be an asset of $312 at September 30, 2004. In February 2005 the Company sold this
derivative instrument for approximately $100.

On February 8, 2005, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements, which expire
on July 20, 2009, the objective of which is to protect the Company against the potential rising of
interest rates on its floating rate debt. The two interest rate swap agreements cover approximately
- $52,884 of the Company’s floating rate debt until January 21, 2008 and then decreases by $5,288 each
six month period, in order to reflect the amortizing effect of the Company’s floating rate debt, until
the end of the interest rate swap agreements. The interest rate under the swap agreements is fixed at
4.935% and is payable semi-annually. In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company designated the
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two interest rate swap agreements as cash flow hedges. In accordance with FAS No. 133, the Company
calculated the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements to be a liability of $750 at September 30,
2005. Prior to the cash flow hedge designation, changes in the value from period to period of the
interest rate swap agreements was recorded as other expense or income, as appropriate. At September
30, 2005, the effective portion of the loss on the interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow
hedges was $408, net of income tax, and is included in other comprehensive income. The Company
will continue to assess the effectiveness of these cash flow hedges on a quarterly basis.

Annual maturities of long-term debt for each of the next five years are:

Year ending September 30, .
2000, e e $10,577

L2007, e e 10,577
2008, i e e SR 10,577
2000, . . e e 32,611
2010.....: e S S e . S
Thereafter ..................... DU ’ —

T $64,342

8. Series A Preferred Stock:

In fiscal 2002, the Company exchanged equity investments and subordinated debt investments in
its U.K. subsidiaries for shares of its common stock (the “Reorganization”). In the Reorganization,
the Company issued 7,774 shares of its Series A preferred stock with an aggregate liquidation
preference of £22,287 ($35,213 at the fixed exchange rate of $1.58 set forth in an amendment to our
certificate of incorporation defining the rights of the Series A preferred stock). The shares of Series A
preferred stock were issued to certain equity investors in Allied Holdings in exchange for 22,287
ordinary shares of Allied Holdings.

During March through May of 2004, the Company entered into conversion agreements (the
“Conversion Agreements”) with all of the holders of our Series A preferred stock. Pursuant to the
Conversion Agreements, such holders converted their shares into a like number of shares of common
stock upon the consummation of the Company’s July 7, 2004 issuance of 14,500 shares of its commons
stock pursuant to the registration statement on Form S-1 that was declared effective by the Securities
and Exchange Commission on July 1, 2004 (the “Offering”). The Company paid to the holders of the
Series A preferred stock an aggregate of $7,388 in accrued and unpaid dividends and $2,034
conversion fee from the proceeds of the offering.

The following table presents the changes in the carrying amount of the Series A preferred stock
for the year ended September 30, 2004:

2004
Balance at October 1, 2003 , net of issuance costs. ............. $ 33,151
Accretion of issuance costs, based on interest rate method ..... : 366
Write-off of remaining issuance costs......................... 1,696
Conversion into common shares .....................ooovnn. 35,213)

Balance at September 30,2004 ............ .. ... .ol —

9. . Shareholders’ Equit‘y:‘

On December 2, 2003, Mr. Aitken, the Company’s Chairman of the Board, and Ms. Eames, who
was then serving as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, repaid in full the principal and accrued
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interest on the promissory notes issued by them to the Company in connection with the
Reorganization in fiscal 2002. The principal and accrued interest repaid aggregated $591 and $419,
respectively. The loans were repaid by delivery to the Company of 104 and 73 shares of the
Company’s common stock held by Mr. Aitken and Ms. Eames, respectively, valued at $5.70 per share,
.the closing price on the day prior to the repayment date. The shares delivered by Mr. Aitken and Ms,
Eames are held by the Company as treasury shares and are reflected as treasury stock in the
consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2005. The Company also agreed to reimburse Mr. Aitken
and Ms. Eames for the taxes incurred by them on the disposition of the shares to the Company, which
were $83 and $51; respectively.

In January 2001, the Company initiated a stock repurchase program, whereby the Company
may purchase up to approximately $1,000 of its outstanding common stock in open market or
privately negotiated transactions. In May 2003, the Company initiated another stock repurchase
.program, whereby the Company may purchase up to an additional $3,000 of its outstanding common
stock in open market transactions or in privately negotiated transactions. As of September 30, 2005,
the Company had acquired 408 shares for an aggregate purchase price of $1,285 pursuant to its stock
repurchase programs, which are reflected as treasury stock in the consolidated balance sheet at
September 30, 2005.

10. Income Taxes:

. The provision for income taxes from continuing operations for the years ended September 30,
2005, 2004 and 2003 is summarized as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Current; o : _ . |
Federal. . .....ovuteeiie e SO $ 2 $ (68) $(1,806)
Foreign ...... ... it ‘ 6,388 4,885 7,622
Deferred: ‘
FOTEIGN ...t e, 335 1,030 (906)
Provision for inCOmMe taxes. ... ..cvviiieveeeee i, $6,725 . $5,847 $ 4910
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net-tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying .
amounts of assets and liabilities recorded for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
income tax purposes. Significant- components 1of the Companys deferred tax assets and habrhtles as of
September 30, 2005 and 2004 are as follows . : :

a5 .. 2004
Deferred tax assets: S L L ST T T . C .
- Accrued expenses.". . .. A AN S T S AP I SNV TR $ 671 . % 260
- Federal net operating loss carryforward ......... LS ecnosa vl o 26,047 i 126,402
State net operating loss carryforward. . .......... ... ... ... 79064 © 9,046
Depreciation ............. e PP, e e .8 6
Intangible assets............. T S 85 104
Other, net ............... T S 2377 T 14
Gross deferred tax assefs .. . ... et e 36112 35832
Valuation. allowance.........: T A A e T (35887) L+ (35,832)
Net deferred tax assets ... U S R+ B T
Deferred tax liabilities: R o S L
DEpreciation .. ......v.eirte e (1,947) (1,054)
Intangible assets. ... ... .ottt e (2,787) (1,292)
Other, Nt ...ttt e e e e — (94)
Deferred tax liabilities. . ...... .o oo o (4734) - (2,440)
Net deferred tax liability. ..................... PR S $4(4,509) $ (2,440)

The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its U.S. deferred tax assets as
management believes it is not more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will be utilized prior
'“1o their expiration. Subsequent recognition of these deferred tax assets would result in an mcome tax

benefit in the year of such recognition. - . : : ‘ :

.. As of September 30, 2005, the Company has a federal net operating loss carryforward of

" approximately $76,610 whichiif unused, will expiré in the years 2018 through 2023. Current or future
ownership changes may limit the future realization of these net operating losses in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code section 382.

Reconciliations of the differences between income taxes computed at federal statutory tax rates
and consolidated provisions for income taxes on income before income taxes and discontinued
operations for the years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

2008 2004 _ 2003
Income taxes at 34 . .. oo et i e $ 8,657 $5,343 $ 5,569
Tax CONtINGENCY . ... oovt ittt i — — (1,874)
Nondeductible compensation. . ..............c.ovoiiie .., — 304 94
Valuation allowance ............couiiirinennennnnnnnennn. 55 1,071 1,304
Disqualifying dispositions of stock options.................. (424) — —
FOTeign taX, et . ...\ttt ettt i enee s (1,486) (876) (189)
Other, Met .. .ot e e e (77) 5 6
Provision for inCOmMe taxes. . ....oovvirrreerernnniiienneen, $ 6,725 $5,847 $ 4,910

Provision has not been made for U.S. or additional foreign taxes on approximately $60,097 of
undistributed earnings of the U.K. foreign subsidiaries. Those earnings have been and will continue to
be reinvested. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability with respect to such
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earnings is not practical. We believe that the amount of additional taxes that might be payable on the
earnings of- forelgn sub51d1arles if remitted, would be partially offset by the U.S. foreign tax credits.

Income before income taxes generated from the UK. ‘operations for the years ended September
30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $24, 144, $19,970 and $20,307, respectlvely

11; Stock Option Plan and Warrants: .
Stock Options:

Under the Company’s 2002 Option Plan (“Option Plan”), options may be granted by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors which determines the exercise price, vesting
provisions and term of such grants. In accordance with the terms of the Option Plan, the number of
shares available for issuance increases by one percent of the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding as of the first day of each fiscal year.

Followmg is a summary of transactlons under the Option Plan during the year ended September
30, 2005, 2004 and 2003:

2005 2004 2003

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number Average Number Average Number Average

. Of Stock Exercise  of Stock Exercise of Stock Exercise

. o . Options Price ($) _ Options . Price (%) QJtions Price ($)
Outstanding beginning of year....... 2,646 4.87 . 2,254 . 458 1,530 . 4.24
Granted ............ T 652 593 o713 5.70 . 1,415 4.30
Exercised . ....... e, T (410) 218  (87) . 4.63 (403)  2.40
Forfeited ... .vunreeeeeeeeeen. (278) 554 (234).  4.68 (288) . 4.42
Qutstanding end of year ............ 2,610 5.49 2,646 4.87 2,254 4.58

Weighted-average fair
value of options granted
during the year....................

I
'
N
o
N
N
[
o
\O

H
Il

Available for future grants ........ o1 626

On May 28,1997, the Company adopted a stock option plan for non- employee directors (the
“Directors Plan”) which gives non-employee directors options to purchase up to 100 shares of
common stock. As of September 30, 2005, no options have been granted under the Directors Plan.
Optxons under the Directors Plan may be granted by the Board of Directors which determmes the
exercise price, vestmg provisions and term of such grants.

A summary of the 2,610 options outstandlng as of September 30 2005 is as follows:

Range ' . Weighted Average Welghted Average ' Weighted Average
of " Exercise Price - Remaining ’ -~ Exercise Price
Exercise - | p - Number- of Options ; Contractual Life Number - of Options
Price ($) Outstanding  Outstanding ($) In Years Exercisable  Exercisable ($)
383570 . i, 1,933 4.97 82 1,711 4.97
620-725 ....... Seeeann S 677 6.98 - ’ 34 SOQ o 725

o T 2610 5.49 70 2201 549
Warrants:

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, in connection with the execution of an agreement with an
unaffiliated third party pursuant to which such third party agreed to provide us with consulting
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services related to corporate finance and investment banking matters, the Company.issued to such
third party warrants to purchase up to an aggregate .of 350 shares of its common stock. Of the 350
warrants issued, 100 of the warrants are exercisable at $4.75 per share, 175 of the warrants are
exercisable at $5.50 per share and 75 of the warrants are exercisable at a price of $6.00 per share. The
warrants expire on August 13, 2007. At issuance, the fair value of the warrants of $603 was recorded
as a deferred cost and is being amortized over the two year life of the agreement. For the years ended
September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded $260, $302 and $41, respectively, in
amortization related to such warrants. ‘

12, Commitments and Contingencies:

Acquisition Agreements:

Related to the Company’s acquisitions of certain flexible staffing agencies, the Company has
entered into agreements to pay additional amounts, in cash, of up to $12,478 at September 30, 2005, in
contingent consideration dependent upon future earnings of such acquired entities.

Guarantees:

The Senior Credit Facility is secured by a first priority lien on the assets of the Allied Healthcare
Group Holdings Limited and certain of its subsidiaries. Together with Allied Healthcare Group
Holdings Limited and certain of its subsidiaries, the Company is guaranteeing the debt and other
obligations of certain wholly-owned U.K. subsidiaries under the Senior Credit Facility. At September
30, 2005 and 2004, the amounts guaranteed, which approximate the amounts outstanding, totaled
$64,342 and $62,979, respectively.

Employment Agreements:

The Company has three employment agreements that provided for minimum aggregate annual
compensation of $1,007 in fiscal 2005.

In September 2001, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Aitken. The
employment agreement has a three-year term (subject to automatic renewal for successive additional
one-year periods unless either party provides the other with notice of intent to terminate the
agreement at least 90 days before the then applicable termination date). The employment agreement
provides that the Company will negotiate in good faith, commencing not less than 90 days prior to the
anniversary date of the employment agreement, the amount, if any, of future salary increases. The
salary of Mr. Aitken is currently $516. Mr. Aitken’s employment agreement provides that if his
employment is terminated during the term of the agreement other than for cause, death or disability,
or if, within six months of a “change 'in control” (as defined in the agreement) of the Company, Mr.
Aitken or the Company terminates his employment, then (1) all stock options in the Company held
by Mr. Aitken shall immediately vest and (2) Mr. Aitken will be entitled to receive a cash payment of
2.9 times his average annual base salary during the twelve months precedmg the change of control or
the termination of employment.

In September 2001, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Ms. Eames, which
was modified in November 2004 and September 2005. Pursuant to her employment agreement, as
modified, Ms. Eames will serve as Executive Vice President of the Company until December 31, 2006
at an annual salary of $120. Ms. Eames’ employment agreement, as modified, provides that if her
employment is terminated during the term of the agreement other than for cause, death or disability,
then all stock options in the Company held by Ms. Eames shall immediately vest and Ms. Eames shall
be entitled to receive her salary through December 31, 2006. :
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In Deeds of Restrictive Covenants.entered into in 1999 with one of our U.K. subsidiaries, Mr.
Aitken and Ms. Eames have each agreed not to compete with the Company or its subsidiaries for
twelve months following termination of employment without the Company’s prior written consent.

The Company has also entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Murphy, its Chief
Financial Officer. The employment agreement with Mr. Murphy is terminable by either party on six
months’ notice and provides that Mr. Murphy will not compete ‘against us for a period of twelve
months following his termination of employment. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr.
Murphy’s salary is currently $333. ' »

Operating Leases:

‘The Company has entered into various operating lease agreements for office space and
equipment. Certain of these leases provide for renewal options.

The Company’s future minimum rental commitments as of September 30, 2005 are as follows:

2006, . e $2,326
2007, o e 1,755
2008, e e e 1,244
2000, . 1,047
2000, . 823
Thereafter ... 1,340

$8,535

Rent expense under non-capitalized lease agreements for the years ended September 30, 2005,
2004 and 2003 amounted to $3,912, $3,493 and $2,749, resp‘ectively.

Contingencies:

Some of the Company’s subsidiaries were Medicare Part B suppliers who submitted claims to the
designated carrier who is the government’s claims processing administrator. From time to time, the
carrier may have requested an audit of Medicare Part B cl“aims on a prepayment or postpayment
basis. If the outcome of any audit results in a denial or a finding of an overpayment, then the affected
subsidiary has appeal rights. Under postpayment audit procedures, the supplier generally pays the
alleged overpayment and can pursue appeal rights for a refund of any paid overpayment incorrectly

- assessed against the supplier.

The Company believes that it is in compliance, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the federal statutes, regulations and laws and applicable state laws together with all
applicable laws and regulations of other countries in which the Company operates. Due to the broad
and sometimes vague nature of these laws and regulations,‘ there can be no assurance that an
enforcement action will not be brought against the Compaﬂny, or that the Company will not be found
to be in violation of one or more of these provisions. At p‘resent, the Company cannot anticipate what
impact, if any, subsequent administrative or judicial interpretation of the applicable federal and state
laws and those of other countries may have on the Comp‘a‘ny’s consolidated financial position, cash
flows or results of operations. '

The Company is involved in various other legal proceF:dings and claims incidental to its normal
business activities. The Company is vigorously defending i‘ts position in all such proceedings.
Management believes these matters should not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated

financial position, cash flows or results of operations of the Company.
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13. Operations by Business Segments and Geographic Areas:: -

As disclosed in Note 3, the Company sold all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of its
Home Healthcare operations‘in the third quarter of fiscal 2003 and as such, has classified the Home
Healthcare results of operations as discontinued operations. As a result of this transaction, the
Company no longer operates in the U.S. Home Healthcare segment. Accordingly, the Company’s
continuing operations were in the U.K. The UK. operations derive its revenues from flexible
healthcare services (“Staffing”), consisting principally of nurses, nurses aides and home health aides,
and supply of medical-grade oxygen (“Oxygen”)for use in respiratory therapy products to the U.K.
pharmacy market and in Northern Ireland and also provides oxygen concentrators to customers in
Northern Ireland.

The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based on profit and loss from
operations before corporate expenses, interest and income taxes. The accounting policies of the
business segment are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

The following tables present certain financial information by reportable business segment for the

years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003.
o Year Ended September 30, 2005

, ‘ Staffing Oxygen Total
Total revenues to unaffiliated customers . ...................... $342,031 $ 9,158 $351,189
Segment operating profit ........... ... .. e $ 28,714 $ 3,662 $ 32,376
Unallocated corporate eXpenses. . .........ooovveiieeeneon.. (2,653) -
Interest and other expense, net ......... ... .. ... . ... .. .. (4,164)
Foreign exchange loss ...... ... ... ... .. . i {98)
Income before income taxes . ..................v.nn. SRR $ 25,461
Depreciation and amortization. . ... . $ 4,081 $ 779 $ 4,860
Corporate depreciation and amortization. . ....................: . 7
Total depreciation and amortization. . . ............. ... ........ $ 4867
Identifiable assets, September 30, 2005. . . ...................... $288,363 $12,306 . . $300,669
Corporate assets . . ... ovv it e . v 2,770
Total assets, September 30,2005 .. ..ottt . - $303,439
Total Capital.expenditures . ... ............... R $ 8,016 $ 1,693 $ 9,709
Year Ended September 30, 2004
’ ' Staffing Oxygen Total
Total revenues to unaffiliated customers .. ... .. P, . $317,393 $ 7,905 $325,298
Segment operating profit . ... ...... ... .. $ 31,935 $ 2,618 $ 34,553
Unallocated corporate €Xpenses. ... ...........ovuuun.... o S (4,926)
Interest €Xpense, NEt .. ... ... ie it * ©(13,727)
Foreign exchange 108s. .. ..ot {184)
Income before inCOMe taxes . ..........cououeivinunrennanennns $ 15,716
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . e e o ' $ 2174 $ 882 $ 3,056
Corporate depreciation and amortization. . . .. . U ' . 7
Total dépreciation and amortization. . . e e $ 3,063
Identifiable assets, September 30,2004, ... ........ ... ... ....... $267,080 $10,595 $277,675
Corporate assets . . ... T 4,719
Total assets, September 30,2004 ............... e ‘ » $282,394
Total Capital expenditures .. ........... e v $ 6,296 $ 1,533 $ 7,829
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Total revenues to unaffiliated customers

Segment operating profit

Unallocated corporate expenses
Interest .expense, net
Foreign exchange loss

Income before income taxes and discontinued operations

Depreciation and amortization

Corporate depreciation and amortization

Total depreciation and amortization

Identifiable assets, September 30, 2003

Corporate assets
Total assets, September 30, 2003

Capital expenditures .’

Cbrporate capital expenditures

Total capital expenditures

14. Profit Sharing Plan:

The Company has a profit sharing plan pursuant to Sect

\
Year Ended September 30, 2003

Staffing Oxygen Total
$287.964 $ 6,415 $294,379
$ 30,204 $ 1,293 $ 31497
' (3,822)
(11,279)
. (18)
" §'16378
$ 1291 $ 685 $ 1,976
9
$ 1,985
- $291,724 $10,585 $302,309
’ 9,359
$311,668
$ 1,832 $ 2,183 $ 4,015
11
$ 4,026
ion'40i(k) of the Internal Revenue Code,

concerning all U.S. employees who meet certain requirements. These requirements include, among
other things, at least one year of service and attainment of the age of 21.

The plan operates as a salary reduction plan whereby participants contribute anywhere from 1%

to 15% of their compensation, not to exceed the maximum a

‘The Company may make additional matching cash cont

contributions to the plan were approximately $3 and $35 for

2003, respectively.

In addition to the U.S. plan described above, certain of
sponsor personal pension plans. The plans operate as salary

vailable under the Code.

ributions at its discretion. The Company’s
the years ended September 30, 2004 and

the Company’s U.K. subsidiaries also
reduction plans, which also allows for

lump sum contributions, whereby participants contribute anywhere from 1% to 40% of their

compensation, not to exceed the maximum available under

the U.K. tax laws. The Company may

make an additional contribution (which varies according to employee contracts and contribution

elections) which is in the form of cash. The Company’s contributions to the U.K. plans were $84, $89

and $131 for the years ended September 30, 2005, 2004 and
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15. ‘Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited):

The following table presents the comparative unaudited quarterly results for the years ended
September 30, 2005 and 2004:

2005 Quarter Ended December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
Total TEVeNUES . ..ot $86,563 $90,815 $89,483 $84,328
Gross profit. ... $25,214 $26,196 $26,215 $26,046

Net income available to common
shareholders .......... ... ... ... ... $ 4,827 $ 5,055 $ 4,654 $ 4,200 (a)

Basic and diluted net income per share of
common Stock ... ... i $ 011 § 011 $ 010 $ 0.09

(a) Includes charges of $1,463, net of tax, related to reorganization costs, rebranding and launch of
~ mew corporate logo.

2004 Quarter Ended * December 31, March 31, * June 30,  September 30,

Total revenues ............ P $78,543 $80,167 $81,914 $84,674
Gross profit. . .......ouieiiieiiiennnn. $22,310 $22,533 $23,586 $24,742
Net income .......... T $ 1,762 $ 2,643 $ 3,299 $ 2,165 (a)
Net income (loss) available to common

shareholders ................... ... ... $ 706 $ 1,574 $ 2,208 $(1,639)(b)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per

share of common stock ......... P $ 003 $ 007 $ 010 $ (0.04)

(a) Includes charges of $2,906, net of tax, related to write-offs associated with refinancing the Old
Senior Credit Facility.

(b) Includes charges of $3,730 related to the conversion of the Series A preferred stock.
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September 30, September 30,
2005 2004

ASSETS

Current assets: : ,
Cash and cash equivalents . ................... . ... b, $ 344 $ 1,906
Receivables from subsidiaries ......... ... . i b 105,662 103,013
Prepaid expenses and other assets ..., 50 431
Total current assets . ...o.vvet e b 106,056 105,350
Property and equipment, net.......... ... ... i b, 9 15
Investment in subSIAIATIES. . ... v i e b e 95,487 82,317
Goodwill .......... e O 2,300 2,300
Other assels. ..ottt v e e e e 66 66
TOtal ASSELS . oo vttt et e $203,918 $190,048

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable. ........ o oo $ 166 $§ 246
AcCrued eXPenSEs. . ..ot e S 1,178 2,042
Liabilities of discontinued operations. ............ ... .. ........ 690 690
Taxes payable ... i 2 —
 Total current Habilities .. ... ...ovvvnee e, 2,036 2,978
Long-term liabilities. ........... ... .. i .23 ' 93
Total labilities ............. .o i i 2,059 3,071

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 10,000 shares,
issued and outstanding —none. .. ...t — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 80,000 shares,

issued 45,441 and 45,050 shares, respectively ..........[......... 454 450
Additional paid-in capital.......... ... ... oo, 237,796 236,988
Accumulated other comprehensive income. ...................... 6,112 10,778
Accumulated deficit........... e (40,209) (58,945)

204,153 189,271

Less cost of treasury stock (585 shares)................ ... ..., (2,294) (2,294)
Total shareholders’ equity ................. ... oo, 201,859 186,977
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . ..........J......... $203,918 $190,048

See note to condensed financial information.
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
-~ 2003

2005 2004
Revenue .........coounuunnn. P AR o8 = 8 = B -
Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses. . . ... P 3,090 4,884 4,178
” Forgiveness of intercompany debt..... e — — 12,106
 TOtal EXPEMSES . v vt et e e 3,090 4,884 16,284
Equity in income of subsidiaries ........ e e 17,859 - 14,013 26,043 -
INterest INCOME . . vttt it et e e S 3,810 856 T 68
Other income (expense) .............. e e 159 (184). . (181)
‘Income before income taxes and discontinued
OPETALONS. ..\ vvvveeenenennns e ke 18,738 9,801 9,646
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes ................ 2 (68) (1,806)
. Income before discontinued operations . ... ... I 18,736 9,869 11452
Discontinued operations — Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, co L
net of taxes of $775 ............... e ' — — 519
o o - — — 519
Net income . .... e . B e $18,736 $ 9,869 $11,971

See note to condensed financial information.
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. Year Ended Year Ended .Year Ended
September 30,  September 30, ©  September 30,
2005 - 2004 - 2003

Cash flows from operatmg actlvmes ‘ R ‘ - - :
Netincome ....................... P A $ 1873 - $ 9869  $11971
. Adjustments to reconcile net income to.net cash used in S
. operating activities: 4 o c , ,
. Equ1ty interest in net income of sub51d1ar1es. el (17,859) . C(14,013) . (26,043)

Gain on sale of subsidiaries .. .................... — L= . (519)
Depreciation and amortization. .................. | 6 7 9
Amortization of debt issuance costs and warrants . . \ 261 302 203
Forgiveness of intercompany debt................1| ' — — 12,106
Lossonsaleofﬁxedassets......................! — — 3
Stock based compensation — employees........... \ 21 — 587
Interest accrued on loans to officers.............. \ — (7 (44)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding the
effect of businesses acquired and sold:

(Increase) decrease in receivables from subsidiaries . (2,649) (56,771) 1,164
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other
ASSCLS .« v i e e 119 431 (394)
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities . . . (1,011) _(451) (1,641)
Net cash used in continuing operations ............ (2.376) (60,633) (2,598)
Net cash provided by discontinued operations . ... .. — — 463
Net cash used in operating activities............. (2,376) _(60,633) (2,135)
Cash flows from investing activities: ’
Capital expenditures. .. ......... ... ... ... 0., — — (11)
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations.......... — — 8,195
Net cash provided by investing activities ......... — — 8,184
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments for stock issuance costs ..................... — (5,335) (20)
Payments for preferred dividends ..................... — (9,422) —
Proceeds from issuance of stock ...................... — 71,050
Payments for treasury shares acquired ................. — — (565)
Stock options exercised . ....... ... . . 791 401 30
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities . ... ..ot . 791 56,694 (505)
Effect of exchange rateoncash......................... 23 32 (114)
(Decrease) increase incash. ............................ (1,562) (3,907) 5,430
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ........... 1,906 5,813 383

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ................ $§ 34 $ 1,906 $ 5813

See note to condensed financial| information.
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ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY) A

SCHEDULE I—-CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
NOTE TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION - .

Basis of Presentation:

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted. Accordingly,
these financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of
Allied Healthcare International Inc. (the “Company”) in its 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The investments in the Company’s subsidiaries are carried on the equity basis, which represents amount
invested less dividends received plus or minus the Company’s equity in the subsidiaries’ income or loss to
date. Significant intercompany balances and activities have not been eliminated in the unconsolidated
financial information. '




ALLIED HEALTHCARE INTERNATIONAL INC.
(In thousands)

SCHEDULE 11 — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Column A Column B Column C Column D ~ Column E
Additions Charged to '
Balance at ‘ ) . Balance, at
Beginning Cost and Other End of
Description ‘ of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: ‘ [ _
Year ended September 30, 2005....- $ 1,269 § 758 $(61)(B) $232(A) $1,734
Year ended September 30,2004....  $ 3346  $(1.653)  $259(B) - $683(A)  $1269

Year ended September 30, 2003. . .. $22,849 $ 1,205 $227(B) $20,935(A) $3,346
(A) Doubtful accounts written off, net of recoveries and sold. ‘ '

(B) Assumed in acquisitions and adjustments arising from translation of foreign financial statements to
U.S. dollars.
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